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809 Center Street T —

cITY O

Santa Cruz, California 95060 SANMCﬁUZ

JOINT CITY COUNCIL - REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AGENDA

Regular Meeting

February 08, 2011

1:00 P.M. PHOTOGRAPHIC SESSION, COUNCIL CHAMBERS

2:30 P.M. CLOSED LITIGATION SESSION, COURTYARD CONFERENCE
Room

3:00 P.M. CONSENT, GENERAL BUSINESS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS,
CounciL CHAMBERS

5:00 P.M. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, COUNCIL CHAMBERS

7:00 P.M. GENERAL BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS AND MATTERS OF

PuBLIC INTEREST, COUNCIL CHAMBERS

Council will receive e-mail regarding items on the agenda during the meeting at
citycouncil@cityofsantacruz.com.

Written correspondence and telephone calls received after 2:00 p.m. on the Monday immediately
preceding a Council meeting may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor be read by them
prior to consideration of an item. Please make any communication to Councilmembers regarding
Council meeting items prior to 2:00 p.m. Monday.

Council meetings are cablecast on Comcast Channel 25.

Written material for every item listed in the open sessions is available for review at the
Central Branch Library Reference Desk.

Time limits set by Council Policy are guidelines. Unless otherwise specified, procedures for all items,
except those approved in one motion on the Consent Agenda, are:

e Oral staff report

e Public comment - 2 minutes each; maximum total time may be established by the Presiding
Officer at the beginning of the item

e Council/Agency deliberation and action



February 08, 2011 JOINT CITY COUNCIL - REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AGENDA

City Council Photographic Session

1:00 PM SESSION

Closed Litigation Session
2:30 PM SESSION

A. Conference with Legal Counsel — Liability Claims (Government Code

§54956.95).

1. Claimant: Stanley Dowling
2. Claimant: Mark Knapp (Keenan & Associates)

Claims Against: City of Santa Cruz

An oral report will be presented in the 3:00 p.m. Session (item 21).

Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Meeting
3:00 PM SESSION

Call to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Presiding Officer's Announcements

Statements of Disqualification

Additions and Deletions
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Consent Agenda

1. Minutes of the November 23, 2010 Reqular City Council Meeting. (CC)

Motion to approve as submitted.

2. Minutes of the November 23, 2010 Reqular Redevelopment Agency Meeting.
(CC)

Motion to approve as submitted.

3. Minutes of the January 25, 2011 Reqgular City Council Meeting. (CC)

Motion to approve as submitted.

4. Minutes of the January 25, 2011 Regular Redevelopment Agency Meeting. (CC)

Motion to approve as submitted.

5. California Gray Whale — Resolution of Support. (CN)

Resolution in support of the California Gray Whale and urging continued Federal
protection and attention to this threatened species.

6. 2nd Annual Festival del Nopal (Cactus Festival) Event in Santa Cruz — City Co-
Sponsorship in Name Only. (CN)

Motion to co-sponsor, in name only, the 2nd Annual Festival del Nopal (Cactus)
2011 event to be held on Church Street in Santa Cruz.

7. Project Homeless Connect Event—City Co-Sponsorship in Name Only. (CN)

Motion to co-sponsor, in name only, the March 22, 2011 Project Homeless
Connect event at the Civic Auditorium without waiving any fees or charges.
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Consent Agenda (continued)

8.

10.

11.

150th Birthday Celebration for Samuel Henry (Harry) Cowell — City Co-
Sponsorship in Name Only. (CN)

Motion to co-sponsor, in name only, the Celebration of the 150th Birthday of
Samuel Henry (Harry) Cowell which is organized by Friends of Cowell Lime
Works.

Living Wage Rate Annual Prescription for 2011. (FN/CM)

Resolution upwardly indexing the prescribed minimum living wage rate by 1.2%,
the amount which corresponds to San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Area
Consumer Price Index (CP1), for the period ending October 31, 2010 to become
effective July 1, 2011.

Tannery Arts Center — Authorization for the Executive Director to Execute a
Grant Amendment with the Economic Development Administration of the U.S.
Department of Commerce for the Tannery Working Studios/Digital Media Center
Project and Other Actions to Facilitate the Rehabilitation of the Kron House.

(ED)

Redevelopment Agency resolution authorizing the Executive Director to 1)
execute a grant amendment with the Economic Development Administration of
the U.S. Department of Commerce for the Tannery Working Studios and Digital
Media Center Project, 2) advertise the Kron House Rehabilitation project for bid,
3) award a construction contract, in a form approved by the City Attorney, to the
lowest qualified bidder, 4) sign the construction contract, 5) award and sign the
Kron House construction management contract, in a form approved by the City
Attorney, 6) approve Kron House construction contract change orders, so long
as they do not exceed the Agency budget for the project, and 7) take other
administrative actions as necessary to implement the grant amendment.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and Clean River, Beaches, and
Ocean Special Parcel Tax — Measure E Fund Financial Report for FY 2010.

(EN)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to authorize the Finance Director to file with the
City Clerk the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Clean River,
Beaches, and Ocean Special Parcel Tax — Measure E Fund Financial Report for
FY 2010.
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Consent Agenda (continued)

12.

13.

Liability Claims Filed Against City of Santa Cruz. (HR)

Motion to reject liability claims based on staff investigation: a) Stanley Dowling;
b) Mark Knapp.

City’s Classification and Compensation Plans and the FY11 Budget Personnel
Complement — Human Resources and Parks and Recreation. (HR)

Resolution to amend the Classification and Compensation Plans and the FY11
Budget Personnel Complement by authorizing the Human Resources
Department to increase the scheduled hours for the Seniors Program
Coordinator position in response to receipt of donations from the Senior
Computer Center Coordinating Council (SCCCC).

End Consent Agenda

General Business

14.

15.

City Council Ad-Hoc Committee on Technology. (CN)

Resolution forming the City Council Ad Hoc Committee on Technology,
authorizing staff time to assist the Committee, and affirming the designation of
Councilmembers Bryant and Terrazas and Mayor Coonerty as the Council’s
delegates to the Committee.

Consolidation of Two City Departments, Elimination of Two Executive Positions
and Related Changes to Personnel Classifications. (CM/HR)

Introduction for publication of an ordinance abolishing the Information
Technology Department and creating an Administrative Services Department
with Information Technology and Human Resources Divisions.

Resolution assigning the City Clerk function to the City Manager, as permitted by
Section 802 of the City Charter.

Resolution amending the Classification and Compensation Plans to delete the
positions of City Clerk, Principal Management Analyst, Assistant Human
Resources Director, Risk and Safety Manager, Human Resources Assistant |l,
and Administrative Assistant Ill, and to add the classifications and positions of
City Clerk Administrator, Administrative Services Director, Assistant to the City
Manager, Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Technology Officer, Principal
Human Resources Analyst, Human Resources Technician, and Administrative
Assistant 1.
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General Business (continued)

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Agency Projects and Infrastructure Improvements — City/Agency Cooperation
Agreement. (ED)

City Council resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a Cooperation
Agreement with the Redevelopment Agency, subject to the review and approval
of the City Attorney, and make certain findings related thereto, through which the
Agency will fund and implement certain projects, infrastructure improvements
and affordable housing (including program delivery costs).

Redevelopment Agency resolution authorizing the Executive Director to execute
a Cooperation Agreement with the City, subject to the review and approval of the
Agency Attorney, and make certain findings related thereto, through which the
Agency will fund and implemenent certain projects, infrastructure improvements
and affordable housing (including program delivery costs).

For The Future Housing, Inc., a California Corporation — Loan Agreement. (ED)

Redevelopment Agency resolution authorizing the Executive Director to enter
into a Loan Agreement, subject to approval by the Agency Attorney, with For The
Future Housing, Inc., a California Corporation, in the amount of up to $2,200,000
for the purposes of acquiring 110 Lindberg Street and constructing a 21-unit
affordable housing project and certifying the Environmental Review process
under CEQA for the proposed project.

Redevelopment Agency resolution transferring funds from the Agency’s Housing
Fund Balance and amending the FY 2011 budget in the amount of $2,200,000.

Introduction of an Ordinance Amending Section 10.68.110 Pertaining to Bicycle
Licenses. (PD)

Introduction of an Ordinance Amending Section 10.68.110 of the Santa Cruz
Municipal Code pertaining to bicycle licenses to clarify the requirement that the
license shall be affixed to the front of the seat tube of the licensed bicycle’s
frame.

City Nomination to County Latino Affairs Commission (CC)

Motion to nominate a County Latino Affairs Commissioner.

Council Meeting Calendar.
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General Business (continued)

21. City Attorney Oral Report on Closed Session.

22. Council Memberships in City Groups and Outside Agencies.

The City Council and the Redevelopment Agency will recess to the 5:00 p.m.
Session
Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Meeting
5:00 PM SESSION

Call to Order

Roll Call

Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Oral Communications - 30 Minutes

The City Council will recess to the 7:00 p.m. Session.

Adjournment — The Redevelopment Agency will adjourn from the regularly scheduled
meeting of February 8, 2011 to the next regularly scheduled meeting on February 22, 2011,
for a closed litigation session at 1:30 p.m. in the Courtyard Conference Room, followed by
open sessions at the approximate hours of 3:00 p.m., 5:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. in Council
Chambers.
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City Council Meeting
7:00 PM SESSION

Call to Order

Roll Call

Presentation - First 5 Santa Cruz County/Primeros 5 Santa Cruz County

General Business

23. Library Task Force Final Report on Fiscally Sustainable Service Models. (LB)

Motion to recommend adoption of a new library service model from the four
options presented in the Final Task Force Report and to provide direction to the
City Council’s representatives to the Library Joint Powers Board (LJPB).

Adjournment — The City Council will adjourn from the regularly scheduled meeting of
February 8, 2011, to the next regularly scheduled meeting on February 22, for a closed
litigation session at 1:30 p.m. in the Courtyard Conference Room, followed by open sessions
at the approximate hours of 3:00 p.m., 5:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.
Advisory Body Appointments

The following positions are vacant. Council will make appointments at a future meeting.

Latino Affairs Commission (County) One (1) vacancy
Measure K Oversight Committee Two (2) vacancies and one (1) reappointment
Sister Cities Committee Two (2) vacancies

Advisory Body Direct Appointments

The following appointments are being made directly by Councilmembers under the
authority of Measure K (Ordinance No. 2006-27) adopted by the City electorate at the
November 2006 election, and are listed for reference and information. There will be no
Council discussion or action.

Councilmember Bryant appointed Kirsten Attlesey to the Measure K Oversight
Committee on February 1, 2011.
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Public Hearing: If, in the future, you wish to challenge in court any of the matters on this
agenda for which a public hearing is to be conducted, you may be limited to raising only those
issues which you (or someone else) raised orally at the public hearing or in written
correspondence received by the City at or before the hearing.

Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the
discretion in the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to
commence that action either 60 days or 90 days following the date on which the decision
becomes final as provided in Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6 Please refer to code of
Civil Procedure 1094.6 to determine how to calculate when a decision becomes “final.” The 60-
day rule applies to all public hearings conducted pursuant to the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Title
24, Santa Cruz Municipal Code. The 90-day rule applies to all other public hearings.

City Council Agenda Legislative History Addendum
No information was submitted.

City staff is responsible for providing the City Clerk with such documentation and
information for the Legislative History Addendum. The information will be on file in the
City Clerk’s Department.

The Addendum is a listing of information specific to City Council business, but which
does not appear on a Council meeting agenda. Such entities would include, but not be
limited to:

Court decisions

Coastal Commission Appeals of City Council actions

Closed Session Agreements/Settlements, which are public record
Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments

Local Agency Formation Commission
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ADDENDUM TO CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - FEBRUARY 8§, 2011

INFORMATION ITEMS PREVIOUSLY DISTRIBUTED TO CITY
COUNCILMEMBERS

(Copies available in the Central Branch Library at the Reference Desk)

City Clerk Resignation of Jason Nortz from the Sister Cities
Committee 1/24/11 (CC FYI 132)

Finance Department Monthly Financial Reports for December 2010
1/25/11 (FN FYI1 163)

Portfolio Management Report — Unpooled Cash and
Investments as of December 31, 2010 1/26/11
(FN FYI 164)

Portfolio Management Report — Pooled Cash and
Investments as of December 31, 2010 1/26/11
(FN FYI 165)

Fire Department Emergency Tree Removal Permit Issuance at 201 West

Cliff, Sea and Sand Inn 1/25/11 (PL FYI 028)

Parks and Recreation Department Emergency Tree Removal Permit Issuance at 201 West
Cliff, Sea and Sand Inn 1/25/11 (PL FYI 028)

Planning Department Emergency Tree Removal Permit Issuance at 201 West
Cliff, Sea and Sand Inn 1/25/11 (PL FYI 028)

Water Department New Water Conservation Program 1/20/11
(WT FYI 038)

* Report submitted jointly by departments.

MAYOR’S PROCLAMATIONS

1. Proclaiming Thursday, January 20, 2011 as “Greg Archer Day” and asking the
residents of the City to thank Greg for all that he does to make Santa Cruz a
vibrant place to live and congratulate him on the publication of his first book.

2. Proclaiming February 1, 2011 as “Santa Cruz County 2-1-1 Day.”



MINUTES ARE UNOFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY COUNCIL

CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
809 Center Street
Santa Cruz, California 95060

MINUTES OF A REGULAR JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING

November 23, 2010

2:00 P.M. SESSION

Mayor Rotkin opened the Closed Litigation Session at 2:08 p.m. in a public
session in the Courtyard Conference Room, for the purpose of announcing the
agenda. No members of the public were present. Council closed the session to
the public at 2:08 p.m. All Councilmembers were present. (See page 1331 for a
report on closed session.)

3:00 P.M. SESSION

Mayor/Chair Rotkin called the meeting to order at 3:08 p.m. in the Council
Chambers.

Roll Call

Present: Councilmembers/Members Lane, Mathews, Beiers, Madrigal,
Robinson; Vice Mayor/Vice Chair Coonerty; Mayor/Chair Rotkin.

Absent: None.

Staff: City Manager M. Bernal, Assistant City Manager T. Shull, City

Attorney J. Barisone, Director of Finance J. Dilles, Director of
Human Resources L. Sullivan, Director of Parks and Recreation
D. Shoemaker, Director of Public Works M. Dettle, Assistant
Director of Public Works/City Engineer C. Schneiter, Parking
Program Manager M. Granlund, City Clerk L. Brewer, Deputy City
Clerk T. Graves.

Pledge of Allegiance

Presentation - Mayor's Proclamation Declaring November as Pancreatic
Cancer Awareness Month — accepted by Jennifer Flanakin.
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JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

3:00 P.M. SESSION

Presentation - 2010 Officer Jim Howes Community Service Award
Presentation — presented by Retired Officer Jim Howes and Mayor Rotkin to
Laura Kasa, Executive Director of Save Our Shores, and Deborah Elston of
Santa Cruz Neighbors; and to Officers Jose Garcia and Joe Hernandez of the
Santa Cruz Police Department.

Presiding Officer's Announcements

Statements of Disqualification — None.

Additions and Deletions — None.

Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Oral Communications

Pat Arnold spoke favorably of Tony Madrigal’s work in the community, especially
on the Coalition on Overcoming Racism. Ms. Arnold also announced the Third

Annual Human Rights Fair at the Galleria.

Marilyn Garrett spoke about the negative health effects of EM radiation, and of
her opposition to PG&E’s SmartMeter Program.

Mike Tomasi spoke about peace and freedom.
Ed Davidson spoke about the red legged tree frog and its status as “threatened,”
not “endangered,” and also decried the Santa Cruz Seaside Company’s letter

writing attacks on Councilmember Madrigal.

Marlin Granlund, Parking Program Manager, announced the Holiday Parking
Program effective dates of December 8, 2010 through December 25, 2010.

Don Lane announced the Community Thanksgiving Dinner at the Civic
Auditorium on Thursday, November 25, 2010 from Noon to 3:00 p.m.



Action
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JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

3:00 P.M. SESSION

Consent Agenda

Items 5 and 7 were removed from the Consent Agenda.

Councilmember/Member Lane moved, seconded by Vice Mayor/Vice Chair
Coonerty, to approve the remaining items on the Consent Agenda. The motion
carried unanimously.

1.

Minutes of the November 9, 2010 Regular City Council Meeting. (CC)

Motion carried to approve as submitted.

Minutes of the November 9, 2010 Regular Redevelopment Agency
Meeting. (CC)

Motion carried to approve as submitted.

Funding for CPVAW Safety Skills and Self Defense Program. (CM/PD)

Resolution No. NS-28,293 was adopted transferring funds and amending
the FY 2011 budget in the amount of $5,000 to fund the CPVAW Safety
Skills and Self Defense Program from the Police Department Asset
Seizure/Youth Crime Prevention Fund.

Highway 1/9 Intersection Improvements — Fifth Amendment to Consultant
Agreement and Budget Adjustment. (ED) (PW)

Redevelopment Agency motion carried to authorize the Executive Director
to execute an amendment with BKF Engineers in the amount of $184,830
for additional consulting engineering and environmental services for the
Highway 1/9 Intersection Improvement project.

Redevelopment Agency Resolution No. 1511 was adopted transferring
funds and amending the FY 2011 budget in the amount of $23,000 from
the Phase Il budget of the HWY 1/9 Intersection Improvement Project to
the current Phase |.

City Council Resolution No. NS-28,294 was adopted amending the FY
2011 budget to reduce the RDA funding and the appropriation by $23,000
for the Phase Il Hwy 1/9 Intersection Improvement Project.
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JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

3:00 P.M. SESSION

Consent Agenda (continued)

5.

FY 2010 Traffic Impact Fee Annual Report. (FN)

Assistant Director of Public Works/City Engineer C. Schneiter presented
an oral report and responded to Council's questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN OPPOSITION AND/OR
EXPRESSING CONCERNS:

Micah Posner
Frank Correa

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN SUPPORT AND/OR EXPRESSING
CONCERNS:

Ron Pomerantz

Director of Finance J. Dilles and City Attorney J. Barisone presented oral
reports and responded to Council’s questions.

Councilmember Madrigal moved, seconded by Councilmember Beiers, to
continue this item to a future evening session. The motion FAILED by the
following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Madrigal, Beiers.

NOES: Councilmembers Mathews, Lane, Robinson; Vice
Mayor Coonerty; Mayor Rotkin.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED:  None.

Vice Mayor Coonerty moved, seconded by Councilmember Lane, to
accept the FY 2010 Traffic Impact Fee Annual Report; and to make
certain findings to: A) identify the purpose to which the fee is to be put;

B) demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and the
purpose for which it is charged; C) identify all sources and amounts of
funding anticipated to complete financing in incomplete improvements;
and D) designate the approximate dates on which the funding is expected
to be deposited into the appropriate account or fund, with the additional
finding that it is not the Council’s intention to take action on the allocation
component at this time. The motion carried unanimously.
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JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

3:00 P.M. SESSION

Consent Agenda (continued)

6.

Liability Claims Filed Against City of Santa Cruz. (HR)

Motion carried to reject liability claims a) Barbara Dyer, b) William Hartley
and c) Jamal Kamli; and reject and deny late claim d) Keith Howard,
based upon staff investigation.

Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP - Sole Source Contract. (HR)

Director of Human Resources L. Sullivan presented an oral report and
responded to Council’s questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN OPPOSITION AND/OR
EXPRESSING CONCERNS:

Doris Henry, SEIU
Gary Klems, SEIU

Councilmember Mathews moved, seconded by Mayor Rotkin, to adopt
Resolution No. NS-28,295 authorizing and directing the City Manager to
execute a sole source contract, in a form approved by the City Attorney,
with Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP in the amount of $150,000 for legal
representation relating to employee and labor relations. The motion
carried by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Mathews, Lane, Robinson, Beiers;
Vice Mayor Coonerty; Mayor Rotkin.

NOES: Councilmember Madrigal.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED: None.

City’s Classification and Compensation Plans and the FY 2011 Budget
Personnel Complement — Public Works Department. (HR)

Resolution No. NS-28,296 was adopted amending the Classification and
Compensation Plans to delete both the classification and one position of
Wastewater Facilities Lead Electrical/Instrumentation Technician and
replace with a new classification and one position of Wastewater Facilities
Instrumentation Technician I/Il in the Public Works Department.
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JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

3:00 P.M. SESSION

Consent Agenda (continued)

9. New Year's Eve Safety Enhancement Zone. (PD)

Resolution No. NS-28,297 was adopted authorizing a temporary safety
enhancement zone for New Year’s Eve downtown from 6:00 p.m.
December 31, 2010 to 3:00 a.m. January 1, 2011, designating the
geographic boundary of the temporary safety enhancement zone and
increasing fines and penalties for certain Municipal Code violations within
the zone.

10. 2010 State Mandated Court Construction Costs — Increase to Parking
Citation Fines. (PW)

Resolution No. NS-28,298 was adopted modifying parking fines for
parking violations by increasing fines as illustrated in Exhibit 1; and
rescinding Resolution NS-28,028,amending the start date of the fee
increase to January 1, 2011.

11.  Implementation of Deferred Water Rate Increase. (WT)

Motion carried to ratify the 5% water rate increase scheduled to take
effect on January 1, 2011.

End Consent Agenda
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JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

3:00 P.M. SESSION

General Business

Note: This item was considered out of agenda order.

12.

13.

In-Home Supportive Services Workers’ Livable Wage — Resolution of
Support. (CN)

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN SUPPORT, AND/OR EXPRESSING
CONCERNS:

Nora Hochman, Coalition for a Living Wage
Mike Tomasi

Councilmember Mathews moved, seconded by Councilmember Madrigal,
to adopt Resolution No. NS-28,299 supporting In-Home Supportive
Service workers and urging the provision of a livable wage for these
valued workers. The motion carried unanimously.

Ordinance Amending Section 1.01.010 and Adding Section 1.01.035
Pertaining to Repealing of Outdated Codes Adopted by Reference and
Granting Publication Authority to Code Publishing Company. (CC)

Councilmember Robinson moved, seconded by Vice Mayor Coonerty, to
introduce for publication Ordinance No. 2010-24 amending Section
1.01.010 and adding Section 1.01.035 pertaining to repealing of outdated
codes adopted by reference and granting publication authority to Code
Publishing Company. The motion carried unanimously.

Public Hearings

Note: Item 14 was continued to the meeting of December 14, 2010 at 3 p.m.

14.

There was no written material for this item.

Residential Rental Inspection Program Fees. (PL)

A new Department of Planning and Community Development Fee
Schedule creating fees for the Residential Rental Inspection Program, and
rescinding Resolution No. NS-28,171.
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JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2010

3:00 P.M. SESSION

Public Hearings (continued)

15.

Ordinance No. 2010-23 - Ordinance Amending Building Regulations
Contained in Title 18 of the Santa Cruz Municipal Code and Adopting the
California Code of Regulations Title 24, 2010 Building Standards Codes
and Other Codes and Standards to Establish Minimum Requirements to
Safeguard Public Health, Life, Safety and General Welfare. (PL)

Mayor Rotkin opened the public hearing at 4:35 p.m.

There was no public comment.

Mayor Rotkin closed the public hearing at 4:35 p.m.

Councilmember Robinson moved, seconded by Councilmember Lane, to

pass Ordinance No. 2010-23 for final adoption. The motion carried
unanimously.

General Business

16.

Tobacco Retailer License Fee. (CN)

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN SUPPORT AND/OR EXPRESSING
CONCERNS:

Kathleen Hofvendahl-Clark, Tobacco Coalition
Jairo Hernandez, Pajaro Valley Prevention Services
Al Richards, County Drug & Alcohol Commission

Vice Mayor Coonerty moved, seconded by Mayor Rotkin, to direct staff to
research and assess the implications of a Tobacco Retailer License Fee
in the City of Santa Cruz and to return to the City Council at an upcoming
meeting with a draft ordinance or other recommendation. The motion
carried unanimously.
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REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2010
3:00 P.M. SESSION

General Business (continued)

17. Council Meeting Calendar

The City Council reviewed the meeting calendar attached to the agenda
and revised as necessary.

18. City Attorney Oral Report on Closed Session.

A. Conference with Legal Counsel — Liability Claims (Government
Code §54956.95).

Claimant: California State Automobile Association
Claimant: USAA Casualty Insurance Company
Claimant: AMCO Insurance Company

Claimant: Barbara Dyer

Claimant William Hartley

Claimant: Jamal Kamli

Claimant: Keith Howard

Claims Against: City of Santa Cruz

NoOORON =~

Claims 1-3 were authorized for settlement. Claims 4-7 were not
discussed. Mayor Rotkin noted for the record that claim 7. was
denied both on its merit and because it was late.

B. Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation
(Government Code §54956.9).

Initiation of Litigation by City (Government Code §54956.9(c)).
1 case was discussed. Council took no reportable action.

C. Appointment of City Employee (Government Code Section 54957)

Appointment of City Clerk.

Council discussed the appointment of the City Clerk, but took no
reportable action.

19. Council Memberships in City Groups and Outside Agencies.

The Presiding Officer provided Councilmembers with the opportunity to
update Council and the public regarding City Groups and Outside
Agencies.

At 4:58 p.m. the City Council and Redevelopment Agency recessed to
the 7:00 p.m. session.



CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
809 Center Street
Santa Cruz, California 95060

MINUTES OF A JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING

November 23, 2010
7:00 P.M. SESSION

Mayor/Chair Rotkin called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. in Council
Chambers.

Roll Call

Present: Councilmembers/Members Lane, Mathews, Beiers, Madrigal,
Robinson; Vice Mayor/Vice Chair Coonerty; Mayor/Chair Rotkin.

Absent: None.

Staff: City Manager M. Bernal, Assistant City Manager T. Shull, Deputy

City Attorney C. Cassman, Acting Director of Planning and
Community Development A. Khoury, City Clerk L. Brewer, Deputy
City Clerk T. Graves.
Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Oral Communications
Norma Jean Tasker spoke about The Carnation Café at Louden Nelson Center.
Nereida Robles spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
Victor Bonderos spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.

Marvel Armijo spoke in favor of Councilmember Madrigal.

Joan Laskin thanked the Council for sponsoring Festival de Nopales, and spoke
in support of Councilmember Madrigal.

Tomas Alejo spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
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REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2009
7:00 P.M. SESSION

Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Oral Communications
(continued)

Celia Montesino spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
Alex spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
Barbara Hayes spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.

Annaliese Cube spoke about Jingle Bell Rock at 8:00 a.m. on December 12,
2010, and encouraged all residents to attend.

Jessica Roja spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
Santito Gomes spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
General Business

20. Residential Rental Inspection and Maintenance Ordinance Checklists.
(PL)

Assistant Director of Planning and Community Development A. Khoury
presented an oral report and responded to Council’s questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN OPPOSITION AND/OR
EXPRESSING CONCERNS:

Harold Griffith
Candace Bradfield
Nick Volaich

Claire Sanders
Michelle Nicely

An unidentified woman
Elia Volaich

Anthony Silveiura

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN SUPPORT AND/OR EXPRESSING
CONCERNS:

Josh Howard
Gretchen Regenhardt



Action

Action

1334

JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2009

7:00 P.M. SESSION

General Business (continued)

20.

Note:
Note:
21.

Residential Rental Inspection and Maintenance Ordinance Checklists.
(PL) (continued)

Vice Mayor Coonerty moved, seconded by Councilmember Robinson, to
adopt Resolution No. NS-28,300 adopting the Residential Rental
Inspection and Maintenance Ordinance checklists. The motion passed by
the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Mathews, Lane, Robinson, Beiers;
Vice Mayor Coonerty; Mayor Rotkin.

NOES: Councilmember Madrigal.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED: None.
Council recessed at 8:39 p.m. and reconvened at 8:50 p.m.
Written material was provided prior to the meeting for item 21.

Community Programs Committee -- Affirmation of Social Services
Strateqic Allocation Funding Framework and Funding Principles. (CN)

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR WITH CONCERNS:

Taylor Bancroft Katherine Johnson
Tom Helman Karen Delaney
Robin Haas Clay Kempf

Kathy Huntly Carolyn Coleman
Bob Rey Harvey

Gloris Ploss

Vice Mayor Coonerty moved, seconded by Councilmember Robinson, to
endorse the allocation methodology, funding principles, funding
parameters and funding cycle and process recommended by the City
Council Community Programs Committee. The motion carried
unanimously.
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General Business (continued)

21.

Community Programs Committee -- Affirmation of Social Services
Strategic Allocation Funding Framework and Funding Principles. (CN)
(continued)

Councilmember Beiers moved, seconded by Councilmember Madrigal, to
change the title of Funding Principle 6 from “Make a Systemic and Long-
Term Difference” to “Make a Measurable Difference.” The motion carried
by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Lane, Mathews, Beiers, Robinson;
Vice Mayor Coonerty.

NOES: Mayor Rotkin.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED:  None.

Councilmember Lane moved, seconded by Mayor Rotkin, to replace the
5% set-aside funding methodology recommendation of the Allocation
Methodology (Bullet 2) with “The Council adopts the principle that
Community Programs will have administrative costs and that staff will
propose these costs at budget time, with the understanding that costs
should be minimum in the first year and then be ongoing.” The motion
carried by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Lane, Beiers, Madrigal, Robinson;
Mayor Rotkin.

NOES: Councilmember Mathews; Vice Mayor Coonerty.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED:  None.

Councilmember Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Madrigal, to
change the grant minimum to $5,000 with no reference to indexing a
percentage to the Community Programs General Fund budget. The
motion carried by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Lane, Beiers, Madrigal, Robinson;
Vice Mayor Coonerty, Mayor Rotkin.

NOES: Councilmember Mathews.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED: None.



Action

Action

1336

JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
NOVEMBER 23, 2009

7:00 P.M. SESSION

General Business (continued)

21.  Community Programs Committee -- Affirmation of Social Services
Strategic Allocation Funding Framework and Funding Principles. (CN)
(continued)

By consensus, the Council directed the Committee to explore
oversampling of the City of Santa Cruz for future Community Assessment
Project surveys.

By consensus, the Council adopted the following Funding Principles:

1. Align with the Strategic Framework by funding only programs that
directly address at least one of the Highlighted Results in the
Strategic Framework. Programs addressing more than one
Highlighted Result will be encouraged.

2. Leverage Resources by applying City funds to match Federal,
State and private funds, and by broadening the range of funding
sources.

3. Move Toward Service Collaboration by funding programs that

reduce fragmentation and promote effectiveness of existing
services through collaboration and coordination, making services
more accessible and comprehensive.

4, Promote Inclusion by funding programs and activities that are
responsive to, and reflective of, the needs of our diverse
community.

Adjournment — At 11:58 p.m., the Redevelopment Agency adjourned from the
regularly scheduled meeting of November 23, 2010 to the next regularly
scheduled meeting on December 14, 2010, for a closed litigation session at 1:30
p.m., in the Courtyard Conference Room, followed by open sessions at the
approximate hours of 3:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.
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Adjournment — At 11:58 p.m., the City Council adjourned from the regularly
scheduled meeting of November 23, 2010, to the next regularly scheduled
meeting on December 14, 2010, for a closed litigation session at 1:30 p.m., in
the Courtyard Conference Room, followed by open sessions at the approximate
hours of 3:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.

Approved

Tom Graves
Interim City Clerk

Approved

Michael Rotkin
Mayor
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3:00 P.M. SESSION

Mayor/Chair Rotkin called the meeting to order at 3:08 p.m. in the Council
Chambers.

Roll Call

Present: Councilmembers/Members Lane, Mathews, Beiers, Madrigal,
Robinson; Vice Mayor/Vice Chair Coonerty; Mayor/Chair Rotkin.

Absent: None.

Staff: City Manager M. Bernal, Assistant City Manager T. Shull, City

Attorney J. Barisone, Director of Finance J. Dilles, Director of
Human Resources L. Sullivan, Director of Parks and Recreation
D. Shoemaker, Director of Public Works M. Dettle, Assistant
Director of Public Works/City Engineer C. Schneiter, Parking
Program Manager M. Granlund, City Clerk L. Brewer, Deputy City
Clerk T. Graves.

Pledge of Allegiance

Presentation - Mayor's Proclamation Declaring November as Pancreatic
Cancer Awareness Month — accepted by Jennifer Flanakin.

Presentation - 2010 Officer Jim Howes Community Service Award
Presentation — presented by Retired Officer Jim Howes and Mayor Rotkin to
Laura Kasa, Executive Director of Save Our Shores, and Deborah Elston of
Santa Cruz Neighbors; and to Officers Jose Garcia and Joe Hernandez of the
Santa Cruz Police Department.

Presiding Officer's Announcements

Statements of Disqualification — None.

Additions and Deletions — None.
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Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Oral Communications

Pat Arnold spoke favorably of Tony Madrigal’s work in the community, especially
on the Coalition on Overcoming Racism. Ms. Arnold also announced the Third
Annual Human Rights Fair at the Galleria.

Marilyn Garrett spoke about the negative health effects of EM radiation, and of
her opposition to PG&E’s SmartMeter Program.

Mike Tomasi spoke about peace and freedom.
Ed Davidson spoke about the red legged tree frog and its status as “threatened,”
not “endangered,” and also decried the Santa Cruz Seaside Company’s letter

writing attacks on Councilmember Madrigal.

Marlin Granlund, Parking Program Manager, announced the Holiday Parking
Program effective dates of December 8, 2010 through December 25, 2010.

Don Lane announced the Community Thanksgiving Dinner at the Civic
Auditorium on Thursday, November 25, 2010 from Noon to 3:00 p.m.

Consent Agenda
Items 5 and 7 were removed from the Consent Agenda.

Action Councilmember/Member Lane moved, seconded by Vice Mayor/Vice Chair
Coonerty, to approve the remaining items on the Consent Agenda. The motion

carried unanimously.

1. Minutes of the November 9, 2010 Regular City Council Meeting. (CC)

Motion carried to approve as submitted.

2. Minutes of the November 9, 2010 Regular Redevelopment Agency
Meeting. (CC)

Motion carried to approve as submitted.
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Consent Agenda (continued)

3.

Funding for CPVAW Safety Skills and Self Defense Program. (CM/PD)

Resolution No. NS-28,293 was adopted transferring funds and amending
the FY 2011 budget in the amount of $5,000 to fund the CPVAW Safety
Skills and Self Defense Program from the Police Department Asset
Seizure/Youth Crime Prevention Fund.

Highway 1/9 Intersection Improvements — Fifth Amendment to Consultant
Agreement and Budget Adjustment. (ED) (PW)

Redevelopment Agency motion carried to authorize the Executive Director
to execute an amendment with BKF Engineers in the amount of $184,830
for additional consulting engineering and environmental services for the
Highway 1/9 Intersection Improvement project.

Redevelopment Agency Resolution No. 1511 was adopted transferring
funds and amending the FY 2011 budget in the amount of $23,000 from
the Phase Il budget of the HWY 1/9 Intersection Improvement Project to
the current Phase |.

City Council Resolution No. NS-28,294 was adopted amending the FY
2011 budget to reduce the RDA funding and the appropriation by $23,000
for the Phase Il Hwy 1/9 Intersection Improvement Project.
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Consent Agenda (continued)

5.

FY 2010 Traffic Impact Fee Annual Report. (FN)

Assistant Director of Public Works/City Engineer C. Schneiter presented
an oral report and responded to Council's questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN OPPOSITION AND/OR
EXPRESSING CONCERNS:

Micah Posner
Frank Correa

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN SUPPORT AND/OR EXPRESSING
CONCERNS:

Ron Pomerantz

Director of Finance J. Dilles and City Attorney J. Barisone presented oral
reports and responded to Council’s questions.

Councilmember Madrigal moved, seconded by Councilmember Beiers, to
continue this item to a future evening session. The motion FAILED by the
following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Madrigal, Beiers.

NOES: Councilmembers Mathews, Lane, Robinson; Vice
Mayor Coonerty; Mayor Rotkin.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED:  None.

Vice Mayor Coonerty moved, seconded by Councilmember Lane, to
accept the FY 2010 Traffic Impact Fee Annual Report; and to make
certain findings to: A) identify the purpose to which the fee is to be put;

B) demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and the
purpose for which it is charged; C) identify all sources and amounts of
funding anticipated to complete financing in incomplete improvements;
and D) designate the approximate dates on which the funding is expected
to be deposited into the appropriate account or fund, with the additional
finding that it is not the Council’s intention to take action on the allocation
component at this time. The motion carried unanimously.
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Consent Agenda (continued)

6.

Liability Claims Filed Against City of Santa Cruz. (HR)

Motion carried to reject liability claims a) Barbara Dyer, b) William Hartley
and c) Jamal Kamli; and reject and deny late claim d) Keith Howard,
based upon staff investigation.

Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP - Sole Source Contract. (HR)

Director of Human Resources L. Sullivan presented an oral report and
responded to Council’s questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN OPPOSITION AND/OR
EXPRESSING CONCERNS:

Doris Henry, SEIU
Gary Klems, SEIU

Councilmember Mathews moved, seconded by Mayor Rotkin, to adopt
Resolution No. NS-28,295 authorizing and directing the City Manager to
execute a sole source contract, in a form approved by the City Attorney,
with Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP in the amount of $150,000 for legal
representation relating to employee and labor relations. The motion
carried by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Mathews, Lane, Robinson, Beiers;
Vice Mayor Coonerty; Mayor Rotkin.

NOES: Councilmember Madrigal.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED: None.

City’s Classification and Compensation Plans and the FY 2011 Budget
Personnel Complement — Public Works Department. (HR)

Resolution No. NS-28,296 was adopted amending the Classification and
Compensation Plans to delete both the classification and one position of
Wastewater Facilities Lead Electrical/Instrumentation Technician and
replace with a new classification and one position of Wastewater Facilities
Instrumentation Technician I/Il in the Public Works Department.
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Consent Agenda (continued)

9. New Year's Eve Safety Enhancement Zone. (PD)

Resolution No. NS-28,297 was adopted authorizing a temporary safety
enhancement zone for New Year’s Eve downtown from 6:00 p.m.
December 31, 2010 to 3:00 a.m. January 1, 2011, designating the
geographic boundary of the temporary safety enhancement zone and
increasing fines and penalties for certain Municipal Code violations within
the zone.

10. 2010 State Mandated Court Construction Costs — Increase to Parking
Citation Fines. (PW)

Resolution No. NS-28,298 was adopted modifying parking fines for
parking violations by increasing fines as illustrated in Exhibit 1; and
rescinding Resolution NS-28,028,amending the start date of the fee
increase to January 1, 2011.

11.  Implementation of Deferred Water Rate Increase. (WT)

Motion carried to ratify the 5% water rate increase scheduled to take
effect on January 1, 2011.

End Consent Agenda
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General Business

Note: This item was considered out of agenda order.

12.

13.

In-Home Supportive Services Workers’ Livable Wage — Resolution of
Support. (CN)

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN SUPPORT, AND/OR EXPRESSING
CONCERNS:

Nora Hochman, Coalition for a Living Wage
Mike Tomasi

Councilmember Mathews moved, seconded by Councilmember Madrigal,
to adopt Resolution No. NS-28,299 supporting In-Home Supportive
Service workers and urging the provision of a livable wage for these
valued workers. The motion carried unanimously.

Ordinance Amending Section 1.01.010 and Adding Section 1.01.035
Pertaining to Repealing of Outdated Codes Adopted by Reference and
Granting Publication Authority to Code Publishing Company. (CC)

Councilmember Robinson moved, seconded by Vice Mayor Coonerty, to
introduce for publication Ordinance No. 2010-24 amending Section
1.01.010 and adding Section 1.01.035 pertaining to repealing of outdated
codes adopted by reference and granting publication authority to Code
Publishing Company. The motion carried unanimously.

Public Hearings

Note: Item 14 was continued to the meeting of December 14, 2010 at 3 p.m.

14.

There was no written material for this item.

Residential Rental Inspection Program Fees. (PL)

A new Department of Planning and Community Development Fee
Schedule creating fees for the Residential Rental Inspection Program, and
rescinding Resolution No. NS-28,171.
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Public Hearings (continued)

15.

Ordinance No. 2010-23 - Ordinance Amending Building Regulations
Contained in Title 18 of the Santa Cruz Municipal Code and Adopting the
California Code of Reqgulations Title 24, 2010 Building Standards Codes
and Other Codes and Standards to Establish Minimum Requirements to
Safeguard Public Health, Life, Safety and General Welfare. (PL)

Mayor Rotkin opened the public hearing at 4:35 p.m.

There was no public comment.

Mayor Rotkin closed the public hearing at 4:35 p.m.

Councilmember Robinson moved, seconded by Councilmember Lane, to

pass Ordinance No. 2010-23 for final adoption. The motion carried
unanimously.

General Business

16.

Tobacco Retailer License Fee. (CN)

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN SUPPORT AND/OR EXPRESSING
CONCERNS:

Kathleen Hofvendahl-Clark, Tobacco Coalition
Jairo Hernandez, Pajaro Valley Prevention Services
Al Richards, County Drug & Alcohol Commission

Vice Mayor Coonerty moved, seconded by Mayor Rotkin, to direct staff to
research and assess the implications of a Tobacco Retailer License Fee
in the City of Santa Cruz and to return to the City Council at an upcoming
meeting with a draft ordinance or other recommendation. The motion
carried unanimously.
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General Business (continued)

17. Council Meeting Calendar

The City Council reviewed the meeting calendar attached to the agenda
and revised as necessary.

18. City Attorney Oral Report on Closed Session.

A. Conference with Legal Counsel — Liability Claims (Government
Code §54956.95).

Claimant: California State Automobile Association
Claimant: USAA Casualty Insurance Company
Claimant: AMCO Insurance Company

Claimant: Barbara Dyer

Claimant William Hartley

Claimant: Jamal Kamli

Claimant: Keith Howard

Claims Against: City of Santa Cruz

NoOORON =~

Claims 1-3 were authorized for settlement. Claims 4-7 were not
discussed. Mayor Rotkin noted for the record that claim 7. was
denied both on its merit and because it was late.

B. Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation
(Government Code §54956.9).

Initiation of Litigation by City (Government Code §54956.9(c)).
1 case was discussed. Council took no reportable action.

C. Appointment of City Employee (Government Code Section 54957)

Appointment of City Clerk.

Council discussed the appointment of the City Clerk, but took no
reportable action.

19. Council Memberships in City Groups and Outside Agencies.

The Presiding Officer provided Councilmembers with the opportunity to
update Council and the public regarding City Groups and Outside
Agencies.

At 4:58 p.m. the City Council and Redevelopment Agency recessed to
the 7:00 p.m. session.
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7:00 P.M. SESSION

Mayor/Chair Rotkin called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. in Council
Chambers.

Roll Call

Present: Councilmembers/Members Lane, Mathews, Beiers, Madrigal,
Robinson; Vice Mayor/Vice Chair Coonerty; Mayor/Chair Rotkin.

Absent: None.

Staff: City Manager M. Bernal, Assistant City Manager T. Shull, Deputy

City Attorney C. Cassman, Acting Director of Planning and
Community Development A. Khoury, City Clerk L. Brewer, Deputy
City Clerk T. Graves.
Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Oral Communications
Norma Jean Tasker spoke about The Carnation Café at Louden Nelson Center.
Nereida Robles spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
Victor Bonderos spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.

Marvel Armijo spoke in favor of Councilmember Madrigal.

Joan Laskin thanked the Council for sponsoring Festival de Nopales, and spoke
in support of Councilmember Madrigal.

Tomas Alejo spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.

2.-10
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Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Oral Communications
(continued)

Celia Montesino spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
Alex spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
Barbara Hayes spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.

Annaliese Cube spoke about Jingle Bell Rock at 8:00 a.m. on December 12,
2010, and encouraged all residents to attend.

Jessica Roja spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
Santito Gomes spoke in support of Councilmember Madrigal.
General Business

20. Residential Rental Inspection and Maintenance Ordinance Checklists.
(PL)

Assistant Director of Planning and Community Development A. Khoury
presented an oral report and responded to Council’s questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN OPPOSITION AND/OR
EXPRESSING CONCERNS:

Harold Griffith
Candace Bradfield
Nick Volaich

Claire Sanders
Michelle Nicely

An unidentified woman
Elia Volaich

Anthony Silveiura

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR IN SUPPORT AND/OR EXPRESSING
CONCERNS:

Josh Howard
Gretchen Regenhardt

2.-11
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General Business (continued)

20.

Note:
Note:
21.

Residential Rental Inspection and Maintenance Ordinance Checklists.
(PL) (continued)

Vice Mayor Coonerty moved, seconded by Councilmember Robinson, to
adopt Resolution No. NS-28,300 adopting the Residential Rental
Inspection and Maintenance Ordinance checklists. The motion passed by
the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Mathews, Lane, Robinson, Beiers;
Vice Mayor Coonerty; Mayor Rotkin.

NOES: Councilmember Madrigal.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED: None.
Council recessed at 8:39 p.m. and reconvened at 8:50 p.m.
Written material was provided prior to the meeting for item 21.

Community Programs Committee -- Affirmation of Social Services
Strateqic Allocation Funding Framework and Funding Principles. (CN)

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR WITH CONCERNS:

Taylor Bancroft Katherine Johnson
Tom Helman Karen Delaney
Robin Haas Clay Kempf

Kathy Huntly Carolyn Coleman
Bob Rey Harvey

Gloris Ploss

Vice Mayor Coonerty moved, seconded by Councilmember Robinson, to
endorse the allocation methodology, funding principles, funding
parameters and funding cycle and process recommended by the City
Council Community Programs Committee. The motion carried
unanimously.

2.-12
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General Business (continued)

21.

Community Programs Committee -- Affirmation of Social Services
Strategic Allocation Funding Framework and Funding Principles. (CN)
(continued)

Councilmember Beiers moved, seconded by Councilmember Madrigal, to
change the title of Funding Principle 6 from “Make a Systemic and Long-
Term Difference” to “Make a Measurable Difference.” The motion carried
by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Lane, Mathews, Beiers, Robinson;
Vice Mayor Coonerty.

NOES: Mayor Rotkin.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED:  None.

Councilmember Lane moved, seconded by Mayor Rotkin, to replace the
5% set-aside funding methodology recommendation with “The Council
adopts the principle that Community Programs will have administrative
costs and that staff will propose these costs at budget time, with the
understanding that costs should be minimum in the first year and then be
ongoing. The motion carried by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Lane, Beiers, Madrigal, Robinson;
Vice Mayor Coonerty.

NOES: Councilmember Mathews; Mayor Rotkin.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED: None.

Councilmember Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Madrigal, to
change the grant minimum to $5,000 with no reference to indexing a
percentage to the Community Programs General Fund budget.” The
motion carried by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Lane, Beiers, Madrigal, Robinson;
Vice Mayor Coonerty, Mayor Rotkin.

NOES: Councilmember Mathews.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED:  None.

2.-13
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General Business (continued)

21.  Community Programs Committee -- Affirmation of Social Services
Strategic Allocation Funding Framework and Funding Principles. (CN)
(continued)

By consensus, the Council directed the Committee to explore
oversampling of the City of Santa Cruz for future Community Assessment
Project surveys.

By consensus, the Council adopted the following Funding Principles:

1. Align with the Strategic Framework by funding only programs that
directly address at least one of the Highlighted Results in the
Strategic Framework. Programs addressing more than one
Highlighted Result will be encouraged.

2. Leverage Resources by applying City funds to match Federal,
State and private funds, and by broadening the range of funding
sources.

3. Move Toward Service Collaboration by funding programs that

reduce fragmentation and promote effectiveness of existing
services through collaboration and coordination, making services
more accessible and comprehensive.

4. Promote Inclusion by funding programs and activities that are
responsive to, and reflective of, the needs of our diverse
community.

Adjournment — At 11:58 p.m., the Redevelopment Agency adjourned from the
regularly scheduled meeting of November 23, 2010 to the next regularly
scheduled meeting on December 14, 2010, for a closed litigation session at 1:30
p.m., in the Courtyard Conference Room, followed by open sessions at the
approximate hours of 3:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.

2.-14
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Adjournment — At 11:58 p.m., the City Council adjourned from the regularly
scheduled meeting of November 23, 2010, to the next regularly scheduled
meeting on December 14, 2010, for a closed litigation session at 1:30 p.m., in
the Courtyard Conference Room, followed by open sessions at the approximate
hours of 3:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.

Approved

Michael Rotkin
Chair
Attest

Bonnie Lipscomb
Executive Director

2.-15



MINUTES ARE UNOFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY COUNCIL

CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
809 Center Street
Santa Cruz, California 95060

MINUTES OF A REGULAR JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING

JANUARY 25, 2011
Closed Litigation Session
2:15 PM
At 2:23 p.m., the Presiding Officer opened the Closed Litigation session in a

public meeting in the Courtyard Conference Room, for the purpose of
announcing the agenda and considering public testimony.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR EXPRESSING CONCERNS:
Dan Vega

Mike Tomasi

Council closed the session to the public at 2:26 p.m. All Councilmembers were
present. (See page 1374 for a report on Closed Session.)

3:00 P.M. SESSION

Mayor/Chair Coonerty called the meeting to order at 3:02 p.m. in the Council
Chambers.

Roll Call

Present: Councilmembers/Members Robinson (arrived at 3:05 p.m.), Beiers,
Madrigal (arrived at 3:04 p.m.), Terrazas, Bryant; Vice Mayor/Vice
Chair Lane; Mayor/Chair Coonerty.

Absent: None.

Staff: City Manager M. Bernal, Assistant City Manager T. Shull,

Director of Finance J. Dilles, Chief of Fire R. Oliver, Director of
Human Resources L. Sullivan, Director of Parks and Recreation
D. Shoemaker, Director of Planning and Community Development
J. Rebagliati, Director of Public Works M. Dettle, Interim City Clerk
T. Graves, Records Coordinator N. Patifio.
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Pledge of Allegiance
Presiding Officer’'s Announcements

Statements of Disqualification — Councilmembers Terrazas and Bryant
abstained from voting on Items 1 and 2.

Additions and Deletions — None.
Consent Agenda
Items 1 and 2 were removed from the Consent Agenda.
Action Councilmember/Member Terrazas moved, seconded by Councilmember/
Member Madrigal, to approve the remaining items of the Consent Agenda. The

motion carried unanimously.

1. Minutes of the November 23, 2010 Reqular City Council Meeting. (CC)

Councilmembers Terrazas and Bryant abstained from acting on this item
because they were not sworn into office at the time.

Councilmember Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Beiers, to
continue this item to the meeting of February 8, 2011. The motion passed
by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal;
Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.
NOES: None.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers Terrazas, Bryant.
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Consent Agenda (continued)

Action 2. Minutes of the November 23, 2010 Reqular Redevelopment Agency
Meeting. (CC)

Members Terrazas and Bryant abstained from acting on this item because
they were not sworn into office at the time.

Vice Chair Lane moved, seconded by Member Beiers, to continue this
item to the meeting of February 8, 2011. The motion passed by the
following vote:

AYES: Members Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal; Vice Chair Lane;
Chair Coonerty.
NOES: None.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: Members Terrazas, Bryant.

3. Minutes of the January 11, 2011 Regular City Council Meeting. (CC)

Motion carried to approve as submitted.

4. Minutes of the January 11, 2011 Regular Redevelopment Agency
Meeting. (CC)

Motion carried to approve as submitted.

5. 17-D Municipal Wharf - Municipal Wharf Lease Agreement with Marshall
and Kathryn Miller. (ED)

Motion carried to authorize and direct the City Manager to execute a
Municipal Wharf Lease Agreement and any amendments thereto of a
non-substantive nature, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, with
Marshall and Kathryn Miller for the operation of a retail clothing and gift
store at 17-D Municipal Wharf.
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Consent Agenda (continued)

6.

10.

200 West CIiff Dr. #26 - Change in Inclusionary Housing Unit Status. (ED)

Motion carried to authorize and direct the City Manager to execute
documents in a form approved by the City Attorney to change the
occupancy status of an existing inclusionary unit from owner-occupied to
a unit available for rent to very low-, low-income, or Section 8 households
for a limited period of time as set forth below.

Resolution Establishing the Security Deposit Interest Rate for Residential
Rental Property. (ED)

Resolution No. NS-28,318 was adopted establishing the interest rate for
residential security deposits at 0.06% and rescinding Resolution No.
NS-28,157.

Highway 1/9 Intersection Improvements - Time Extension for Cooperative
Agreement with Caltrans for Design of Highway 1/9 Intersection
Improvements. (ED)

Motion carried to authorize the Redevelopment Agency Executive Director
to sign an amendment extending the term of the Cooperative Agreement
with Caltrans for the design of the Highway 1/9 Intersection
Improvements, including an updated map.

Liability Claims Filed Against City of Santa Cruz. (HR)

Motion carried to reject liability claim: a) Dan Barney Vega; and to deny
late claim: b) Cynthia Bentley; based on staff investigation.

Water Street Sewer Project (c4000914) — Notice of Completion. (PW)

Motion carried to accept the work of Pacific Underground Construction
Inc., San Jose, CA as completed per the plans and specifications, and
authorize the filing of the Notice of Completion for the Water Street Sewer
Project (c4000914).
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Consent Agenda (continued)

11.

12.

Utility Easement for the Pacific Avenue and Center Street Roundabout
Improvement Project (c401012), APN No. 004-311-01, Federal Project
No. ESPLE-5025(050). (PW)

Resolution No. NS-28,319 was adopted authorizing and directing the City
Manager to execute any and all documents, in a form approved by the
City Attorney, granting the Pacific Bell Telephone Company (dba AT&T
West, of Watsonville, CA) an easement for a utility pole and guy wire on
the said City-owned parcel on the 100 Block of West Cliff Drive.

Water Supply Project — Sole Source Hydraulic Modeling Services - Award
of Contract. (WT)

Motion carried to authorize the City Manager to execute a sole source
agreement with Akel Engineering Group, Inc. (Fresno, CA) in the amount
of $118,370 for the evaluation of water supply delivery alternatives to
Soquel Creek Water District for the proposed scwd2 Regional Seawater
(SWRO) Desalination Project.

End Consent Agenda
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General Business

13. Jack O’Neill’s “Surf Shop” — Application for California Point of Historical
Interest. (CN)

This item was considered out of agenda order.

Action Councilmember Terrazas moved, seconded by Vice Mayor Lane, to direct
and authorize staff to facilitate, with involvement of community partners
and the Historic Preservation Commission, the review, investigation and
completion of an application supporting the designation of the former
Beach Street site of Jack O’'Neill’'s “Surf Shop” as a California Point of
Historical Interest, and, to recognize Jack O’Neill for his innumerable
contributions to the culture, economic vitality and environmental
stewardship of the City of Santa Cruz and the Monterey Bay Marine
Sanctuary. The motion carried unanimously.

14. Resolution Opposing the Governor’'s Budget Proposal to Abolish
California Redevelopment Agencies. (ED)

Director of Economic Development and Redevelopment
B. Lipscomb presented an oral report and responded to Council’s
questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR EXPRESSING SUPPORT:

Paul Brindel Jeremy Neuner
Bill Tysseling Nirvikar Singh
Lisa Utall Colin Mark Griffin
Chris Miller Peggy Dolgenos
Teresa Tomei Deborah Elston
Steve Sheldon William Ow

Chip

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR EXPRESSING OPPOSITION:

Brad Snyder
Mike Tomasi
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General Business (continued)

14.

15.

Resolution Opposing the Governor’s Budget Proposal to Abolish
California Redevelopment Agencies. (ED) (continued)

Vice Mayor Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Terrazas, to adopt
Resolution No. NS-28,320 opposing Governor Brown’s budget proposal to
abolish California Redevelopment Agencies, and to include local
examples in a cover letter to the Governor. The motion carried
unanimously.

Arts Commission Appointments and/or Reappointment—(One Possible
Reappointment, with a Term Expiration of 1/1/15 and Three Vacancies,
One with a Term Expiration of 1/14 and Two with Term Expirations of

1/1/15) (CC)

Councilmember Robinson nominated Christine Currie.

Councilmember Terrazas nominated Patrick Haywood, Trink Praxel, and
Nina Simon for appointment, and Lorri Kershner for reappointment.

Voting for Christine Currie: Councilmember Robinson.

Voting for Patrick Haywood: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Lorri Kershner: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Trink Praxel: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Nina Simon: Councilmembers Beiers, Terrazas, Bryant; Vice
Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Councilmember Madrigal temporarily left the meeting and did not vote.

Lorri Kershner was reappointed to a term ending 1/1/15. Patrick Haywood
and Trink Praxel were appointed to terms ending 1/1/15. Nina Simon was
appointed to a term ending 1/1/14.
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16.
Action

17.
Action

18.
Action

Board of Building and Fire Appeals Appointments (Six Possible
Reappointments, with Term Expirations of 1/1/15) (CC)

Vice Mayor Lane nominated for reappointment Foster Andersen, William
Bagnall, Gary Fusari, Thomas Kern, Joseph Quigg, and Patrick Spilitt.

Foster Andersen, William Bagnall, Gary Fusari, Thomas Kern, Joseph
Quigg, and Patrick Splitt were reappointed by unanimous vote.

Commission for the Prevention of Violence Against Women Appointments
— (Three Vacancies and/or Possible Reappointments, Councilmember
Robinson’s, Terrazas’, and Bryant's Nominations, All with Term
Expirations of 1/1/15) (CC)

Councilmember Bryant nominated Patricia Ann Christie for reappointment.
Councilmember Robinson nominated Maria L. Leon for reappointment.
Councilmember Terrazas nominated Kathryn Tobisch for reappointment.

Patricia Ann Christie, Maria L. Leon and Kathryn Tobisch were
reappointed by unanimous vote.

Downtown Commission Appointments (One Possible Reappointment and
One Vacancy, Both with Term Expirations of 1/1/15) (CC)

Councilmember Terrazas nominated Karl Rice for appointment, and June
Hoffman for reappointment.

Councilmember Beiers nominated David Stearns for appointment.

Voting for Carl Rice: Councilmembers Robinson, Terrazas, Bryant; Vice
Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for David Stearns: Councilmembers Beiers, Madrigal.

Voting for June Hoffman: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Terrazas, Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Karl Rice was appointed, and June Hoffman was reappointed.
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General Business (continued)

19.

20.

Equal Employment Opportunity Committee Appointment (One Vacancy,
with a Term Expiration of 6/30/13) (CC)

Councilmember Robinson nominated Hollis Walton for appointment.
Hollis Walton was appointed by unanimous vote.

Historic Preservation Commission Appointment (One Possible
Reappointment, with a Term Expiration of 1/1/15) (CC)

Councilmember Beiers nominated Judith Steen for reappointment.

Judith Steen was reappointed by unanimous vote.
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General Business (continued)

21.

Parks and Recreation Commission Appointments (One Possible

Reappointment, and Two Vacancies, One with a Term Expiration of

1/1/15 and One with a Term Expiration of 1/1/13) (CC)

Councilmember Bryant nominated Lars Shallberg and Brian Smith for
appointment, and Richard Andrews for reappointment.

Councilmember Terrazas nominated Debra Feldstein and Maria Gaura for
appointment.

Voting for Richard Andrews: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Terrazas, Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Debra Feldstein: Councilmembers Beiers, Madrigal, Terrazas;
Vice Mayor Lane.

Voting for Maria Gaura: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Terrazas; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Lars Shallberg: Councilmember Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane.

Voting for Brian Smith: Councilmembers Robinson, Bryant; Vice Mayor
Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

After a tie between Debra Feldstein and Brian Smith:

Voting for Brian Smith: Councilmembers Robinson, Terrazas, Bryant;
Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Maria Gaura was appointed to a term expiring 1/1/15, and Brian Smith
was appointed to a term expiring 1/1/13. Richard Andrews was
reappointed.

3.-10
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General Business (continued)

22.

23.

Planning Commission Appointments (One Possible Reappointment and
One Vacancy, Both with Term Expiration of 1/1/15) (CC)

Vice Mayor Lane nominated Tim Goncharoff for appointment.

Councilmember Robinson nominated Pete Kennedy for appointment, and
Judy Warner for reappointment.

Councilmember Beiers nominated Ron Pomerantz for appointment.
Voting for Tim Goncharoff: Vice Mayor Lane.

Voting for Pete Kennedy: Councilmembers Robinson, Terrazas, Bryant;
Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Ron Pomerantz: Councilmembers Beiers, Madrigal.

Voting for Judy Warner: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Terrazas, Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Pete Kennedy was appointed, and Judy Warner was reappointed.

Sister Cities Committee Appointments (One Possible Reappointment, with
a Term Expiration of 1/1/15, and Three Vacancies, Two with Term
Expirations of 1/1/15, and One with a Term Expiration of 1/1/13) (CC)

Councilmember Beiers nominated Enda Brennan and Nancy Eidam for
appointment, and Raisa Kikteva for reappointment.

Councilmember Madrigal nominated Ofelia Gomez for appointment.

Voting for Enda Brennan: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Nancy Eidam: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Ofelia Gomez: Councilmembers Beiers, Madrigal.

Voting for Raisa Kikteva: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Terrazas, Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Enda Brennan and Nancy Eidam were appointed to terms ending 1/1/15,
and Raisa Kikteva was reappointed.

3.-11
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General Business (continued)

24.

25.

Transportation and Public Works Commission Appointment (One Possible
Reappointment, with a Term Expiration of 1/1/15) (CC)

Councilmember Robinson nominated Kris Reyes for appointment.
Councilmember Beiers nominated Reed Searle for appointment.
Councilmember Terrazas nominated Tim Sylvester for appointment.

Voting for Kris Reyes: Councilmembers Robinson, Bryant; Mayor
Coonerty.

Voting for Reed Searle: Councilmembers Beiers; Vice Mayor Lane.
Voting for Tim Sylvester: Councilmembers Terrazas, Madrigal.

No individual received a majority of the votes, and Councilmember
Terrazas changed his vote for Kris Reyes.

Kris Reyes was appointed.

Water Commission Appointment (One Opening, with a Term Expiration of

1/1/18) (CC)

Councilmember Beiers nominated Andrew Schiffrin.

Vice Mayor Lane nominated Anne M. Turner.

Voting for Andrew Schiffrin: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Anne M. Turner: Councilmember Madrigal; Vice Mayor Lane.

Andrew Schiffrin was appointed.

3.-12
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General Business (continued)

26.

27.

Council Meeting Calendar.

The City Council reviewed the meeting calendar attached to the agenda
and revised as necessary. For the Study Session of February 1, 2011, the
Closed Session will begin at 6:00 p.m. The Council retreat is set for
February 25, 2011 and Capital Improvement Program Hearings (CIP) will
occur on April 5, 2011 at 7:00 p.m.

City Attorney Oral Report on Closed Session.

A. Conference with Legal Counsel — Liability Claims (Government
Code §54956.95).

1. Claimant: Dan Barney Vega
2. Claimant: Cynthia Bentley

Claims Against: City of Santa Cruz.
Claim 1 was discussed. Claim 2 was not discussed.

B. Conference With Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation (Government
Code §54956.9).

1. Community Water Coalition v. City of Santa Cruz, et al.
Santa Cruz County Superior Court Case No.: CV167407

2. Habitat and Watershed Caretakers v. City of Santa Cruz, et al.
Santa Cruz County Superior Court Case No.: CV168697

These items were not discussed.

3.-13
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28.

Council Memberships in City Groups and QOutside Agencies.

The Presiding Officer provided Councilmembers with the opportunity to
update Council and the public regarding City Groups and Outside
Agencies.

Vice Mayor Lane clarified that as a member of LAFCO he represents all
the cities in Santa Cruz County and not just the City of Santa Cruz.
Additionally, Vice Mayor Lane updated Councilmembers on his
attendance at meetings addressing gang prevention and youth violence
prevention activities.

Councilmember Robinson made reference to the Open House for the
Conference and Visitors Council, which was well-attended. Additionally,
as board representative of the Farmer’'s Market she encouraged the public
to attend and support local farmers.

Mayor Coonerty invited the public to attend the Gail Rich Awards on
January 26, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. at the Rio Theater. Mayor Coonerty also
encouraged the public to attend the What’s Next Lecture Series on
January 29, 2011, and the Martin Luther King Convocation on January 31,
2011. Mayor Coonerty also spoke regarding his attendance, along with
Councilmember Bryant, at a meeting with the City Schools District
encouraging safety and saving money by sharing services. Lastly, Mayor
Coonerty spoke about his attendance to the U.S. Conference of Mayors in
Washington D.C.

Councilmember Madrigal updated Councilmembers on the activities of the

Latino/a Elected Officials Conference, and said the next meeting is
scheduled for February 5, 2011 in Greenfield.

3.-14



1376

JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
JANUARY 25, 2011

3:00 P.M. SESSION

Public Hearing

29. Final Adoption - Ordinance No. 2011-01 - Amending Sections 10.52.210,
10.52.220, 10.52.230, 10.52.240, 10.52.310, 10.52.320, 10.52.410,
10.52.420 and Establishing Sections 10.52.215, 10.52.315, and
10.52.425 of the Santa Cruz Municipal Code Regarding the Setting of
Parking Meter Rates. (PW)

Mayor Coonerty opened the public hearing at 4:55 p.m.

Director of Public Works M. Dettle presented an oral report and
responded to Council’s questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR EXPRESSING OPPOSTION AND/OR
EXPRESSING CONCERNS:

Mike Tomasi
Mayor Coonerty closed the public hearing at 5:01 p.m.
Action Vice Mayor Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Madrigal,
to pass Ordinance No. 2011-01 for final adoption. The motion carried

unanimously.

At 5:03 p.m. the Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency recessed to
the 5:30 p.m. session.
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JOINT CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
5:30 PM SESSION

Mayor/Chair Coonerty reconvened the meeting at 5:32 p.m. in the Council
Chambers.

Roll Call

Present: Councilmembers/Members Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal, Terrazas,
Bryant, Mayor/Chair Coonerty.

Absent: Vice Mayor/Vice Chair Lane.

Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Oral Communications

Mike Tomasi encouraged Council to honor veterans.

Recess - At 5:36 p.m., the City Council recessed to the 7:00 p.m. session.
Adjournment — At 5:36 p.m., the Redevelopment Agency adjourned from the
regularly scheduled meeting of January 25, 2011 to the next regularly scheduled
meeting on February 8, 2011, for a closed litigation session at 1:30 p.m., in the

Courtyard Conference Room, followed by open sessions at the approximate hours of
3:00 p.m., 5:30 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.
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CITY COUNCIL MEETING

7:00 PM SESSION

Mayor Coonerty called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. in Council Chambers.

Roll Call

Present: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal, Terrazas, Bryant;
Mayor Coonerty.

Absent: Vice Mayor Lane.

Staff: City Manager M. Bernal, City Attorney J. Barisone, Director of

Economic Development and Redevelopment B. Lipscomb,
Chief of Police K. Vogel, Interim City Clerk T. Graves, Records
Coordinator N. Patifio.

Presentation - Natural History Museum - Patty Quillen and Dan Harder.

General Business

30. Guiding Principles for Labor Negotiations. (HR)

Director of Human Resources L. Sullivan presented an oral report and
responded to Council’s questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR EXPRESSING OPPOSITION:

Mike Connor
Doris Henry, SEIU
Anna Brooks

Jim Heaney

John Gilbert, SEIU
Nancy Elliot

Peter Petoe

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR EXPRESSING SUPPORT:

Brad Snyder
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General Business (continued)

30. Guiding Principles for Labor Negotiations. (HR) (continued)

Action Vice Mayor Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Beiers, to reaffirm
the Principles on Budget Challenges Related to Pension Costs, with the
deletion of the fourth bullet, which reads: “Current City retirement benefits
exceed what most private sector employees receive and therefore are
higher than necessary to attract employees.”

Action Councilmember Madrigal moved, seconded by Councilmember Beiers,
to amend the main motion to remove the sentence in the third bullet
in the Principles on Budget Challenges Related to Pension Costs, which
reads: “...diverting significant resources away from direct services to the
community.” The motion carried unanimously.

Councilmember Madrigal moved, seconded by Councilmember Beiers.
to amend the main motion to remove the sentence in the third bullet in
the Principles on Budget Challenges Related to Pension Costs, which
reads: “Current trends show that retirement costs are rising well beyond
our ability to fund them and diverting significant resources away from
direct services to the community.” The motion FAILED by the following

vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Beiers, Madrigal.

NOES: Councilmembers Robinson, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED: None.

Councilmember Madrigal moved to amend the main motion to remove
the sentence in the sixth bullet in the Principles on Budget Challenges
Related to Pension Costs, which reads, “The City’s effort will include
pursuit of both an increase in employee contributions to the Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS) and a new tier of retirement
benefits for newly hired employees.”

The motion failed for lack of a second.
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General Business (continued)

30.

Guiding Principles for Labor Negotiations. (HR) (continued)

Vice Mayor Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Bryant, to
amend the main motion to remove the portion of the sentence
“...diverting significant resources away from direct services to the
community“ and to add, “...compete with other services in the
community.” to the third bullet in the Principles on Budget Challenges
Related to Pension Costs. The motion carried by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

NOES: Councilmember Madrigal.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED:  None.

The main motion, as amended, carried unanimously.

Vice Mayor Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Robinson, to
approve the Ground Rules Guidelines for Labor Negotiations, amended
as follows:

To remove the sentence in Rule #2 in the Guidelines for Labor
Negotiations, which reads: “The best strategy is to limit meetings and
discussions to topics not related to labor negotiations” and change the
next sentence, which reads: “If bargaining unit representatives introduce
topics related to negotiations, Councilmembers will listen but not respond
to or ask questions about the negotiations topic” to “If bargaining unit
representatives introduce topics related to negotiations, Councilmembers
will listen but not negotiate.” The motion carried unanimously.

Councilmember Madrigal moved, seconded by Councilmember Beiers,
to amend the main motion to remove Rule #5 from the Ground Rules
Guidelines for Labor Negotiations. The motion FAILED by the following
vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Beiers, Madrigal.

NOES: Councilmembers Robinson, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

ABSENT: None.

DISQUALIFIED:  None.
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General Business (continued)

30. Guiding Principles for Labor Negotiations. (HR) (continued)

Councilmember Madrigal moved to amend the main motion to remove to
remove the sentence in Rule #2 of the Ground Rules Guidelines for Labor
Negotiations, which reads: “If bargaining unit representatives introduce
topics related to negotiations, Councilmembers will not negotiate. Direct
dealing with bargaining unit employees could expose the City to a
violation of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA) and an unfair labor
practice charge with the Public Employment Relation Board (PERB).”

The motion FAILED for lack of a second.

Action Vice Mayor Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Robinson, to
amend the main motion to change Ground Rules Guidelines for Labor
Negotiations to Guidelines fro Labor Negotiations and change Rule #5
to read, “It is recommended that Councilmembers meet in pairs with
bargaining unit representatives” and change Rule #3 to read, “Each
closed session on negotiations will include a standing item to provide
Councilmembers the opportunity to report the content of meetings and
communications from bargaining units.” The motion carried by the
following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.
NOES: Councilmember Madrigal.
ABSENT: None.
DISQUALIFIED:  None
Action The main motion, as amended, carried unanimously.
Action Councilmember Beiers moved, seconded by Councilmember Terrazas, to

adopt the Principles for Labor Negotiations. The motion carried
unanimously.
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Adjournment — At 8:29 p.m. the City Council adjourned from the regularly
scheduled meeting of January 25, 2011, to a Special Study Session on February
1, 2011, for a closed litigation session at 6:00 p.m. in the Courtyard Conference
Room, followed by an open session at the approximate hour of 7:00 p.m. in
Council Chambers.

Respectfully submitted

Nydia Patifio
Records Coordinator

Tom Graves
Interim City Clerk

Approved

Ryan Coonerty
Mayor
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MINUTES ARE UNOFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY COUNCIL

CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
809 Center Street
Santa Cruz, California 95060

MINUTES OF A REGULAR REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
JANUARY 25, 2011

3:00 P.M. SESSION

Mayor/Chair Coonerty called the meeting to order at 3:02 p.m. in the Council
Chambers.

Roll Call

Present: Councilmembers/Members Robinson (arrived at 3:05 p.m.), Beiers,
Madrigal (arrived at 3:04 p.m.), Terrazas, Bryant; Vice Mayor/Vice
Chair Lane; Mayor/Chair Coonerty.

Absent: None.

Staff: City Manager M. Bernal, Assistant City Manager T. Shull,

Director of Finance J. Dilles, Chief of Fire R. Oliver, Director of
Human Resources L. Sullivan, Director of Parks and Recreation
D. Shoemaker, Director of Planning and Community Development
J. Rebagliati, Director of Public Works M. Dettle, Interim City Clerk
T. Graves, Records Coordinator N. Patifio.

Pledge of Allegiance
Presiding Officer’'s Announcements

Statements of Disqualification — Councilmembers Terrazas and Bryant
abstained from voting on Items 1 and 2.

Additions and Deletions — None.
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Consent Agenda

Items 1 and 2 were removed from the Consent Agenda.
Councilmember/Member Terrazas moved, seconded by Councilmember/
Member Madrigal, to approve the remaining items of the Consent Agenda. The

motion carried unanimously.

1. Minutes of the November 23, 2010 Reqular City Council Meeting. (CC)

Councilmembers Terrazas and Bryant abstained from acting on this item
because they were not sworn into office at the time.

Councilmember Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Beiers, to
continue this item to the meeting of February 8, 2011. The motion passed
by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.
NOES: None.

ABSENT:  None.
ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers Terrazas, Bryant.
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Consent Agenda (continued)

Action 2. Minutes of the November 23, 2010 Reqular Redevelopment Agency
Meeting. (CC)

Members Terrazas and Bryant abstained from acting on this item because
they were not sworn into office at the time.

Vice Chair Lane moved, seconded by Member Beiers, to continue this
item to the meeting of February 8, 2011. The motion passed by the
following vote:

AYES: Members Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal; Vice Chair Lane;
Chair Coonerty.
NOES: None.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: Members Terrazas, Bryant.

3. Minutes of the January 11, 2011 Regular City Council Meeting. (CC)

Motion carried to approve as submitted.

4. Minutes of the January 11, 2011 Regular Redevelopment Agency
Meeting. (CC)

Motion carried to approve as submitted.

5. 17-D Municipal Wharf - Municipal Wharf Lease Agreement with Marshall
and Kathryn Miller. (ED)

Motion carried to authorize and direct the City Manager to execute a
Municipal Wharf Lease Agreement and any amendments thereto of a
non-substantive nature, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, with
Marshall and Kathryn Miller for the operation of a retail clothing and gift
store at 17-D Municipal Wharf.
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Consent Agenda (continued)

6.

10.

200 West CIiff Dr. #26 - Change in Inclusionary Housing Unit Status. (ED)

Motion carried to authorize and direct the City Manager to execute
documents in a form approved by the City Attorney to change the
occupancy status of an existing inclusionary unit from owner-occupied to
a unit available for rent to very low-, low-income, or Section 8 households
for a limited period of time as set forth below.

Resolution Establishing the Security Deposit Interest Rate for Residential
Rental Property. (ED)

Resolution No. NS-28,318 was adopted establishing the interest rate for
residential security deposits at 0.06% and rescinding Resolution No.
NS-28,157.

Highway 1/9 Intersection Improvements - Time Extension for Cooperative
Agreement with Caltrans for Design of Highway 1/9 Intersection
Improvements. (ED)

Motion carried to authorize the Redevelopment Agency Executive Director
to sign an amendment extending the term of the Cooperative Agreement
with Caltrans for the design of the Highway 1/9 Intersection
Improvements, including an updated map.

Liability Claims Filed Against City of Santa Cruz. (HR)

Motion carried to reject liability claim: a) Dan Barney Vega; and to deny
late claim: b) Cynthia Bentley; based on staff investigation.

Water Street Sewer Project (c4000914) — Notice of Completion. (PW)

Motion carried to accept the work of Pacific Underground Construction
Inc., San Jose, CA as completed per the plans and specifications, and
authorize the filing of the Notice of Completion for the Water Street Sewer
Project (c4000914).
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Consent Agenda (continued)

11.

12.

Utility Easement for the Pacific Avenue and Center Street Roundabout
Improvement Project (c401012), APN No. 004-311-01, Federal Project
No. ESPLE-5025(050). (PW)

Resolution No. NS-28,319 was adopted authorizing and directing the City
Manager to execute any and all documents, in a form approved by the
City Attorney, granting the Pacific Bell Telephone Company (dba AT&T
West, of Watsonville, CA) an easement for a utility pole and guy wire on
the said City-owned parcel on the 100 Block of West Cliff Drive.

Water Supply Project — Sole Source Hydraulic Modeling Services - Award
of Contract. (WT)

Motion carried to authorize the City Manager to execute a sole source
agreement with Akel Engineering Group, Inc. (Fresno, CA) in the amount
of $118,370 for the evaluation of water supply delivery alternatives to
Soquel Creek Water District for the proposed scwd2 Regional Seawater
(SWRO) Desalination Project.

End Consent Agenda
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General Business

13. Jack O’Neill’s “Surf Shop” — Application for California Point of Historical
Interest. (CN)

This item was considered out of agenda order.

Action Councilmember Terrazas moved, seconded by Vice Mayor Lane, to direct
and authorize staff to facilitate, with involvement of community partners
and the Historic Preservation Commission, the review, investigation and
completion of an application supporting the designation of the former
Beach Street site of Jack O’'Neill’'s “Surf Shop” as a California Point of
Historical Interest, and, to recognize Jack O’Neill for his innumerable
contributions to the culture, economic vitality and environmental
stewardship of the City of Santa Cruz and the Monterey Bay Marine
Sanctuary. The motion carried unanimously.

14. Resolution Opposing the Governor’'s Budget Proposal to Abolish
California Redevelopment Agencies. (ED)

Director of Economic Development and Redevelopment
B. Lipscomb presented an oral report and responded to Council’s
questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR EXPRESSING SUPPORT:

Paul Brindel Jeremy Neuner
Bill Tysseling Nirvikar Singh
Lisa Utall Colin Mark Griffin
Chris Miller Peggy Dolgenos
Teresa Tomei Deborah Elston
Steve Sheldon William Ow

Chip

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR EXPRESSING OPPOSITION:

Brad Snyder
Mike Tomasi
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General Business (continued)

14.

15.

Resolution Opposing the Governor’s Budget Proposal to Abolish
California Redevelopment Agencies. (ED) (continued)

Vice Mayor Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Terrazas, to adopt
Resolution No. NS-28,320 opposing Governor Brown’s budget proposal to
abolish California Redevelopment Agencies, and to include local
examples in a cover letter to the Governor. The motion carried
unanimously.

Arts Commission Appointments and/or Reappointment—(One Possible
Reappointment, with a Term Expiration of 1/1/15 and Three Vacancies,
One with a Term Expiration of 1/14 and Two with Term Expirations of

1/1/15) (CC)

Councilmember Robinson nominated Christine Currie.

Councilmember Terrazas nominated Patrick Haywood, Trink Praxel, and
Nina Simon for appointment, and Lorri Kershner for reappointment.

Voting for Christine Currie: Councilmember Robinson.

Voting for Patrick Haywood: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Lorri Kershner: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Trink Praxel: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Nina Simon: Councilmembers Beiers, Terrazas, Bryant; Vice
Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Councilmember Madrigal temporarily left the meeting and did not vote.

Lorri Kershner was reappointed to a term ending 1/1/15. Patrick Haywood
and Trink Praxel were appointed to terms ending 1/1/15. Nina Simon was
appointed to a term ending 1/1/14.
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General Business (continued)

16.
Action

17.
Action

18.
Action

Board of Building and Fire Appeals Appointments (Six Possible
Reappointments, with Term Expirations of 1/1/15) (CC)

Vice Mayor Lane nominated for reappointment Foster Andersen, William
Bagnall, Gary Fusari, Thomas Kern, Joseph Quigg, and Patrick Spilitt.

Foster Andersen, William Bagnall, Gary Fusari, Thomas Kern, Joseph
Quigg, and Patrick Splitt were reappointed by unanimous vote.

Commission for the Prevention of Violence Against Women Appointments
— (Three Vacancies and/or Possible Reappointments, Councilmember
Robinson’s, Terrazas’, and Bryant's Nominations, All with Term
Expirations of 1/1/15) (CC)

Councilmember Bryant nominated Patricia Ann Christie for reappointment.
Councilmember Robinson nominated Maria L. Leon for reappointment.
Councilmember Terrazas nominated Kathryn Tobisch for reappointment.

Patricia Ann Christie, Maria L. Leon and Kathryn Tobisch were
reappointed by unanimous vote.

Downtown Commission Appointments (One Possible Reappointment and
One Vacancy, Both with Term Expirations of 1/1/15) (CC)

Councilmember Terrazas nominated Karl Rice for appointment, and June
Hoffman for reappointment.

Councilmember Beiers nominated David Stearns for appointment.

Voting for Carl Rice: Councilmembers Robinson, Terrazas, Bryant; Vice
Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for David Stearns: Councilmembers Beiers, Madrigal.

Voting for June Hoffman: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Terrazas, Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Karl Rice was appointed, and June Hoffman was reappointed.
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General Business (continued)

19.

20.

Equal Employment Opportunity Committee Appointment (One Vacancy,
with a Term Expiration of 6/30/13) (CC)

Councilmember Robinson nominated Hollis Walton for appointment.
Hollis Walton was appointed by unanimous vote.

Historic Preservation Commission Appointment (One Possible
Reappointment, with a Term Expiration of 1/1/15) (CC)

Councilmember Beiers nominated Judith Steen for reappointment.

Judith Steen was reappointed by unanimous vote.
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General Business (continued)

21.

Parks and Recreation Commission Appointments (One Possible
Reappointment, and Two Vacancies, One with a Term Expiration of
1/1/15 and One with a Term Expiration of 1/1/13) (CC)

Councilmember Bryant nominated Lars Shallberg and Brian Smith for
appointment, and Richard Andrews for reappointment.

Councilmember Terrazas nominated Debra Feldstein and Maria Gaura for
appointment.

Voting for Richard Andrews: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Terrazas, Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Debra Feldstein: Councilmembers Beiers, Madrigal, Terrazas;
Vice Mayor Lane.

Voting for Maria Gaura: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Terrazas; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Lars Shallberg: Councilmember Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane.

Voting for Brian Smith: Councilmembers Robinson, Bryant; Vice Mayor
Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

After a tie between Debra Feldstein and Brian Smith:

Voting for Brian Smith: Councilmembers Robinson, Terrazas, Bryant;
Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Maria Gaura was appointed to a term expiring 1/1/15, and Brian Smith
was appointed to a term expiring 1/1/13. Richard Andrews was
reappointed.
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General Business (continued)

22.

23.

Planning Commission Appointments (One Possible Reappointment and
One Vacancy, Both with Term Expiration of 1/1/15) (CC)

Vice Mayor Lane nominated Tim Goncharoff for appointment.

Councilmember Robinson nominated Pete Kennedy for appointment, and
Judy Warner for reappointment.

Councilmember Beiers nominated Ron Pomerantz for appointment.
Voting for Tim Goncharoff: Vice Mayor Lane.

Voting for Pete Kennedy: Councilmembers Robinson, Terrazas, Bryant;
Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Ron Pomerantz: Councilmembers Beiers, Madrigal.

Voting for Judy Warner: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Terrazas, Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Pete Kennedy was appointed, and Judy Warner was reappointed.

Sister Cities Committee Appointments (One Possible Reappointment, with
a Term Expiration of 1/1/15, and Three Vacancies, Two with Term
Expirations of 1/1/15, and One with a Term Expiration of 1/1/13) (CC)

Councilmember Beiers nominated Enda Brennan and Nancy Eidam for
appointment, and Raisa Kikteva for reappointment.

Councilmember Madrigal nominated Ofelia Gomez for appointment.

Voting for Enda Brennan: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Nancy Eidam: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Ofelia Gomez: Councilmembers Beiers, Madrigal.

Voting for Raisa Kikteva: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal,
Terrazas, Bryant; Vice Mayor Lane; Mayor Coonerty.

Enda Brennan and Nancy Eidam were appointed to terms ending 1/1/15,
and Raisa Kikteva was reappointed.
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General Business (continued)

24.

25.

Transportation and Public Works Commission Appointment (One Possible
Reappointment, with a Term Expiration of 1/1/15) (CC)

Councilmember Robinson nominated Kris Reyes for appointment.
Councilmember Beiers nominated Reed Searle for appointment.
Councilmember Terrazas nominated Tim Sylvester for appointment.

Voting for Kris Reyes: Councilmembers Robinson, Bryant; Mayor
Coonerty.

Voting for Reed Searle: Councilmembers Beiers; Vice Mayor Lane.
Voting for Tim Sylvester: Councilmembers Terrazas, Madrigal.

No individual received a majority of the votes, and Councilmember
Terrazas changed his vote for Kris Reyes.

Kris Reyes was appointed.

Water Commission Appointment (One Opening, with a Term Expiration of

1/1/18) (CC)

Councilmember Beiers nominated Andrew Schiffrin.

Vice Mayor Lane nominated Anne M. Turner.

Voting for Andrew Schiffrin: Councilmembers Robinson, Beiers, Terrazas,
Bryant; Mayor Coonerty.

Voting for Anne M. Turner: Councilmember Madrigal; Vice Mayor Lane.

Andrew Schiffrin was appointed.
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General Business (continued)

26.

27.

Council Meeting Calendar.

The City Council reviewed the meeting calendar attached to the agenda
and revised as necessary. For the Study Session of February 1, 2011, the
Closed Session will begin at 6:00 p.m. The Council retreat is set for
February 25, 2011 and Capital Improvement Program Hearings (CIP) will
occur on April 5, 2011 at 7:00 p.m.

City Attorney Oral Report on Closed Session.

A. Conference with Legal Counsel — Liability Claims (Government
Code §54956.95).

1. Claimant: Dan Barney Vega
2. Claimant: Cynthia Bentley

Claims Against: City of Santa Cruz.
Claim 1 was discussed. Claim 2 was not discussed.

B. Conference With Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation (Government
Code §54956.9).

1. Community Water Coalition v. City of Santa Cruz, et al.
Santa Cruz County Superior Court Case No.: CV167407

2. Habitat and Watershed Caretakers v. City of Santa Cruz, et al.
Santa Cruz County Superior Court Case No.: CV168697

These items were not discussed.
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General Business (continued)

28.

Council Memberships in City Groups and QOutside Agencies.

The Presiding Officer provided Councilmembers with the opportunity to
update Council and the public regarding City Groups and Outside
Agencies.

Vice Mayor Lane clarified that as a member of LAFCO he represents all
the cities in Santa Cruz County and not just the City of Santa Cruz.
Additionally, Vice Mayor Lane updated Councilmembers on his
attendance at meetings addressing gang prevention and youth violence
prevention activities.

Councilmember Robinson made reference to the Open House for the
Conference and Visitors Council, which was well-attended. Additionally,
as board representative of the Farmer’'s Market she encouraged the public
to attend and support local farmers.

Mayor Coonerty invited the public to attend the Gail Rich Awards on
January 26, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. at the Rio Theater. Mayor Coonerty also
encouraged the public to attend the What’s Next Lecture Series on
January 29, 2011, and the Martin Luther King Convocation on January 31,
2011. Mayor Coonerty also spoke regarding his attendance, along with
Councilmember Bryant, at a meeting with the City Schools District
encouraging safety and saving money by sharing services. Lastly, Mayor
Coonerty spoke about his attendance to the U.S. Conference of Mayors in
Washington D.C.

Councilmember Madrigal updated Councilmembers on the activities of the
Latino/a Elected Officials Conference, and said the next meeting is
scheduled for February 5, 2011 in Greenfield.
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Public Hearing

29. Final Adoption - Ordinance No. 2011-01 - Amending Sections 10.52.210,
10.52.220, 10.52.230, 10.52.240, 10.52.310, 10.52.320, 10.52.410,
10.52.420 and Establishing Sections 10.52.215, 10.52.315, and
10.52.425 of the Santa Cruz Municipal Code Regarding the Setting of
Parking Meter Rates. (PW)

Mayor Coonerty opened the public hearing at 4:55 p.m.

Director of Public Works M. Dettle presented an oral report and
responded to Council’s questions.

SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR EXPRESSING OPPOSTION AND/OR
EXPRESSING CONCERNS:

Mike Tomasi
Mayor Coonerty closed the public hearing at 5:01 p.m.
Action Vice Mayor Lane moved, seconded by Councilmember Madrigal,
to pass Ordinance No. 2011-01 for final adoption. The motion carried

unanimously.

At 5:03 p.m. the Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency recessed to
the 5:30 p.m. session.
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JOINT CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
5:30 PM SESSION

Mayor/Chair Coonerty reconvened the meeting at 5:32 p.m. in the Council
Chambers.

Roll Call

Present: Councilmembers/Members Robinson, Beiers, Madrigal, Terrazas,
Bryant, Mayor/Chair Coonerty.

Absent: Vice Mayor/Vice Chair Lane.

Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Oral Communications

Mike Tomasi encouraged Council to honor veterans.

Recess - At 5:36 p.m., the City Council recessed to the 7:00 p.m. session.
Adjournment — At 5:36 p.m., the Redevelopment Agency adjourned from the
regularly scheduled meeting of January 25, 2011 to the next regularly scheduled
meeting on February 8, 2011, for a closed litigation session at 1:30 p.m., in the

Courtyard Conference Room, followed by open sessions at the approximate hours of
3:00 p.m., 5:30 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.

Approved

Ryan Coonerty
Chair

Attest

Bonnie Lipscomb
Executive Director
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DATE: 2/1/2011
AGENDA OF: 2/8/2011

DEPARTMENT: City Council

SUBJECT: California Gray Whale — Resolution of Support. (CN)

RECOMMENDATION: Resolution in support of the California Gray Whale and urging
continued Federal protection and attention to this threatened species.

BACKGROUND: The California Gray Whale is a species hovering on the cusp of endangerment
but is without the fundamental protections of the U.S. Endangered Species Act. In 1970, with a
population estimated at only 12,000, the California Gray Whale was added to the Federal
Endangered Species list. In 1994, however, with the count at about 23,000 the California Gray
Whale was removed from the list. The whale is currently not classified as an endangered species.

The most current California Gray Whale population counts from 2006/2007 are approximately
18,000, which should trigger reclassification of the California Gray Whale as an endangered
species. Past population counts at this level commanded this protection. The Federal
government most recently undertook an abundance estimate in 2009/2010 but the results of this
count have not yet been released.

DISCUSSION: Environmental factors such as climate change and a lack of protections afforded
to endangered species place the future of the California Gray Whale in peril.

The California Gray Whale Coalition (www.californiagraywhalecoalition.org) requested that the
City Council consider this resolution supporting the California Gray Whale and calling for
continued Federal assistance to monitor and protect the species. The resolution calls for Federal
prioritization of this species via the release of the 2009/2010 abundance counts and reinvestment
of resources into the National Marine & Fisheries Service to undertake a threat assessment.

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact.

Submitted by: Submitted by:
Ryan Coonerty David Terrazas
Mayor Councilmember
ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution

California Gray Whale Coalition Fact Sheet



RESOLUTION NO. NS-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
SUPPORTING THE CALIFORNIA GRAY WHALE AND URGING CONTINUED
FEDERAL PROTECTION AND ATTENTION FOR THIS THREATENED SPECIES

WHEREAS, the federal government placed the California Gray Whale on the endangered
and threatened species list in 1970 when its estimated population was approximately 12,000 and
removed it in 1994 when the population rose to 23,000; and

WHEREAS, a major collapse in 1999 and 2000 is estimated to have wiped out one-third of
the total population of California Gray Whales; and

WHEREAS, whale watching tourism largely generated by the California Gray Whale
contributes more than $82 million dollars to the California economy; and

WHEREAS, in 2008 the California State Legislature adopted Assembly Joint Resolution 49
requesting Congress and the President of the United States to call upon the National Marine &
Fisheries Service to undertake an immediate and comprehensive assessment of the California
Gray Whale; and

WHEREAS, National Marine & Fisheries in 2009/2010 conducted the first proper abundance
estimate since 2001/2002 and will carry out another abundance estimate in 2010/2011; and

WHEREAS, the results of the 2009/2010 abundance estimate will not be available for at least
a year or more; and

WHEREAS, the recent migration season demonstrated the fourth consecutive year of very
low cow/calf counts; and

WHEREAS, whale watching captains along the migration route are expressing concern over
the low numbers of gray whales and the high percentage of emaciated animals; and

WHEREAS, transient orca predation of calves and juveniles is high; and

WHEREAS, the National Marine & Fisheries Service has failed to include in its current
assessment a comprehensive review of the major threats to the California Gray Whale,
particularly the impact of climate change on this vulnerable species.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Santa Cruz that
it hereby urges the Federal Government to make publicly available the results of the 2009/2010
abundance assessment as soon as possible and to instruct and fund the National Marine &
Fisheries Service to undertake an urgent comprehensive assessment of the major threats to the
California Gray Whale including the impact of climate change.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is directed to transmit a copy of this
resolution to Congressman Sam Farr, Senator Barbara Boxer and Senator Dianne Feinstein.



RESOLUTION NO. NS-

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8" day of February, 2011, by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

DISQUALIFIED:

APPROVED:

Mayor

ATTEST:

Interim City Clerk



NS~ CALIEORNIA GRAY WHALE COALITION

—-\:"-_;-"‘" PROTECTING THE MOST/ANCIENT BALEEN WWHALE ALIVE TODAY

The Gray Whale is in TROUBLE

For the fourth consecutive season, the numbers of Gray whale cows
and calves is very low. Up and down the migration route, people are
asking the same question. Where have all the whales gone ?

Here's a few critical facts:-

@ [ncreasing seawater temperatures and rapidly disappearing sea ice in their
primary habitat — the Bering and Chukchi Seas — is forcing the whales to migrate
much further north seeking alternative prey. As specialist feeders, there's no
research to demonstrate there are adequate alternatives.

@ Nutrients rain down from the melting sea ice to feed the benthos which is the
primary habitat of the whales. Pacific walrus and benthic diving sea ducks share
the same benthos as the Gray whales, these animals are showing signs of food
stress.

@ Whale watching captains are seeing fewer whales, smaller animals, emaciated
whales and very few cows and calves.

@ National Marine & Fisherigs Service has a long record of mismanagement of the
Gray Whales. This year will see the first proper population estimate in 8 years but
no count will be released to the public any time soon.

@ A meeting of the International Whaling Commission at Morocco in June will likely
see a quota of 140 Gray whales annually is given to the Russian Federation for the
people of Chukotka for the next 10 years

@ Gray Whales cannot sustain any exploitation at this time. Without current
information on the population; the impacts of climate change; changes in
migration routes and the impact on reproduction; status of primary prey, etc. a
moratorium is the only reasonable request which the US IWC delegation should
be pushing.

@ Counts during the peak whale week at Baja Lagunas Guerrero Negro and San
Ignacio were down by 50%.

HOW YOU CAN HELP

Eﬁﬂmﬂf Visit our website at: www.californiagraywhalecoalition.or
INFORMEL for current information and latest ACTION ALERTS.

{0112 Join our FACEBOOK page at:
INVOVED California Gray Whale Coalition Group.

MAKE IT Become a California Gray Whale Coalition member.

The Coalition represents economic AND environmental concerns!

{ﬁ.!u]lm www.californiagraywhalecoalition.org/cgwcmembership.shtml

"For the Gray Whales"
Sue Arnold CEO California Gray Whale Coalition, Palo Alto CA 9 03
Phone: 650 322 4729 Email: )

Photos courtesy of James Dorsey

5-4  www.californiagraywhalecoalition.org
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DATE: 1/30/2011
AGENDA OF: 2/8/2011

DEPARTMENT: City Council

SUBJECT: 2nd Annual Festival del Nopal (Cactus Festival) Event in Santa Cruz —
City Co-Sponsorship in Name Only. (CN)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to co-sponsor, in name only, the 2nd Annual Festival del Nopal
(Cactus) 2011 event to be held on Church Street in Santa Cruz.

BACKGROUND: For hundreds of years, the cactus, particularly the prickly pear cactus, has
been a staple in the diet of many Mexican and Latin American people. Also revered as a source
of national pride in Mexico, the prickly pear cactus is featured on the Mexican flag with an eagle
standing atop the cactus with a serpent caught in its beak to symbolize the location where the
ancient Aztecs were instructed by their gods to build the great City of Tenochtitlan, where
Mexico City now stands.

The cactus has several different culinary, medicinal, and cultural uses and is traditionally
considered a basic part of the diet of humble, farm-working, indigenous Mexican people and is
now part of everyday mainstream consumption throughout Mexico, which is a source of great
pride for many. Like many varieties of cacti, the prickly pear cactus easily adapts itself to any
environment and can be successfully grown and harvested anywhere, including Santa Cruz, and
is therefore not tied to any particular region. In 2010, Santa Cruz essentially adopted the nopal
(prickly pear cactus) and hosted a great celebration of this important crop.

DISCUSSION: Given the success of other events in Santa Cruz, such as the Amgen Tour of
California, and the continued need of our local businesses to attract visitors to Santa Cruz,
Councilmember Madrigal will continue working with the Festival del Nopal Planning
Committee, which includes several members of the VIVE Oaxaca! Guelaguetza planning
committee, to plan the second annual innovative event called the Festival del Nopal, or Cactus
Festival to be held between May-October 2011, with the exact date to be determined. Admission
will be free.

The VIVE OAXACA Guelaguetza planning committee is a committed group of students, parents
and volunteers that has successfully held its annual celebration in Santa Cruz for five years,
beginning in 2006. During the first three years the event was held at the Civic Auditorium and
included cultural dances, food vendors and craft market on Church Street directly in front of the
Civic Auditorium, and a City proclamation. Since the beginning the event drew over 1,500
Oaxacan people and tourists from all over Northern California. In its third year it outgrew the
Civic and moved to the Harbor High football field for 2009 and 2010, drawing over 6,000
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visitors to Santa Cruz and generating over $22,000 in ticket sales alone at $10 per adult ticket,
and $8 per student/seniors tickets. Now this Festival del Nopal Planning Committee (co-chaired
by Councilmember Madrigal & Nereida Robles) plans to continue collaborating with them to use
their past experience, volunteers, sponsors, and statewide network to draw people to Santa Cruz
again for a very unique experience.

The 1st Annual Festival del Nopal was held on November 21, 2010 and drew approximately
500-600 visitors despite light rain showers. The Festival was lauded by visitors, participants,
vendors, and musical performers as a huge success and a much needed family-friendly
community event that highlights an important part of our Latino culture. Last year, the Festival
attracted local and statewide participation with fun, cultural events such as best recipe contests,
cultural dances, and different food vendors that sold various cactus dishes much like the
Castroville Artichoke Festival or the Gilroy Garlic Festival offers different dishes centered
around their regional crop. In addition, the Festival held a very energizing and pride-inspiring
youth component to the Festival in the form of a contest for “Reina del Festival de Nopal”
(Cactus Festival Queen) whereby student contestants (ages 16-20) who sold the most and
second-most $1 tickets won the title of Festival Queen and Festival Princess, with the proceeds
going to the winner and runner-up for college scholarships. Also, the Festival held a hugely
successful Festival Recipe Contest for best cactus dishes in which the public was able to buy
tasting tickets for twenty-five cents and vote with their tasting tickets for their favorite recipes.
The recipe contest participants competed for cash prizes of $100, $50, and $25 and the Festival
generated enough tasting ticket sales to cover the recipe contest expenses. A local produce
vendor has already offered to provide free fresh nopales (cactus) to all recipe contest participants
so they can compete and keep down their own cooking costs. The Resource Center for
Nonviolence served as the Festival’s non-profit fiscal agent in 2010 and we intend to continue
this relationship. No alcohol was sold or served at this event nor will it be in the 2011 Festival.

Based on the past experiences with the Festival del Nopal, we are using the same three key
elements to choosing same Festival del Nopal site which are: 1) accessibility to the site by foot
and public transit that is close downtown shops and public parking garages; 2) having the
outdoor facility large enough to comfortably accommodate the variety of vendors and festival
activities; and, 3) a location that is known by the local community (same footprint as the Annual
Greek Festival on Church Street between Cedar Street and Center Street).

Last year’s Festival did produce a minimal profit which was carried over by the Committee to
help offset initial expenses for the 2nd Annual Festival del Nopal. The Committee is already
working on identifying more resources to ensure a successful event. Last years financial
sponsors included businesses such as Comcast, Viva’s Organic Mexican Food, Los Pinos
Restaurant, Bolton Hill Company and individuals such as Geoffrey Dunn, Councilmembers
Lane, Rotkin, Beiers, and Madrigal. The Festival also plans on requesting sponsorships from
local media as well as sponsorships from businesses looking to expand and serve the growing
Latino market as well as promote increased consumption of nopal and nopal-related products.
The Festival has already secured commitments from several food and craft vendors, youth dance
troupes, and musical performers who want to participate again in this year’s Festival. There is
also a volunteer team in place from the VIVE OAXACA! Guelaguetza Committee, local day
laborers, and UCSC to again provide adequate staffing at the Festival. The Committee intends to
use revenue from the Festival for individual hardship scholarships for youth/teens who want to
participate in but cannot afford to pay the fees for any of the City’s youth/teen programs that
require such participant fees.



FISCAL IMPACT: There will be no fiscal impact to the General Fund by co-sponsoring this
event in name only. The Festival is anticipated to create direct financial benefit to the City of
Santa Cruz in the form of commercial use fees and parking fees in addition to the citywide
cultural tourism spending that will benefit our local economy.

Submitted by: Submitted by: Submitted by:
Tony Madrigal Don Lane Ryan Coonerty
Councilmember Vice Mayor Mayor

ATTACHMENTS: 2010 Festival del Nopal event flyer
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~ ' . CITY COUNCIL
DATE: 2/1/2011
AGENDA OF: 2/8/2011

DEPARTMENT: City Council

SUBJECT: Project Homeless Connect Event—City Co-Sponsorship in Name Only.
(CN)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to co-sponsor, in name only, the March 22, 2011 Project
Homeless Connect event at the Civic Auditorium without waiving any fees or charges.

BACKGROUND: In March of 2010, the City of Santa Cruz co-sponsored the successful Project
Homeless Connect event at the Civic Auditorium. In 2010, the City was particularly supportive
of the event because it was part of our overall effort to improve the US Census count of “hard to
count” populations. The event was successful not only because its improvement of the US
Census count but because of its high level of delivery of practical resources. (See the attached
list of services). The event was also notable for its high level of community engagement with
more than 400 community volunteers participating. Other key co-sponsors of Project Homeless
Connect in 2010 included the United Way, the Community Foundation of Santa Cruz County
and several faith-based organizations.

DISCUSSION: After the 2010 event, the committee that organized Project Homeless Connect
reviewed feedback and surveys from clients, volunteers and service providers. There was strong
support for the idea of presenting a similar event in 2011. A formal steering committee and an
advisory board were formed, a 2011 plan was adopted, funds have been raised and most of the
pieces are in place for the 2011 Santa Cruz Project Homeless Connect event.

Most of the remaining work centers around community engagement—recruiting and organizing
volunteers, finalizing the participation of service and resource providers, and spreading the word
about the event within the homeless community.

Because the City played a key role in launching the 2010 Project Homeless Connect, because the
event takes place at our Civic Auditorium, and because the event has proven valuable in creating
greater understanding of homelessness in our community, we believe it is appropriate for the
City to co-sponsor the event this year. Recognizing the City’s budget crisis, we certainly would
not expect the City to contribute funds to the event, but we do believe the City’s co-sponsorship
will help spread the word about the value of this project and encourage community participation.



The Steering Committee and Advisory Board of Santa Cruz Project Homeless Connect
demonstrate an outstanding collaboration of local nonprofit service providers, the faith
community, local government, local business and local community volunteers. Vice-Mayor
Lane serves on the steering committee of Project Homeless Connect and Councilmember Beiers
serves on the advisory board.

Link to Santa Cruz Project Homeless Connect website: www.phc-santacruz.org

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact.

Submitted by: Submitted by:
Don Lane Katherine Beiers
Vice Mayor Councilmember
ATTACHMENTS:

Project Homeless Connect Steering Committee and Advisory Board List
Project Homeless Connect 2010 Statistics



Steering Committee

Megan Carlson

Homeless Services Center
Peter Connery

Applied Survery Research
Julie Conway

Homeless Action Partnership
Samantha Green

Project Homeless Connect
Kymberly Lacrosse

United Way
Don Lane

Santa Cruz City Council
Maggie McKay

County Mental Health (ret’d)
Brooke Johnson Parker

Second Harvest Food Bank
Michelle Whiting

Santa Cruz Bible Church

Board of Advisors

Katherine Beiers

Santa Cruz City Council

Chip

Downtown Association of Santa Cruz
Mary Lou Goeke

United Way
Paul A. Lee

Shelter Advocate and Philanthropist
Linda Lemaster
Homeless Advocate

Matt Nathanson

Homeless Persons Health Project
Rowland Rebele

Publisher & Philanthropist

Craig Reinarman

UCSC Professor of Sociology

Dr. Curt Simmons

Monterey Bay Optometric Society
Phil Wowak

Santa Cruz County Sherriff



PROJECT HOMELESS

Client Services Count

2010 Project Homeless Connect

Service Clients Served

Acupuncture/Massage 100
Banking 11
Behavioral Health 63
Benefits 251
California ID Cards 105
Census Enumeration 683
Clothing Vouchers 145
Dental Screenings 35
Employment Services 165
Foot care 60
HIV Testing 12
Housing Services 83
Hygiene Kits 256
Legal Services 120
Meals 1440
Medical Screenings 78
Phone Cards 938
Veterans’ Services 42
Veterinary Care 35
Vision Care 152
Wheelchair/Bike Repair 35
Women’s Resources 145
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SANTA CRUZ

AGENDA OF:

DEPARTMENT:

SUBJECT:

CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

DATE: 2/1/2011
2/8/2011

City Council

150th Birthday Celebration for Samuel Henry (Harry) Cowell — City Co-
Sponsorship in Name Only. (CN)

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to co-sponsor, in name only, the Celebration of the 150th
Birthday of Samuel Henry (Harry) Cowell which is organized by Friends of Cowell Lime

Works.

BACKGROUND: The Friends of the Cowell Lime Works, a UCSC-affiliated Friends group, is
planning a celebration to honor the 150th birthday of Samuel Henry (Harry) Cowell. The City
has been asked to co-sponsor this event in name only. The attached letter contains additional
details about the celebration.

DISCUSSION: We recommend that the City co-sponsorship in name only in recognition of the
vast contributions the Cowell family has made to the Santa Cruz community.

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact.

Submitted by:
Ryan Coonerty
Mayor

Submitted by: Submitted by:
Katherine Beiers David Terrazas
Councilmember Councilmember

ATTACHMENTS: Letter



FRIENDS OF THE COWELL LIME WORKS HISTORIC DISTRICT
UCSC « SANTA CRUZ, CA * 95064
http://limeworks.ucsc.edu

January 25, 2011

To: Members of the Santa Cruz City Council
Re: Celebration of Harry Cowell’s 150" Birthday and the Cowell Legacy

Feb. 17,2011 marks the 150th birthday of Samuel Henry (Harry) Cowell, son of early Santa
Cruz entrepreneur Henry Cowell. Henry Cowell's development of the lime industry was a major
force in the economy of 19th century Santa Cruz, as well as the origin of the Cowell family
wealth and ultimately the source of a great many contributions that have benefited this
community over the years.

It was Harry Cowell who donated major parcels of land in his father's memory to benefit the
public (Cowell Beach, Henry Cowell State Park), and who established the Cowell Foundation
that has contributed so much to environmental, educational, health and cultural endeavors
throughout the state. Local examples of this legacy include land for UCSC, funds for Cowell
College and Cowell Student Health Center, Pogonip lands that are now part of the City’s
greenbelt, and major Cowell Foundation grants to numerous local institutions ... to name just a
few!

Friends of the Cowell Lime Works Historic District, an official UCSC "Friends" group dedicated
to preservation, research and education about the Cowell legacy on campus, is planning a
celebration to mark this anniversary on Saturday, February 19 from 10:30 am — noon at the
Cardiff House (UCSC Women’s Center) on campus. The Cardiff House, built in 1864, was the
Cowell family home for many years, and is included in the City’s Historic Building Survey.

We would like this upcoming celebration to include some of the other local entities that have
benefitted from the Cowell legacy, and for that reason we are pleased to invite the City of Santa
Cruz to join as a co-sponsor. This would involve no financial commitment; we would only hope
that the City would help publicize the event to its relevant commissions and through its website.

Thank you for your consideration,
Cynthia Mathews
Board Member

Board members: Frank Perry, president; Don Lauritson, Peg Danielson, Jennifer Leinau-
Thompson, Tremain Jones, John Barnes.
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~ ' . CITY COUNCIL
DATE: 2/1/2011
AGENDA OF: 2/8/2011

DEPARTMENT: City Manager

SUBJECT: Living Wage Rate Annual Prescription for 2011. (FN/CM)

RECOMMENDATION: Resolution upwardly indexing the prescribed minimum living wage
rate by 1.2%, the amount which corresponds to San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Area Consumer
Price Index (CPI), for the period ending October 31, 2010 to become effective July 1, 2011.

BACKGROUND: Staff determined the Living Wage ordinance required changing when, due to
different methods of calculation, the living wage rates set by the City were no longer the same as
those set by the County. To make it easier for the local business community, it is desirable for
the two agencies to have the same rates. The current ordinance requires staff to bring a
recommendation for rate increase before Council by the first meeting in February, which is the
purpose of this staff report. Unfortunately, staff was not able to prepare the necessary staff
reports in time to change the ordinance before the February deadline in the current ordinance.
The proposed changes are intended to allow some flexibility with how the living wage rates are
set and to and make the ordinance easier to administer. Staff anticipates bring this before Council
by April.

On October 24, 2000, City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2000-25 pertaining to the payment of
a living wage. This ordinance applies to City service contracts of $10,000 or more. Section
5.10.040 of the ordinance requires that the City Council adopt a recommendation regarding
adjustments to minimum wage rates and benefits in February of each year to be effective on July
first of the same year. The resolution is to prescribe the minimum wage rates and benefits. This
section of the ordinance further requires that, at a minimum, the living wage rates shall be
upwardly indexed each year by an amount which corresponds to the San Francisco-Oakland-San
Jose area CPI for urban wage earners and clerical workers for the twelve-month period ending on
October 31, of the previous year.

DISCUSSION: This CPI report for the period ending October 31, 2010, reflects an increase of
1.2%. Staff recommends that this percentage be used to upwardly index the current living wage
rate, effective July 1, 2011. Using this percentage to calculate the new minimum living wage
rates will result in the following:

1. The minimum living wage to be paid to employees when said employees receive the
minimum leave and health insurance benefits prescribed in this resolution shall be increased by
$0.16 to $13.76 per hour.



2. The minimum living wage to be provided to employees where the employees do not receive
the minimum leave and health insurance benefits prescribed in this resolution shall be increased
by $0.18 to $15.01 per hour.

3. The minimum sick leave, vacation leave and health insurance benefits which must be
provided to employees in order to qualify for the $13.76 per hour wage rate shall be as follows:

A. Compensated sick leave/vacation leave: a combined twelve days annually for full-time
employees and prorated for employees working less than full time.

B. Uncompensated sick leave/vacation leave: a combined 10 days annually for full-time
employees and prorated for employees working less than full time.

C. Health insurance benefits: the payment of at least $1.24 per hour towards the payment for
a heath insurance policy for the employee. The CPI based increase for this amount is less than
one penny, so there is no change in this figure.

FISCAL IMPACT: This raise in the minimum living wage may increase contract pricing for
some service contracts; however it is not possible to determine any fiscal impact at this time.

Submitted by: Approved by:
Jack Dilles Martin Bernal
Finance Director City Manager
ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution



RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
ESTABLISHING MINIMUM LIVING WAGE RATES EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2000-25 on October 24, 2000; and

WHEREAS, the living wage ordinance, at Municipal Code Section 5.10.030 requires the
payment of a living wage to all “employees” as that term is defined in the ordinance; and

WHEREAS, Section 5.10.040 requires the City Council on an annual basis to consider a
recommendation in February of each year, and to prescribe by resolution to become effective no
later than July 1 of each year, the minimum living wage rates to be paid to employees pursuant to
the requirements of the ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Santa Cruz as
follows:

1. The minimum living wage to be paid to employees when said employees receive the
minimum vacation leave, sick leave, and health insurance benefits prescribed in this resolution
shall be $13.76 per hour.
2. The minimum living wage to be provided to employees where the employees do not receive
the minimum vacation leave, sick leave, and health insurance benefits prescribed in this
resolution shall be $15.01 per hour.
3. The minimum vacation leave, sick leave, and health insurance benefits which must be
provided to employees in order to qualify for the $13.76 per hour minimum living wage
prescribed in this resolution shall be as follows:
A. Compensated sick leave/vacation leave: a combined 12 days annually for full-time
employees and prorated for employees working less than full time.
B. Uncompensated sick leave/vacation leave: a combined 10 days annually for full-time
employees and prorated for employees working less than full time.
C. Health insurance benefits: the payment of at least $1.24 per hour towards the payment
for a health insurance policy for the employee.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of February, 2011, by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

DISQUALIFIED:
APPROVED:

Mayor
ATTEST:

Interim City Clerk
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PALATY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
SANTA CRUZ AGENDA REPORT

DATE: 1/30/2011
AGENDA OF: 2/8/2011
DEPARTMENT:  Economic Development

SUBJECT: Tannery Arts Center — Authorization for the Executive Director to Execute
a Grant Amendment with the Economic Development Administration of
the U.S. Department of Commerce for the Tannery Working
Studios/Digital Media Center Project and Other Actions to Facilitate the
Rehabilitation of the Kron House. (ED)

RECOMMENDATION: Redevelopment Agency resolution authorizing the Executive Director
to 1) execute a grant amendment with the Economic Development Administration of the U.S.
Department of Commerce for the Tannery Working Studios and Digital Media Center Project, 2)
advertise the Kron House Rehabilitation project for bid, 3) award a construction contract, in a
form approved by the City Attorney, to the lowest qualified bidder, 4) sign the construction
contract, 5) award and sign the Kron House construction management contract, in a form
approved by the City Attorney, 6) approve Kron House construction contract change orders, so
long as they do not exceed the Agency budget for the project, and 7) take other administrative
actions as necessary to implement the grant amendment.

BACKGROUND: On September 22, 2009 the Economic Development Administration of the
U.S. Department of Commerce (EDA) awarded the Agency an American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) grant of $4.76 million to fund the rehabilitation and reuse of the
historic buildings at the former Salz Tannery as a Digital Media and Creative Arts Center. The
matching funds for the ARRA grant were provided through a $1.93 million grant from the
California Cultural Historic Endowment (CCHE).

DISCUSSION: Construction on the project was initiated in January 2010 and has now
significantly progressed. Based on the lower than anticipated construction bid, it now appears
that there may be sufficient funds available to increase the scope of the project to include
rehabilitation of the Kron House which was originally part of the grant submittal. In recognition
of this potential, a request was submitted to EDA in August of 2010 to expand the scope of work
to be funded by the ARRA grant to include the Kron House. EDA has now approved the grant
amendment request, subject to acceptance by the City.

A related part of the grant amendment is approval of the City’s request to shift additional grant
funds to project inspection and grant administration. Due to the age of the buildings the amount
of grant funding initially budgeted for project inspection and construction management has
proved inadequate. To ensure sufficient funds are available for these functions the grant

10.-1



amendment increases the allowed amount for project inspection and construction management
from $240,000 to $380,000. This will allow sufficient funds for completion of the rehabiltation
of the Tanyard Building, Beam House and Kron House. The allowed amount for grant
administration and legal expenses has also been increased from $30,000 to $45,000 to offset
costs associated with the bid challenges for the Tanyard and Beam House construction contract.
To offset these cost adjustments the amount of the grant allocated for construciton has been
reduced to $5,976,250, reflecting the decrease in bidding costs since award of the EDA grant.

Due to the requirements of the ARRA grant, EDA is also encouraging the Agency to commence
rehabilitation on the Kron House within 120 days of final approval of the ARRA grant
amendment. To comply with this request, the Agency is being asked to extend the same
authority it orginally granted the Executive Director for the rehabiltation of the Tanyard Building
and Beam House. This authority allowed the Executive Director to execute the grant
amendment, advertise the project for bid, award the construction contract to the lowest qualified
bidder, sign the construction contract, award and sign the construction management contract and
approve change orders so long as they do not exceed the Agency budget for the project. This
will help to ensure that rehabilitation of the Kron House begins within the 120 day window.
Preparation of the construction plans for the rehabilitation of the Kron House is being funded
from the Agency’s existing budget. Authority to sign the contract for preparation of the
construction documents has been previously granted by the Agency.

FISCAL IMPACT: The proposed amendment is being funded by State and Federal grants and
therefore does not impact the Agency budget.

Prepared by: Submitted by: Approved by:
Joe H. Hall Bonnie Lipscomb Martin Bernal
Project Manager Agency Executive Director City Manager
ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution
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RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A GRANT AMENDMENT
FOR THE GRANT FROM THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION OF
THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE FOR THE TANNERY WORKING
STUDIOS/DIGITAL MEDIA CENTER PROJECT

WHEREAS, Salz Tannery was closed in 2001 due to foreign competition; and

WHEREAS, to facilitate the reuse of this site and provide new employment opportunities
the Redevelopment Agency has undertaken planning for reuse of the former Salz Tannery; and

WHEREAS, in 2003, the Economic Development Administration of the U.S. Department
of Commerce provided a planning grant to assist in planning for the reuse of the Salz Tannery site;
and

WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Agency has purchased the Salz Tannery site to facilitate its
reuse; and

WHEREAS, construction plans have been prepared for the reuse of the Tannery’s historic
buildings as a Working Studios/Digital Media Center; and

WHEREAS, the Agency was invited to submit a grant application to the U.S. Department
of Commerce Economic Development Administration for a American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act grant to fund the re-use of the Tannery’s historic buildings as a Working Studios/ Digital Media
Center; and

WHEREAS, the Agency submitted a grant application to EDA on January 21, 2009 and has
been notified by EDA staff that an award is forthcoming; and

WHEREAS, the Agency was awarded a grant by EDA on September 22, 2009; and

WHEREAS, a request has been submitted to EDA for a grant amendment to facilitate the
addition of the Kron House to the scope of work for the grant and to adjust grant budget categories
to fund additional project management costs.

WHEREAS, EDA has now approved the requested grant amendment for the Tannery
Working Studios/Digital Media Center Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Redevelopment Agency of the City of
Santa Cruz that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to 1) execute a grant amendment with
the Economic Development Administration of the U.S. Department of Commerce for the Tannery
Working Studios and Digital Media Center Project, 2) advertise the Kron House Rehabilitation
project for bid, 3) award its construction contract, in a form approved by the City Attorney, to the
lowest qualified bidder, 4) sign its construction contract, 5) award and sign the Kron House
construction management contract, in a form approved by the City Attorney, 6) approve Kron
House construction contract change orders, so long as they do not exceed the Agency budget for the
project, and 7) take other administrative actions as necessary to implement the grant amendment.
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RESOLUTION NO.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of February, 2011, by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
DISQUALIFIED:

APPROVED:

Chair
ATTEST:

Executive Director

10.-2
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~ ' . CITY COUNCIL
DATE: 2/1/2011
AGENDA OF: 2/8/2011

DEPARTMENT: Finance

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and Clean River,
Beaches, and Ocean Special Parcel Tax — Measure E Fund Financial
Report for FY 2010. (FN)

RECOMMENDATION: RECOMMENDATION: Motion to authorize the Finance Director to
file with the City Clerk the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Clean River, Beaches,
and Ocean Special Parcel Tax — Measure E Fund Financial Report for FY 2010.

BACKGROUND: Each year the Finance Department facilitates an annual audit, and prepares
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). In addition, the City’s independent
auditor prepares the Clean River, Beaches, and Ocean Special Parcel Tax — Measure E Fund
Report as required by section 3.14.090 (b) of the City Municipal Code.

DISCUSSION: For your review, Staff is forwarding the following documents for FY 2010:

- The City of Santa Cruz CAFR
- The Clean River, Beaches, and Ocean Special Parcel Tax — Measure E Fund Financial Report

The reports include opinion letters from the independent auditor, Caporicci and Larson. The
auditor indicated in their opinions that the financial statements for the City and the Measure E
Fund fairly present their positions as of June 30, 2010, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. The auditor’s reports are unqualified.

The CAFR financial statements include the required government-wide financial statements
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to a
private business, including a statement of net assets and a statement of activities. The statements
also include the traditional presentations by fund.

FISCAL IMPACT: The financial statements present financial summaries of FY 2010 financial
activity and the financial condition of the City at June 30, 2010. The City’s General Fund
showed $9.9 million in unreserved, undesignated fund balance at June 30, 2010.

11.1



Prepared by: Submitted by: Approved by:

Cheryl Fyfe Jack Dilles Martin Bernal
Assistant Director Finance Director City Manager
ATTACHMENTS:

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
Clean River, Beaches, and Ocean Special Parcel Tax — Measure E Fund Financial Report

11.-2



City of Santa Cruz, Califormia

Loch Lomond Reservoir and Recreational Facility

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Pictures courtesy of Scot Lang and Paul Fortino
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City of Santa Cruz

State of California

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Prepared by
Jack Dilles
Cheryl Fyfe
Raymond Chin Natalia Duarte Ray Galindo
Tori Hannah Shelley Horrow Kathryn Mintz
Ralph Reader Amy Schmidt Kim Wigley
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January 27, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and Citizens of the
City of Santa Cruz, California:

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

In accordance with the City Charter, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Santa Cruz
for the fiscal year ended. June 30, 2010, is submitted for your information and review. Various financing
covenants and regulations associated with restricted funding sources also require the City of Santa Cruz,
California (City) to publish a complete set of financial statements presented in conformance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
Pursuant to the requirements noted above, we hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of
the City of Santa Cruz, California for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of Santa Cruz.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the City of Santa Cruz has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is
designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the City of Santa Cruz's financial statements in conformity with GAAP.
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Santa Cruz's
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management,
we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in
material respects.

Caporicci & Larson, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has audited the City of Santa Cruz's
financial statements, The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the City of Santa Cruz for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based on the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the City of Santa Cruz’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010,
are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.
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The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Santa Cruz was part of a broader, federally
mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing
Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the
financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the
administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the City of Santa Cruz’s separately issued
Single Audit Report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the
basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Santa
Cruz's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City of Santa Cruz, incorporated in 1866, is located on the northern part of the Monterey Bay
approximately 74 miles south of San Francisco and 30 miles from San Jose. The City of Santa Cruz was first
founded in 1769 by the Spanish explorer Don Gaspar de Portola, who, along with Father Junipero Serra,
began land based settlement in the area. Santa Cruz is the county seat for the County of Santa Cruz, and is
a charter city which operates under the provisions of a voter-approved charter. The City has an area of 12
square miles and an estimated population of 59,684 as of January 2010. Santa Cruz is the home to the
University of California, Santa Cruz (UCSC) which first opened in 1965 and has a current enrollment of
over 16,500 students. UCSC faculty and researchers receive more that $100 million annually in external
funding and earn national and international recognition. Recent achievements include the award of a $1
million Kavli Prize in Astrophysics for innovations in telescope design, and worldwide attention in Bio-
molecular Engineering in drafting the sequence of the Neanderthal genome showing the relationship to
early modern humans. The City’s major industries include tourism, manufacturing, and technology.

Like other charter cities in California, the City of Santa Cruz has limited ability to set tax rates. The State
Constitution (Prop 13) establishes a maximum rate for property tax and limits the growth of assessed value.
Prop 13 sets the limit for increases of the property tax rate to 2% per year, but upon sale, full value becomes
the assessed value. The property tax collected is allocated among the jurisdictions in the City's tax rate
areas based on criteria established by the state legislature.

The rates and tax base of two of the City’s other general revenues, sales and use tax and motor vehicle in
lieu fees (VLF), are also controlled by the Legislature.

Changes to existing local taxes and any new taxes require voter approval. Taxes used for general purposes
are subject to approval by a simple majority of voters while taxes levied for specific purposes require a two-
thirds majority of voters. Assessments must be approved by a majority vote with voting rights apportioned
based on the amount of the assessment. Property related fees require public majority protest procedures
and property related fees for services other than water, sewer, and refuse must also be approved by a
majority of property owners or 2/3 of the electorate. In addition, fees for facilities and services are subject
to requirements that they not be set at levels that exceed the reasonable costs of providing services. As a
result, fund balances generated by differences between fee revenue and related expense are retained and
designated for services and facilities that benefit fee payers.

The City of Santa Cruz has operated under the council-manager form of government since its incorporation
in 1866. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a seven member governing council consisting
of the Mayor and six Council Members. The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing
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ordinances, adopting the budget, approving nominees to commissions, and hiring the City Manager, City
Clerk and City Attorney. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of
the City Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the city and for appointing the heads of the
various departments. The council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council Members serve four-year
staggered terms, with either three or four Council Members elected every two years. The Mayor is selected
by a majority of the City Council and serves a one year term. Council Members are elected at large and all
are subject to two term limits.

The City of Santa Cruz provides a broad range of services including police and fire protection, construction
and maintenance of streets, parks, flood control and other infrastructure, a wharf facility, recreational and
cultural activities including a performing arts center and human services programs. It also operates
municipal utilities for Water, Wastewater, Storm Water, and Refuse in addition to enterprise operations for
parking facilities and a golf course. The water utility provides water service beyond the municipal
boundaries and has a total service population of approximately 90,000. Certain infrastructure construction
and community development activities are provided through a legally separate Redevelopment Agency.
The Council sits as the Redevelopment Agency's board, and the Agency functions as a department of the
City. Therefore, the City of Santa Cruz Redevelopment Agency has been included as an integral part of the
City of Santa Cruz’s financial statements.

Many major public services delivered within the City's boundaries, including education and public
transportation, are provided by other agencies. The City of Santa Cruz is not financially accountable for the
operations of the franchisees or these government agencies.

As required by the City Charter, an annual budget is adopted by the City Council no later than the first
regular meeting in July for the fiscal year beginning July first. As part of the budget process, all City
departments submit budget requests for the next fiscal year. These requests are reviewed, and a final City
Manager recommended budget showing estimated revenues and expenditures of the City is prepared. This
proposed budget is transmitted to the City Council and made available to the public for review. Study
sessions and a public hearing are conducted before final adoption of the budget by the City Council.

The City Manager is authorized to approve appropriation transfers within any department; however, any
new appropriation or appropriation transfer between departments requires approval by the City Council.
Several supplemental appropriations were necessary during the year and are reflected in the budget
amounts in the financial statements. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department
level.

The Council reviews budget results at the mid-year review and at budget adoption. Redevelopment
budgets are adopted annually along with an annual report. The ongoing review and long range planning

focus for financial management provides numerous opportunities to identify and respond to changes in
revenues and expenditures and in community priorities.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

We believe that the information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the context within which the City of Santa Cruz operates.

Economic Conditions and Outlook
Although the City decided to continue the 10% work furlough program, limiting it to General fund

departments, the General Fund FY 2011 budget was adopted with a $2.2 million deficit, with the
expectation to draw from reserves. In addition, future revenues are expected to remain flat, or produce a
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minimal increase, and reflective of the current national economy, it is not known when and if sales tax
revenues will return to past higher levels. Still, unlike other California cities, Santa Cruz has experienced a
minor decline in property taxes and property tax receipts are expected to increase by modest 0.7% in FY
2011.

Due to a 2008 appellate court ruling for Union City, California that found that city’s 9-1-1 fee was a tax and
not a fee, the City of Santa Cruz ceased collection of its 9-1-1 fee and the City Council called for a special
election with mail-only ballots for the purpose of restoring the lost revenue. Measure T failed by a narrow
margin in August of 2008, The City has now experienced 2 full years of an annual average revenue loss of
$1.3 million.

Measure E, the proposed Clean River, Beaches and Ocean special parcel tax, was placed on the November 4,
2008, ballot by City Council and passed by a 9.6% margin above the 2/3 required majority vote. The
purpose of the tax was to generate funding for water quality programs to prevent pollution from reaching
waterways, beaches and the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary. The City received $0.6 million in FY
2010 and is expecting revenues to remain consistent in future years.

In FY 2010 the City brought forth Measure H to increase the City’s Utility Tax from 7.0% to 8.5%. Measure
H succeeded and will take effect in March 2011. The City is expected to receive an additional $1.6 million in
revenues in future years.

The City continues to evaluate its financial future, and it is apparent that the economy around us, together
with the tax structure of the local government in California, is ultimately in control. In recognizing the
difficulty in making additional budget cuts, and recognizing the need to maintain critical services, the City
is currently looking at long-term structural adjustments such as reducing costs with a “two-tiered”
retirement plan, and increasing local revenues with more economic development.

Historical Trend Information

Property Tax
Although the historical trend for property tax has been positive, the city experienced a slight decrease in FY

2010 receipts. Property Tax revenues for governmental funds declined $0.9 million or 3.3% compared to FY
2009. Itis expected that property tax revenues will increase by 0.7% in FY 2011, and remain flat in FY 2012.

CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
PROPERTY TAX
In $ Millions

01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10
Fiscal Year
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Sales & Use Tax, Local Transactions and Use Tax and Supplemental Property Tax In-Lieu of Sales Tax
Although the City has a well-diversified economy and sales tax base, Sales tax receipts decreased for the
second year in FY 2010 by $0.8 million or 0.6%. The City is expected slight increase of $0.1 million or
0.1%into FY 2011 consistent with the current economy.

CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
SALES TAX
In $ Millions

Fiscal Year

Transient Occupancy Tax

Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) reached a low point in FY 2003 after the University of California acquired a
10-year lease on a 170-bed major tourist hotel, the Holiday Inn, for use as a school dormitory, then
continued a steady increase until FY 2008, and then began to decline due to the national economy, and the
beginning of a renovation of a major shoreline tourist hotel, The Dream Inn. With the renovations complete
and the addition of a new major hotel, the Holiday Inn Express, TOT revenues increased by $0.2 million or
0.5% in FY 2010. Transient Occupancy Tax receipts are expected to slightly decline or remain flat in FY
2011.

CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX
In $ Millions

Fiscal Year
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Utility Users Tax

The utility users’ tax is the third largest revenue source for the City, coming after property tax and sales tax.
The utility users” tax is comprised of a tax on eight utilities: electric, wired telecom, wireless telecom,
natural gas, cable, water, wastewater, and refuse (the last three being municipal utilities).

Modest increases over the last few years can be attributed to a number of factors. There have been declines
in electric and wired telecom while wireless telecom, gas, and cable have increased. The most significant
factor for the rise in overall revenues points to the Water, Wastewater, and Refuse municipal utilities and
the increase of tax revenues due to recent customer rate increases. Although tax revenues were expected to
increase in FY 2010, in step with utility rate increases, these rate increases were delayed to ease the burden
on taxpayers due to economic hardship. FY 2010 saw a $0.5 million or 5.7% decrease in Utility tax receipts
due to the delay of the water rate increase and low water usage due to a mild summer.

The rate for the City’s Utility Tax was 7%, and had not been changed since October 1991. In November 2,
2010, the City residents voted 63.67% to 33.74% in favor of increasing of the City’s Utility Tax from 7% to
8.5%. The new tax is expected to increase annual revenues by $1.6 million, but will not be implemented
until March of FY 2011. The utility tax revenues are expected to remain flat in FY 2011 and increase by $1.6
in FY 2012.

CITY OF SANTACRUZ
UTILITY USERS TAX
In $ Millions

Fiscal Year

Risk management. The City of Santa Cruz uses a program of self-insurance for workers” compensation and
general liability claims, and employs a professional risk manager, supplemented by a professional claim
administration firm, to minimize losses. The City is self-insured for workers' compensation up to $500,000
per occurrence. Santa Cruz participates in a multi-agency joint powers authority to provide excess
insurance coverage for liability coverage. The joint powers authority and the City rely on estimates
prepared by professional actuaries to set aside funds adequate to meet potential future losses. Excess
coverage purchased through the joint powers authority covers claims in excess of $1,000,000 for general
liability claims. As reflected in the financial statements, the Risk Management internal service fund had net
assets at June 30, 2010, of $5.2 million.

Health care costs. The City contracts with CalPERS for employee health care coverage. Under this
program, employer average overall plan premiums increased (per calendar year) as stated below:

° FY 2006: 8.90% ° FY 2009: 4.80%
° FY 2007:  11.90% o FY 2010: 3.20%
e FY 2008: 6.80% ° FY 2011: 9.10%
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State budget. In December, 2010 the state’s FY 2011 budget was still facing a deficit of $7 billion, and a FY
2012 structural deficit of $19 billion. The California legislature had approved amendments to their FY 2010
budget which included borrowing $2 billion (8%) from cities’ and counties” property tax collections, as
allowed by Proposition 1A (approved by voters in 2004), along with major cuts to the Redevelopment
agencies. In order to help Cities and Counties with the shortfall created by the 8% property tax borrowing,
Legislators and the Governor allowed local agencies to sell the eventual repayment from the State to
investors in order cover the property taxes and to pay the full cost of the sale, known as securitization. The
City of Santa Cruz implemented this securitization and lost no revenue.

On November 2, 2010 voters approved Proposition 22 which prohibits the State from borrowing or taking
funds used for transportation, redevelopment, or local government projects and services. However, the
State is currently looking at other ways close the shortfall. The State has historically attempted to balance
their budget by using local revenue resources, and is likely to continue. Prior remedies include:

e Proposition 57 or “Triple Flip”. In 2004, state voters approved a deficit-financing bond, pledging as
repayment for the bond % cent of the local Bradley-Burns sales tax. During the time this bond is
outstanding, city and county revenue losses are replaced on a dollar-for-dollar basis with property
taxes shifted from school districts. School losses, in turn, are offset by increased state aid. These
revenue transfers commonly are referred to as the “triple flip”.

o VLF-Property Tax Swap. In 1999, the state began reducing the vehicle license fee (VLF) rate charged
to vehicle owners - and backfilling city and county revenue losses from this tax reduction with state
subventions. The FY 2004-05 state budget packages permanently replaced the VLF backfill by
shifting an equal amount of K-14 property taxes to cities and counties. Increased state aid offsets K-
14 school district revenue losses.

o FY 2004-05 Property Tax Shift. The FY 2004-05 state budget packages included a $1.3 billion shift of
property taxes from noneducational local agencies (cities, counties, special districts, and
redevelopment agencies) to K-14 school districts. Unlike the two permanent property tax shifts
enacted in the 1990s, this tax shift sunset in FY 2006-07.

e Proposition 1A. In 2004, state voters amended the State Constitution to prohibit the state from
permanently reallocating the property tax, with certain exceptions, prohibit the State from reducing
the Bradley Burns local sales tax rate or altering its method of allocation, and prohibit the State from
further reducing the vehicle license fee without reimbursing local governments.

Cash management and policies

The City’s investment policy states that not more than 25% of the portfolio shall be invested in any one
entity or any one instrument to protect the City from concentration of credit risk, with the following
exceptions: U.S. Treasury Obligations and the external investment pool, State of California - Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF). In addition, purchases of mutual funds must not exceed 20% of the value of the
portfolio. Purchases in a single mutual fund may not exceed 10% of the value of the portfolio. The City is
in compliance with these provisions of the investment policy.

As of June 30, 2010, the City had $80.5 million invested in LAIF accounts, $38.8 million in U.S. Agencies and
U.S. Treasury Money Market Funds, and $0.7 million in other investments.
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Major Initiatives

The City of Santa Cruz operates four municipal utilities, including water, wastewater, storm water, and
refuse collection/landfill operations. The Water Department has not made any major capital improvements
for the past 10 to 15 years while a new water supply project was being developed. Now, in order to address
the pressing needs of an aging infrastructure and the need for a new water supply, the Water Department
has embarked upon an ambitious program of capital improvements that will span the next four to five
years and may cost approximately $50 million, to be financed partially through the issuance of new debt.
Major distribution and supply projects are planned, including a desalination plant.

The City will continue to use Development Impact fees to enhance and upgrade park facilities. These fees
will also be used for improvements to the greenbelt. At the end of FY 2010, the City received a State grant in
the amount of $1.8 for the purchase of land and construction of a new park in the City’s lower Ocean Street
neighborhood. The Parks and Recreation Department will continue to seek grants and bond monies to
renovate and upgrade outdated facilities.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Santa Cruz for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This was the fourth
consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual finance report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services of
the entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to express our appreciation to all the members of
the departments who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. We also want to thank the
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City Council Members, and City Manager for your unfailing leadership and support.

Respectfully submitted,

Jack Dilles
Director of Finance
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Caporicci & Larson, Inc.
A Subsidiary of Marcum LLP
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
of the City of Santa Cruz
Santa Cruz, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Santa Cruz,
California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Santa Cruz as of June 30, 2010, and the
respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 27, 2011,
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information on pages 3 to 16
and pages 104 to 109, are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

www.c-lcpa.com
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
of the City of Santa Cruz

Santa Cruz, California

Page Two

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining fund statements and
schedules and the statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The combining fund statements and schedules has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
information identified in the table of contents as the Introductory and Statistical Sections has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on them.

L%m £ (avsen | Pae,
Caporicci & Larson, Inc.
A Subsidiary of Marcum LLP

Certified Public Accountants

San Francisco, California
January 27, 2011
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Santa Cruz, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Santa Cruz for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on page i of this report.

Financial Highlights - Primary Government (in millions)

« Government-Wide Highlights:
Net Assets - The assets of the City of Santa Cruz exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year
by $460.3. Of the total net assets, $89.6, or 19.5%, was reported as unrestricted net assets and may be
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Restricted net assets of
$35.5 may be used for the City’s ongoing obligations related to programs with external restrictions.
The remaining $335.2 represented the City’s investment in net capital assets, less any related
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.

Changes in Net Assets - The City’s total net assets increased by $5.6, or 1.23%, in FY 2010. The
increase in net assets represents the degree to which revenues exceed expenses.

The increase in net assets for governmental activities of $2.2, or 1.01%, was an increase of $1.2
compared to the prior year, and was comprised of total revenues in the amount of $99.8 in excess of
total expenditures in the amount of $97.6. Total revenues for FY 2010 decreased by $5.2 compared to
the prior year due to a $3.9 decrease in capital and operating grants, a $2.0 decrease in taxes and
other general revenues, and an increase of $0.7 in charges for services. FY 2010 expenditures
decreased by $6.4 compared to the prior year. The decrease in expenditures was a planned response
in anticipation of reduced tax receipts.

Business type activities had an increase in net assets in the amount of $3.4, or 1.4%, which was a
decrease of $3.5 compared to the prior year and was comprised of total revenues in the amount of
$63.6 in excess of total expenses in the amount of $60.2. Total revenues for FY 2010 decreased by
$3.4 compared to the prior year primarily due to a decrease in charges for services in the amount of
$3.1, a decrease in investment earnings in the amount of $1.2, and a decrease in other revenues in the
amount of $0.2, offset by an increase in operating and capital grants in the amount of $1.1. The
decrease in charges for services was primarily in the Water enterprise fund due to reduced
consumption.

« Fund Highlights:
Governmental Funds - Governmental funds include general, special revenue, debt service, and capital
projects funds. As of the close of FY 2010, the City’s governmental funds, including the
Redevelopment Agency Fund, reported a combined ending fund balance of $53.0, which was an
increase of $4.9, or 10.2%, from the previous fiscal year. Approximately $30.3 of this amount, or
57.1%, represented the unreserved fund balance available for appropriation. Of the unreserved fund
balance, $26.2, or 86.0%, was designated for various purposes.

General Fund - Total fund balance of the General Fund on June 30, 2010, was $23.6, an increase of
$3.1, or 15.0%, from the previous fiscal year. Approximately $16.1 of this amount, or 68.5%, was
unreserved. Of the unreserved fund balance, $6.2, or approximately 38.6% was designated for
various purposes. These included $5.2 for the City Public Trust, and monies designated for various
amounts for other activities. The remaining unreserved balance of $10.0, or 61.4%, of unreserved
fund balance was undesignated.
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Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.
The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. They
are comprised of the statement of net assets and statement of activities and changes in net assets.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities and changes in net assets presents information showing how the City's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Revenues and expenses,
therefore, are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., interest expense due but unpaid).

Both of the above government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety,
public works, parks and recreation, library, transit, social services and community and economic
development. The business-type activities of the City include the four municipal utilities: water,
wastewater, storm water, and refuse and landfill operation; and also the self-supporting golf course and
parking enterprises.

Blended Component Units - Component units are legally separate entities that meet certain criteria and
would be misleading if their data were not included in this report. This report includes three separate legal
entities in this category—The City of Santa Cruz Redevelopment Agency, The Santa Cruz Public
Improvement Financing Corporation, and The Santa Cruz Public Financing Authority. All component units
in this report are blended with the primary government because the governing boards are substantively the
same as the primary government, and the component units serve the primary government exclusively.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

The fund financial statements provide detail information about each of the City’s most significant funds,
called major funds. The concept of major funds, and the determination of which are major funds, was
established by GASB 34 and replaces the concept of combining like funds and presenting them in total.
Instead, each major fund is presented individually, with all nonmajor funds summarized and presented in a
single column. Individual fund data on the nonmajor funds is presented in the form of combining
statements and schedules in the Supplemental Information section of this report.
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Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Unlike the government-wide financial
statements, however, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Readers will then be able to better
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The City has twelve governmental funds, of which three are considered major funds for presentation
purposes. Each major fund is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the City’s three
major funds - the General Fund, the Redevelopment Agency Fund, and the General Capital Improvement
Fund. Data from the other nine governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements on this report.

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds - enterprise funds and
internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the
four municipal utilities: water, wastewater, storm water, and refuse, recycling and landfill operation; and
also for the self-supporting golf course and parking enterprises. Internal service funds are used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service
funds to account for its equipment operations and maintenance, telecommunications, and risk management
activities. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions,
they have been included within governmental activities in the governmental-wide financial statements.

The City has nine proprietary funds which provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The fund financial statements for the proprietary funds provide
separate information for the four municipal utilities: water, wastewater, storm water, and refuse, recycling
and landfill operations; and also the self- supporting golf course and parking enterprises. Conversely, the
three internal service funds are combined into a single aggregated column in the proprietary fund
statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining
statements on this report.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. Fiduciary funds represent
agency funds and private-purpose trust funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal
liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations and use of the accrual basis of
accounting. Agency funds include activities of the Library Joint Powers Authority, Payroll Payables and
Special Assessments. Trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for special
purposes, such as the McCaskill Trust for Local History, the McCaskill Trust for Visually Impaired, the
Findkeldey Trust for Musical Literature, and the Whalen Estate - Felton Branch Trust.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Santa Cruz’s progress in funding
its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees, as well as providing a budgetary comparison
schedule for the General Fund and the Redevelopment Agency Fund.

Additional budgetary schedules for the General Fund, with revenues presented in greater detail and
expenditures presented by department, the General Capital Improvement Fund, and the combining
statements, referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal service funds,
are presented immediately following the required supplementary information in the supplemental
information section of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis (in $ millions)

Net Assets. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Santa Cruz, combined net assets (governmental and business-
type activities) totaled $460.3 at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. This was an increase of
$5.6, or 1.23%, from the previous fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City’s net assets, $335.1, or 72.8%, is reflected its investment in net capital
assets (e.g., land, streets, bridges, water and sewer lines, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any
related, outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services
to citizens; consequently, these assets were not available for future spending.  Although the City’s
investment in its capital assets was reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets, $35.6, or 7.7%, represented resources that were subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining $89.6, or 19.5%, of the City’s net assets, was
“unrestricted,” and may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

City of Santa Cruz's Net Assets
June 30, 2010

(amounts expressed in $ millions)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Current assets $ 51 $ 542 $ 803 $ 768 % 1394 § 131.0
Noncurrent assets 154 134 10.9 14.6 26.3 28.0
Capital assets 188.2 193.2 225.7 226.5 413.9 419.7

Total assets 262.7 260.8 316.9 3179 579.6 578.7
Current liabilities 11.0 11.6 11.0 11.3 22.0 229
Noncurrent liabilities 321 31.8 65.2 69.3 97.3 101.1

Total liabilities 43.1 434 76.2 80.6 119.3 124.0
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 171.2 175.2 163.9 157.1 335.1 332.3
Restricted 35.6 333 - - 35.6 33.3
Unrestricted 12.8 8.9 76.8 80.2 89.6 89.1

Total net assets $ 2196 % 2174 % 2407 % 2373 $ 4603 % 454.7
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Changes in Net Assets. The City’s net assets increased by $5.6, or 1.23%, from the previous fiscal year.
The City’s expenses covered a range of services. Further analysis is provided within the governmental and
business-type activity sections.

City of Santa Cruz Changes in Net Assets
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2010

(amounts expressed in millions)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 314 $ 307 $ 580 $ 610 $ 894 $ 917
Operating grants and contributions 3.9 8.1 1.6 1.3 5.5 9.4
Capital grants and contributions 4.6 4.2 2.2 14 6.8 5.6
Total program revenues 39.9 43.0 61.8 63.7 101.7 106.7
General revenues: - -
Property taxes 26.4 27.3 - - 26.4 27.3
Sales and use taxes 12.7 13.5 - - 12.7 13.5
Franchise taxes 2.9 3.0 - - 2.9 3.0
Transient occupancy taxes 3.8 3.7 - - 3.8 3.7
Utility users taxes 8.7 9.2 - - 8.7 9.2
Admissions taxes 1.9 1.9 - - 1.9 1.9
Other taxes 2.1 1.6 - - 2.1 1.6
Total taxes 58.5 60.2 - - 58.5 60.2
Unrestricted grants and contributions - - - - - -
Unrestricted investment earnings 0.8 1.5 14 2.6 22 41
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 0.4 0.0 - - 0.4 0.0
Miscellaneous - 0.3 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.9
Total revenues 99.6 105.0 63.8 66.9 163.4 171.9
Expenses:
General government 17.9 14.0 - - 17.9 14.0
Public safety 34.5 36.7 - - 34.5 36.7
Parks and recreation 10.3 11.8 - - 10.3 11.8
Library 9.1 9.8 - - 9.1 9.8
Public works 9.0 16.2 - - 9.0 16.2
Transit 0.6 0.6 - - 0.6 0.6
Community and economic development 13.8 11.8 - - 13.8 11.8
Social services 1.3 1.9 - - 1.3 1.9
Interest and charges on long term debt 1.1 1.2 - - 11 1.2
Water - - 21.1 22.6 21.1 22.6
Wastewater - - 17.3 17.6 17.3 17.6
Refuse - - 14.9 124 14.9 124
Parking - - 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.3
Storm Water - - 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6
Golf course - - 2.1 2.5 2.1 2.5
Total expenses 97.6 104.0 60.2 60.0 157.8 164.0
Increase (decrease) in net assets before
transfers 2.0 1.0 3.6 6.9 5.6 7.9
Transfers 0.2 - (0.2) - -
Change in net assets 2.2 1.0 3.4 6.9 5.6 7.9
Net assets, beginning of year (as restated) 217.4 216.4 237.3 230.4 454.7 446.8
Net assets - end of year $ 2196 $ 2174 $ 2407 $ 2373 $ 4603 $ 4547
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Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $2.2. A comparison of
the cost of services by function for the City’s governmental activities is shown below, along with the
revenues used to cover the net expenses of the governmental activities.

Governmental Activities
(amounts expressed in $ millions)
2010 2009
Expenses net of programrevenues:
General government $ ) $ G7)
Public safety (3L8) (34.3)
Parks and recreation 7.0 “7.7)
Library (L0) 04
Public works 12 (L8)
Transit - 06
Commumity and economic development (10.6) 74)
Social services (13) (L9)
Interest and fiscal charges on long-termdebt (L1) (12
Total expenses net of programrevenues -
governmmental activities (57.7) (61.0)
General revenues and transfers:
General revenues:
Property taxes 264 273
Sales and use taxes 127 135
Franchise taxes 29 30
Transient occupancy taxes 338 37
Utility users taxes 87 92
Admission taxes 19 19
Other taxes 21 16
Total taxes 585 602
Unrestricted investment earnings 08 15
Gain onsale of assets 04 -
Miscellaneous - 03
Transfers 02 -
Total general revenues and transfers 599 620
Change in governmental activities net assets $ 22 % 10
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Governmental Expenses. Total governmental activity expenses were $97.6 in FY 2010. The largest expenses
were incurred for public safety (36%), general government (18%), community and economic development
(14%), parks and recreation (11%), and public works (9%). These expenses did not include capital outlays,
which were reflected in the City’s capital assets.

EXPENSES FOR
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES FY 2010

Library

Social Services 9%
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Governmental Revenues. Under GASB 34, program revenues are derived directly from programs or from
parties outside the reporting government’s taxpayers or citizenry. They reduce the net cost of the function
to be financed from the government’s general revenues. Total program revenues from governmental
activities were $39.9 in FY 2010, a decrease of $3.1, or 7.2%, from the previous fiscal year. Governmental
program revenues derived primarily from charges for services, which included licenses and permits,
planning fees, developer fees, recreation charges, traffic and other fines and forfeitures, charges to the
Library Joint Powers Authority for personnel services provided, and several other revenues. Program
revenues under the operating grants and contributions category included revenues restricted for specific
purposes, such as gasoline taxes and other federal, state and local grants. Program revenues in the capital
grants and contributions category also included federal, state and local grants, but were restricted specifically
to be used for capital projects or acquisitions.
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General revenues are all other revenues not categorized as program revenues, and include all taxes,
unrestricted grants, contributions and investment earnings, material gains on sales of capital assets, and
other miscellaneous revenues. Total general revenues from governmental activities were $59.9 in FY 2010.
Taxes of $58.5 comprised 97.7% of the City’s general revenues for FY 2010. The largest single source of
general revenues received during FY 2010 was $26.4 of property taxes, which were 44.0% of general
revenues, followed by $12.7 of sales and use taxes, which were 21.1% of general revenues.

The following graph includes program and general revenues and shows the percentage of all governmental
revenues by source:

REVENUES BY SOURCE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES FY 2010
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Business Type Activities. Net assets for business-type activities were $240.7, an increase of $3.4, or 1.4%,
from the previous fiscal year. Total program revenues for business-type activities were $61.8. The largest
program revenues were charges for services of $57.9. Other program revenues included capital and

operating grants and contributions of $3.9. Total expenses for the business-type activities were $60.2 during
FY 2010.

The following chart shows a comparison of FY 2010 revenue and expenses for the City’s enterprise funds:

REVENUE AND EXPENSE
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES
FY 2010
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The following chart shows FY 2010 revenues by source for the City’s enterprise funds:
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Financial Analysis of Individual Funds (in millions)

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $53.0, and increase of $4.9 or 10.2% over the previous fiscal year. Approximately $30.0 of the
fund balance is unreserved fund balance, which was available for spending at the government’s discretion.
Unreserved fund balance increased by $5.0, or 19.9%, over the previous fiscal year. It should, however, be
noted that $26.1 of the unreserved fund balance, or 86.1%, was designated for various purposes, such as
debt service, capital projects, public art, police programs and the City Public Trust, leaving $4.2 unreserved
and undesignated. The remainder of fund balance, $22.7, was reserved to indicate that it is not available for
spending because it was already legally committed.

General Fund - Total fund balance of the General Fund on June 30, 2010, was $23.6, an increase of $3.1 from
the previous fiscal year. Approximately $16.2 of this amount, or 68.6%, was unreserved. Of the unreserved
fund balance, $6.2, or 38.3% was designated for specific uses. These included $5.2 for the City Public Trust
for purposes of supporting capital improvements, and various amounts for other activities, such as
unemployment insurance, housing, parks and recreation programs, and equipment and facilities
maintenance. The remaining unreserved balance of $10.0, or 61.7% of unreserved fund balance, was
undesignated and represented an increase of $3.1, or 44.9%, over the previous fiscal year. = More
information concerning reserved and designated fund balances are shown in Note 14 to the Basic Financial
Statements.

As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare unreserved fund balance, the
undesignated portion of the unreserved fund balance, and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance of $16.2 represented 22.5% of total general fund expenditures of $72.0, not
including proceeds from sale of assets of $0.4 and transfers out of $0.4. Unreserved and undesignated fund
balance of $10.0 represented 13.9%, and total fund balance of $23.6 represented 32.8% of that same amount.

The 13.9% percent of total expenditures represented by the June 30, 2010, undesignated, unreserved fund
balance exceeds the historic minimum target reserve level of 10% of the operating budget for the General
Fund.

The $3.1 increase in fund balance was the result of higher than anticipated tax revenues of $1.8 combined
with a planned decrease in expenditures of $1.0, and the sale of land for approximately $0.4.

Redevelopment Agency Fund - The City of Santa Cruz Redevelopment Agency is responsible for
redevelopment of areas identified under the Community Redevelopment Plan determined to be in a
declining condition. The Agency’s operations are funded primarily by the issuance of debt, which is
expected to be repaid out of property tax increment revenue generated by increases in property assessed
values in the redevelopment areas.

At the end of FY 2010, the total fund balance of the Redevelopment Agency Fund was $21.8, an increase of
$0.2 from the previous fiscal year, or 0.9%. Of that amount, $11.5 was reserved to indicate that it was not
available for spending because it had already been legally committed. The remainder of the unreserved
fund balance of $10.3 was designated for either debt service or capital projects.
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General Capital Improvement Fund - The General Capital Improvement fund is used to account for the City’s
capital improvements. A portion of the City’s transient occupancy tax receipts, combined with other
funding sources, such as grants, provides funding for capital projects of general benefit, such as storm drain
improvements, or improvements to public buildings.

At the end of FY 2010, the total fund balance of the General Capital Improvement Fund was a deficit of $5.4,
a deficit increase of $0.2 over the prior fiscal year. Of that amount, $0.3 was reserved to indicate that it was
not available for spending because it had already been legally committed. The unreserved, undesignated
deficit fund balance of $5.4 was the result of the City’s arterial streets and roads overlay project that the City
had originally planned to fund with the issuance of debt. Since interest rates were not favorable, the City
would only move forward on those projects that had a dedicated revenue source.

Proprietary Funds - The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. They include both enterprise funds and internal
service funds. For the government-wide financial statements, the internal service funds are consolidated
with governmental activities, and the enterprise funds comprise the business-type activities.

At the end of FY 2010, the total fund balance of the enterprise funds was $240.7, an increase over the prior
fiscal year of $3.4 or 1.4%. The enterprise funds had an increase of $2.0 in expenditures for FY 2010
compared to the prior year comprised of a decrease in personnel services (due to continuance of work
furloughs) in the amount of $2.5, offset by an increase in services and supplies in the amount of $4.5.
Operating revenues decreased by $3.1 or 5.0% over the prior year primarily due to the deference of pre-
approved fee increases which were enacted to lessen the impact of the current economy on fee payers.
Work furloughs for enterprise fund employees ended in FY 2011, due to the need for increased fee
supported services. Pre-approve fee increases which had been deferred in FY 2010 will move forward in FY
2011 in order support the additional expense.

Net assets in the internal service funds in the amount of $6.1 represented an increase of $1.8 over the
previous fiscal year. The increase was primarily due to a $1.9 increase in the Risk Management fund due to
a planned increase in contributions to the liability fund and decreases in the claims payable liability. The
Telecommunications fund had an increase of $0.1 as the fund continues to collect additional monies to pay
for its investment in the City’s voice over IP telephony implementation. The fund is expected to be fully
reimbursed for this system in FY 2013. The increases in the Risk Management and Telecommunications
funds were offset by a $0.2 decrease in net assets in the Equipment fund. In FY 2010 the Equipment fund
implemented lower-than-cost rates in an effort to exhaust an excessive fund balance. The Equipment fund
is expected to implement full cost recovery in beginning in FY 2011.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights.

The final amended general fund budget, including transfers out and advances, totaled $77.1, and included
amendments to the original budget, resulting in a $2.4 increase in operating expenditure appropriations. Of
that amount approximately $1.6 represented non-lapsing encumbrances and projects carried forward from
the prior year, $0.2 represented increased unemployment charges, and $0.2 represented personnel charges
for special events and newly acquired grants. The remaining $0.4 represented various other obligations
during the year. Due to the current constraints on limited general fund revenues, increases to the operating
expenditure appropriations are only considered when there are offsetting revenues. Amendments to FY
2010 estimated revenues totaled $1.1.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration (in millions)

Capital Assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business- type activities as
of June 30, 2010, amounted to $413.9, net of accumulated depreciation of $317.0. This investment in capital
assets included land, land improvements, infrastructure, buildings, machinery and equipment, lease
improvements, software, and construction in progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally
immovable and of value only to the City such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems,
lighting systems and similar items. The total reductions to the City’s investment in capital assets for the
current fiscal year, after restatements and deletions, were $5.8. Additions, deletions and restatements
consisted of a net increase to capital assets of $9.2 and a net increase to accumulated depreciation of $15.0.

Major capital asset additions during the FY 2010 included the following;:

«  Water Supply project, $3.1

« Bay Street Reservoir project, $1.3

« Arroyo Seco sewer project, $0.7

« Heavy equipment and licensed vehicles, $1.7
« Laurel Street safety improvements, $0.9

« 2030 North Pacific-2 housing units, $0.8

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 to the Basic Financial Statements.

Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
(amounts expressed in $ millions)
Govemmental Activities ~ Business-Type Activities

June 30 June 30 Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Land $ 604 $ 604 $ 18 $ 1.8 $ @2 $ 622
Construction in progress 50 41 252 21.7 30.2 258
Land improvements 48 53 3.0 2.5 7.8 7.8
Infrastructure 80.8 849 920 92.7 172.8 177.6
Buildings 326 336 942 97.5 126.8 1311
Machinery and equipment 44 46 91 10.3 13.5 14.9
Lease improvements 0.1 02 0.1 - 0.2 02
Software 0.1 0.1 03 - 0.4 01
Totals $ 1882 % 1932 % 2257 % 2265 % 4139 $ 419.7

Debt Administration (in millions)

Long Term Debt - At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had $101.7 in long term debt outstanding
compared to $107.2 last fiscal year, which was a decrease of $5.5, or 5.1%. The Bonds, Notes, Loans and
Leases payable associated with governmental activities decreased from $23.3 to $22.4, or 3.8%. The Bonds,
Notes, Loans and Leases payable associated with Business-type activity debt was reduced from $69.3 to
$64.6, or 6.8%.

In the governmental activities, the City issued $7.0 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds in December,
2009 to advance refund $5.4 of outstanding 1999 General Obligation Bonds. This advance refunding was
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next twenty years by $0.6 and resulted in an
economic gain of $0.4.
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In the business type activities, the City issued a $2.9 Refuse Refunding Loan in August, 2009 to advance
refund $3.3 of outstanding 1999 Refuse Enterprise Certificates of Participation. This advance refunding was
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next fifteen years by $0.3 and resulted in an
economic gain of $0.2. City also issued $5.4 in 2010 Parking Refunding Lease Revenue in May, 2010 to
advance refund $5.5 of outstanding 1998 Parking Certificates of Participation. This advance refunding was
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next eighteen years by $0.9, which resulted in an
economic gain of $0.3.

The largest single debt obligation of the City is a note payable to the State of California for the construction
of secondary treatment improvements at the City's wastewater treatment plant. As of June 30, 2010 the
outstanding balance on this note was $26.8. The City has a corresponding note receivable from the County
of Santa Cruz for $12.6. This note receivable relates to the County’s obligation related to the construction of
the treatment plant improvements. More information about this note receivable can be found in Note 3 to
the Basic Financial Statements.

The chart below illustrates the changes in bonds, notes, loans and leases payable for the year ending June
30, 2010.

Bonds, Notes, Loans and Leases Payable

(amounts expressed in $ millions)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
June 30 June 30 Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Certificates of participation $ 36 % 38 § 66 $ 161 $ 102 $ 19.9
Revenue bonds payable 6.6 6.7 25.5 21.4 321 28.1
General obligation bonds 6.9 6.9 - - 6.9 6.9
Notes payable 0.1 0.3 30.2 30.1 30.3 30.4
Tax allocation bonds payable 4.6 4.7 - - 4.6 4.7
Capital lease obligations 0.5 0.7 2.3 1.7 2.8 2.4
Other long-term liabilities 0.1 0.2 - - 0.1 0.2
Totals $ 24 % 233 § 64.6 $ 69.3 $ 871 % 92.6

The City of Santa Cruz also has significant liabilities for claims and judgments, compensated absences
(accrued vacation pay), and landfill closure and post closure costs. The amounts and changes of these
liabilities are shown below.

Claims and Judgments, Compensated Absences, and Landfill Closure Costs Payable

(amounts expressed in $ millions)

June 30, 2010
June 30 Increase Percent Dueinless  Duein more
2010 2009 (Decrease) ~ Change than one year than one year
Compensated absences $ 46 % 42 % 0.4 9.5% $ 31 % 15
Claims and judgments 10.1 10.1 - 0.0% 2.8 73
Closure and post closure landfill costs 4.5 43 02 4.7% - 45
Totals $ 146 $ 144 $ 02 4.7% $ 28 $ 11.8

Additional information on the City of Santa Cruz’s long term debt can be found in Note 7 to the Basic
Financial Statements. Additional information on the City of Santa Cruz’s landfill closure and post closure
costs can be found in Note 9 to the Basic Financial Statements.
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Economic Climate

The City of Santa Cruz, and Santa Cruz County for that matter, is closely tied to the regional economy of
the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area and to Silicon Valley in particular. Local private employers include
a diverse array of manufacturing, business services, retail, hotel and food services, and biotechnology
companies. In addition to the local private employers, the local economy also benefits from the University
of California Santa Cruz. The University is a major employer, and has potential spin-off benefits from
federal and state funded scientific research ventures including biomedical research, technology research,
and adaptive optics.

Housing prices in Santa Cruz County have continued to decline, but less so within the City. Economic
forecasts expect a slow return of housing price levels within the state, and a return to pre-recession price
levels in FY 2015, with an accelerated return for coastal cities.

Under the provisions of Proposition 1A, the State of California exercised its right to borrow $1.3 in tax
revenues from the City, and take $3.1 in tax increment from the City Redevelopment Agency. In
November, 2010 the City was able to sell the $1.3 million in receivables from the State for the same amount
by participating in the Proposition 1A Securitization Program. Actions to prevent the State cuts affecting
Redevelopment agencies failed under litigation.

At present time, the California State budget continues in FY 2011 with a $7 billion deficit, and a $19 billion
on-going deficit beginning in FY 2012. Past experience shows that the State may turn to local agencies to
eliminate the deficit by finding ways to defer revenues owed to the City, or enact other measures that
would further reduce the City’s revenues.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all of its citizens,
taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City of Santa Cruz, Finance
Department, 809 Center Street, Room 101, Santa Cruz, CA 95060.

111638



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17
11.-39



This page intentionally left blank.

18
11.-40



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19
11.-41



City of Santa Cruz

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 44,793,388 $ 69,698,507 114,491,895
Restricted cash and investments 3,613,093 2,413,640 6,026,733
Interest receivable 445,396 503,998 949,394
Taxes receivable 4,322,668 1,560 4,324,228
Accounts receivable - net 1,391,298 5,622,387 7,013,685
Grants receivable 2,820,447 827,025 3,647,472
Notes receivable 32,401 1,251,160 1,283,561
Loans receivable 18,500 - 18,500
Prepaid items 32,928 - 32,928
Inventories 128,812 - 128,812
Deposits 1,473,410 30,000 1,503,410
Total current assets 59,072,341 80,348,277 139,420,618
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted investments - 427,656 427,656
Notes receivable 9,185,811 11,916,633 21,102,444
Loans receivable 3,118,050 - 3,118,050
Deferred charges 419,770 1,193,510 1,613,280
Long-term internal balances 2,671,109 (2,671,109) -
Capital assets:
Land 60,380,806 1,819,287 62,200,093
Land improvements 8,240,309 4,344,973 12,585,282
Infrastructure 206,833,712 171,168,085 378,001,797
Buildings 45,067,703 160,568,423 205,636,126
Machinery and equipment 13,250,399 26,074,299 39,324,698
Lease improvements 724,114 70,000 794,114
Software 1,220,476 867,238 2,087,714
Construction in progress 5,016,231 25,239,349 30,255,580
Total capital assets 340,733,750 390,151,654 730,885,404
Less accumulated depreciation (152,495,001) (164,510,111) (317,005,112)
Total capital assets, net 188,238,749 225,641,543 413,880,292
Total noncurrent assets 203,633,489 236,508,233 440,141,722
Total assets 262,705,830 316,856,510 579,562,340

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

20
11.-42



City of Santa Cruz

Statement of Net Assets, Continued

June 30, 2010
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 4,760,058 $ 3,882,874 $ 8,642,932
Intergovernmental payable 25,106 - 25,106
Interest payable 196,406 1,079,016 1,275,422
Unearned revenue 182,495 40,108 222,603
Deposits payable 109,509 70,088 179,597
Claims and judgments payable 2,779,942 - 2,779,942
Compensated absences payable 2,259,792 834,528 3,094,320
Bonds, notes, loans and leases payable 711,695 5,026,735 5,738,430
Total current liabilities 11,025,003 10,933,349 21,958,352
Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims and judgments payable 7,281,882 - 7,281,882
Compensated absences payable 1,129,895 417,266 1,547,161
Other post employment benefits 1,944,716 789,897 2,734,613
Bonds, notes, loans and leases payable 21,736,440 59,523,677 81,260,117
Landfill closure costs - 4,465,029 4,465,029
Total noncurrent liabilities 32,092,933 65,195,869 97,288,802
Total liabilities 43,117,936 76,129,218 119,247,154
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 171,223,103 163,932,427 335,155,530
Restricted for:
Capital projects 5,384,846 - 5,384,846
Debt service 4,948,843 - 4,948,843
Public safety 85,837 - 85,837
Parks and recreation 1,345,696 - 1,345,696
Community and economic development 23,784,430 - 23,784,430
Unrestricted 12,815,139 76,794,865 89,610,004
Total net assets $ 219,587,894 $ 240,727,292 $ 460,315,186

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Santa Cruz

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government $ 17,928,110 $ 11,278,221 $ 503,759 $ 19,098
Public safety 34,523,282 1,633,242 905,291 157,036
Parks and recreation 10,250,951 2,944,329 61,286 254,788
Library 9,081,071 8,046,305 - -
Public works 9,027,258 5,312,671 1,093,067 3,842,926
Transit 594,976 - 594,976 -
Community and economic development 13,829,383 2,228,704 710,643 329,094
Social services 1,258,798 - - =
Interest and fiscal charges

on long-term debt 1,111,754 - - -

Total governmental activities 97,605,583 31,443,472 3,869,022 4,602,942

Business-type activities:

Water 21,121,067 23,036,392 - 2,244,283
Wastewater 17,324,157 14,034,810 789,528 -
Refuse 14,884,490 15,700,703 113 -
Parking 3,182,994 2,660,323 34,942 -
Storm water 1,575,223 887,959 196,960 -
Golf course 2,133,914 1,624,931 614,868 -

Total business-type activities 60,221,845 57,945,118 1,636,411 2,244,283

Total primary government

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

$ 157,827,428

$ 89388590 $ 5505433 %

6,847,225

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Sales and use taxes
Franchise taxes
Transient occupancy taxes
Utility users taxes
Admission taxes
Other taxes

Total taxes
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of assets
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year
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Net (Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Total Activities Activities Total

$ 11,801,078 $ (6,127,032 $ - % (6127,032)
2,695,569 (31,827,713) - (31,827,713)
3,260,403 (6,990,548) - (6,990,548)
8,046,305 (1,034,766) - (1,034,766)
10,248,664 1,221,406 - 1,221,406
594,976 - - -
3,268,441 (10,560,942) - (10,560,942)

- (1,258,798) - (1,258,798)

- (1,111,754) - (1,111,754)
39,915,436 (57,690,147) - (57,690,147)
25,280,675 - 4,159,608 4,159,608
14,824,338 - (2,499,819) (2,499,819)
15,700,816 - 816,326 816,326
2,695,265 - (487,729) (487,729)
1,084,919 - (490,304) (490,304)
2,239,799 - 105,885 105,885
61,825,812 - 1,603,967 1,603,967
$ 101,741,248 (57,690,147) 1,603,967 (56,086,180)
26,385,089 - 26,385,089

12,668,746 - 12,668,746

2,904,859 - 2,904,859

3,860,757 - 3,860,757

8,622,677 - 8,622,677

1,922,757 - 1,922,757

2,160,778 - 2,160,778

58,525,663 - 58,525,663

841,680 1,403,371 2,245,051

349,687 32,896 382,583

- 564,273 564,273

205,712 (205,712) -

59,922,742 1,794,828 61,717,570

2,232,595 3,398,795 5,631,390

217,355,299 237,328,497 454,683,796

$ 219,587,894 $ 240,727,292 $ 460,315,186
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Governmental Fund Financial Statements

General Fund - The General Fund is used to account for sources and uses of financial resources traditionally
associated with governments, and which are not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Redevelopment Agency Fund - The Redevelopment Agency fund is used to account for all the activities of the
City of Santa Cruz Redevelopment Agency. This includes the accumulation of resources for and the payment
of interest and principal on debt issued to finance redevelopment activities, and general redevelopment
operations.

General Capital Improvement - This fund is used to account for capital improvements for which special
projects funds have not been established. A portion of the City's transient occupancy tax receipts, combined
with other funding sources, such as grants, provides funding for capital projects of general benefit, such as
storm drain improvements, or improvements to public buildings.

Other Governmental Funds - Other Governmental funds is the aggregate of all the non-major governmental
funds.
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City of Santa Cruz
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010
Major Funds Other Total
General Redevelopment  General Capital Governmental = Governmental
Fund Agency Improvement Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 14508479 $ 10901436 $ 1,205963 $ 8,933,029 $  35548,907
Interest receivable 41,702 39,505 - 343,068 424,275
Taxes receivable 3,895,106 374,948 - 52,614 4,322,668
Accounts receivable - net 1,247,367 1,097 617 131,660 1,380,741
Due from other governments 362,093 144,601 1,146,567 1,167,186 2,820,447
Due from other funds 1,329,543 - - - 1,329,543
Prepaid items 32,928 - - - 32,928
Restricted cash and investments - 2,853,428 289,632 470,033 3,613,093
Deposits 70,304 - - - 70,304
Notes receivable - net 178,357 8,445,431 - 594,424 9,218,212
Loans receivable - net 391,140 - - 2,745,410 3,136,550
Advances to other funds 5,179,219 320,672 - - 5,499,891
Total assets $ 27236238 $ 23,081,118 $ 2,642,779 $ 14437424 $ 67,397,559
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 3,384,440 $ 300,967 % 449110 % 309875 % 4,444,392
Intergovernmental payable 25,106 - - - 25,106
Deferred revenue 93,403 140,486 - 685,376 919,265
Unearned revenue 32,850 - 24,024 125,621 182,495
Deposits payable 101,875 7,634 - - 109,509
Advances from other funds - 832,899 7,560,119 286,764 8,679,782
Total liabilities 3,637,674 1,281,986 8,033,253 1,407,636 14,360,549
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 699,668 653,255 305,549 469,516 2,127,988
Noncurrent receivables and advances 5,655,314 8,625,617 - 3,007,320 17,288,251
Prepaid items 32,928 - - - 32,928
General plan update 734,973 - - - 734,973
Hardship grants 303,782 - - - 303,782
Low and moderate income housing - 2,249,174 - - 2,249,174
Unreserved, designated, reported in:
General fund 6,240,772 - - - 6,240,772
Debt service funds - 1,130,016 - 1,810,465 2,940,481
Redevelopment Agency fund - 9,141,070 - - 9,141,070
Special revenue funds - - - 7,742,487 7,742,487
Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:
General fund 9,931,127 - (5,696,023) - 4,235,104
Total fund balances 23,598,564 21,799,132 (5,390,474) 13,029,788 53,037,010
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 27236238 $ 23,081,118 $ 2,642,779 $ 14437424 $ 67,397,559

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Santa Cruz

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

Total Fund Balances - All Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets were
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources.
Therefore, they are not reported in the governmental funds. Except for the internal
service funds reported below, the capital assets are adjusted as follows:

Non-depreciable

Depreciable, net

Total capital assets

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial resources.
Therefore, interest payable is not reported as a liability in the governmental funds.

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as insurance and equipment management, to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.

Equipment Operations Fund
Telecommunications Fund

Risk Management Fund

Total internal service funds

Deferred revenues recorded in the governmental fund resulting from activities in
which revenues were earned but funds were not available are classified as revenues in
the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Noncurrent liabilities were not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, they
are not reported in the governmental funds. Except for the internal service funds
reported above, the long-term liabilities are adjusted as follows.

OPEB - due in more than one year

Compensated absences payable - due within one year
Compensated absences payable - due in more than one year
Bonds, notes, loans and leases payable - due within one year

Bonds, notes, loans and leases payable - due in more than one year

Total long-term liabilities

Certain transactions related to debt issuance and refunding are reported as
expenditures and other financing sources/uses in the governmental funds. For the
statement of net assets, the net amount of these transactions is capitalized as deferred
charges, and will be amortized as an adjustment to interest expense over the
remaining life of the debt.

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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$ 53,037,010
Government-
Wide Statement  Internal Service
of Net Assets Funds
$ 65,397,037 $ - 65,397,037
122,841,712 (1,211,436) 121,630,276
$ 188,238,749 $ (1,211,436) 187,027,313
(196,406)
317,418
526,875
5,210,467
6,054,760
919,265
Government-
Wide Statement  Internal Service
of Net Assets Funds
$ (1,944,716) % 52,546 (1,892,170)
(2,259,792) 37,449 (2,222,343)
(1,129,895) 18,725 (1,111,170)
(711,695) - (711,695)
(21,736,440) - (21,736,440)
$ (27,782538) % 108,720 $ (27,673,818)
419,770
$ 219,587,894



City of Santa Cruz

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES:

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures

Use of money and property

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

General government
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Library
Public works
Transit
Community and economic development
Social services
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Bond issuance costs

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Proceeds from asset disposition
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds
Premiums on bonds sold

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Major Funds Other Total
General Redevelopment  General Capital =~ Governmental Governmental
Fund Agency Improvement Funds Funds

44,230,855 $ 12,228,890 $ 820,000 $ 1,245918 $ 58,525,663
540,411 - - - 540,411
1,363,794 - 2,541,184 4,122,848 8,027,826
21,044,223 - - 164,035 21,208,258
2,321,756 - - 2,075 2,323,831
4,853,186 350,236 10,982 153,297 5,367,701
698,525 402,649 129,850 1,069,661 2,300,685
75,052,750 12,981,775 3,502,016 6,757,834 98,294,375
13,765,834 - - - 13,765,834
33,801,383 - - 110,000 33,911,383
8,309,864 - - - 8,309,864
8,912,467 - - - 8,912,467
4,115,520 - - 947,528 5,063,048
- - - 594,976 594,976

1,306,196 10,312,588 - 706,269 12,325,053
1,111,827 - - 146,971 1,258,798
437,516 342,828 3,835,833 1,702,973 6,319,150
156,781 1,879,995 120,000 335,937 2,492,713
88,308 293,711 185,176 520,524 1,087,719

- - - 226,365 226,365
72,005,696 12,829,122 4,141,009 5,291,543 94,267,370
3,047,054 152,653 (638,993) 1,466,291 4,027,005
372,514 - - - 372,514

- - - 6,995,000 6,995,000

- - - 30,757 30,757
- - - (6,776,051) (6,776,051)

83,297 3,547,679 481,353 583,139 4,695,468
(428,962) (3,547,679) (500) (444,049) (4,421,190)
26,849 - 480,853 388,796 896,498
3,073,903 152,653 (158,140) 1,855,087 4,923,503
20,524,661 21,646,479 (5,232,334) 11,174,701 48,113,507
23598564 $ 21,799,132 $ (5390,474) $ 13,029,788 $ 53,037,010
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City of Santa Cruz
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Net Change in Fund Balances - All Governmental Funds $ 4,923,503

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
were different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the
Governmental funds (not including Internal service funds) for the current period, which are
reported below.

Capital assets : $ 3,301,244
Depreciation: (7,182,112)
$ (3,880,868)
Losses on the disposal of assets are reported as expenditures on the Statement of Activities.
However, the losses do not require the use of current financial resources in governmental funds (1,009,760)
Proceeds from sales of capital assets are reported as revenues in the governmental funds. However,
only the gain/(loss) from the sales are reported on the Statement of Activities
- Proceeds from the sale of capital assets (372,514)
- Gains on sale of capital assets 349,687
Revenues that did not meet the criteria for accrual were recorded as deferred revenues in the
governmental funds. In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, these amounts were recorded
as revenues. This amount represents the change in deferred revenue from the prior year. 473,425
Compensated absences reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (299,445)
Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-
term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.
- Proceeds from issuance of bonds (6,995,000)
- Premium on bonds issued (30,757)
- Deferred amount on refunding 90,313
- Amortization of bond discount and deferred amount on refunding (8,615)
- Payments to refund bonds 6,891,675
- Long-term debt repayments 902,421
Bond issuance costs are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. In the statement of net
assets, they are reported as assets and amortized over the life of the bonds.
- Issuance costs for the new bonds 226,365
- Amortization of deferred charges (31,310)
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) are long term liabilities and are not presented on the
Governmental Funds statements (748,073)
Accrued but unpaid and accreted interest on long-term debt is reported in the statement of
activities, but does not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, it is not reported as
an expenditure in the governmental funds. 9,736
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as
insurance and equipment management, to individual funds. The net revenue of the internal
service funds is reported with governmental activities. 1,741,812
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 2,232,595

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Water - This fund accounts for the activities of the City's water utility, which provides water delivery
services to the residents of the City and some residents of the County.

Wastewater - This fund accounts for the activities of the City's wastewater utility, which provides
wastewater collection and treatment services to the residents of the City and some residents of the County.

Refuse - This fund accounts for the activities of the City's refuse utility, which provides refuse pick-up
services, recycling services, and a sanitary landfill for residents of the City.

Parking - This fund accounts for the activities of the Downtown Parking District, which provides parking
facilities in the downtown area.

Storm Water - This fund accounts for storm water utility fees on properties within the City limits. These fees
provide funding for flood control improvements associated with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers San
Lorenzo River Flood Control project, storm water pollution prevention programs, and measures to comply
with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Non-Point Pollution Discharge Emissions Standards Program
(NPDES).

Golf Course - This fund accounts for the activities of the Delaveaga Golf Course, which provides recreational
facilities to the public.

Internal Service Funds - These funds are used to provide goods and services by one department or agency to
other departments or agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.
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City of Santa Cruz

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2010
Enterprise Funds
Water Wastewater Refuse Parking
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 37,863,977 $ 11,939,963 14,126,113 3,271,641
Restricted cash and investments 93,774 383,374 1,652,203 4,611
Interest receivable 101,016 352,778 36,905 9,182
Taxes receivable - - - 1,560
Accounts receivable - net 2,543,797 1,386,933 1,482,730 50,529
Grants receivable - 92,007 - -
Notes receivable - due within one year - 1,251,160 - -
Inventories - - - -
Deposits - - - 30,000
Total current assets 40,602,564 15,406,215 17,297,951 3,367,523
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted investments - - - 427,656
Notes receivable - due in more than one year 401,058 11,356,405 - -
Advances to other funds - 50,433 - -
Deferred charges 386,324 130,759 139,022 190,796
Capital assets:
Land - - - -
Land improvements 163,104 1,450,298 - 280,701
Infrastructure 74,377,068 53,036,385 19,346,219 1,125,817
Buildings 9,257,467 126,672,607 2,936,820 20,465,211
Machinery and equipment 6,879,604 4,070,580 13,722,543 631,531
Lease improvements - 70,000 - -
Software 561,412 196,557 99,336 9,933
Construction in progress 22,835,996 16,828 128,025 58,364
Less accumulated depreciation (42,630,584) (81,841,965) (22,072,793) (8,779,985)
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 71,444,067 103,671,290 14,160,150 13,791,572
Total noncurrent assets 72,231,449 115,208,887 14,299,172 14,410,024
Total assets 112,834,013 130,615,102 31,597,123 17,777,547

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Enterprise Funds Governmental

Activities
Internal
Storm Water Golf Course Total Service Funds

$ 2,495,411 $ 1,402 % 69,698,507 % 9,244,481
809 278,869 2,413,640 -

6,391 (2,274) 503,998 21,121

_ - 1,560 -

38,099 120,299 5,622,387 10,557
112,550 622,468 827,025 -

- - 1,251,160 -

- - - 128,812

- - 30,000 1,403,106

2,653,260 1,020,764 80,348,277 10,808,077
- - 427,656 -

159,170 - 11,916,633 -

- - 50,433 5,000,000

242,003 104,606 1,193,510 -

- 1,819,287 1,819,287 -

- 2,450,870 4,344,973 -
22,972,361 310,235 171,168,085 -
- 1,236,318 160,568,423 -

6,421 763,620 26,074,299 2,411,856

- - 70,000 -

- - 867,238 336,296
2,200,136 - 25,239,349 -
(6,993,219) (2,191,565) (164,510,111) (1,536,716)
18,185,699 4,388,765 225,641,543 1,211,436
18,586,872 4,493,371 239,229,775 6,211,436
21,240,132 5,514,135 319,578,052 17,019,513

(Continued)
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City of Santa Cruz

Statement of Net Assets, Continued

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2010
Enterprise Funds
Water Wastewater Refuse Parking
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 2,379,400 $ 625,020 $ 489,623 $ 106,751
Due to other funds - - - -
Interest payable 174,114 713,733 82,415 27,295
Unearned revenue 622 - 21,097 -
Deposits payable 24,600 - - 45,488
Claims and judgments payable - - - -
Compensated absences payable 379,159 162,201 246,952 23,339
Bonds, notes, loans and leases payable
due in less than one year 330,561 2,930,963 1,218,624 239,076
Total current liabilities 3,288,456 4,431,917 2,058,711 441,949
Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances from other funds - - - 320,672
Claims and judgments payable - - - -
Compensated absences payable 189,579 81,103 123,476 11,669
Other post employment benefits 303,800 178,818 226,245 49,845
Bonds, notes, loans and leases payable
due in more than one year 11,615,304 27,766,115 7,154,398 4,995,221
Landfill closure costs - - 4,465,029 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 12,108,683 28,026,036 11,969,148 5,377,407
Total liabilities 15,397,139 32,457,953 14,027,859 5,819,356
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 59,591,976 73,357,586 7,439,331 8,989,542
Unrestricted 37,844,898 24,799,563 10,129,933 2,968,649
Total net assets $ 97436874 $ 98157149 $ 17,569,264 $ 11,958,191
See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Enterprise Funds Governmental

Activities
Internal
Storm Water Golf Course Total Service Funds
$ 142534 % 139546 % 3,882,874 % 315,666
- 851,000 851,000 478,543
53,193 28,266 1,079,016 -
- 18,389 40,108 -
- - 70,088 -
- - - 2,779,942
- 22,877 834,528 37,449
117,511 190,000 5,026,735 -
313,238 1,250,078 11,784,349 3,611,600
- 1,549,870 1,870,542 -
- - - 7,281,882
- 11,439 417,266 18,725
3,316 27,873 789,897 52,546
4,871,627 3,121,012 59,523,677 -
- - 4,465,029 -
4,874,943 4,710,194 67,066,411 7,353,153
5,188,181 5,960,272 78,850,760 10,964,753
13,197,370 1,356,622 163,932,427 1,211,436
2,854,581 (1,802,759) 76,794,865 4,843,324
$ 16,051,951 $ (446,137) $ 240,727,292  $ 6,054,760
(Concluded)
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City of Santa Cruz

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services
Use of money and property

Other revenues

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personnel services
Services, supplies, and other charges

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Interest expense and fiscal charges

Debt issuance costs

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions - other agencies
Gain on sale of surplus equipment

Transfers out

Total contributions and transfers
Change in net assets

NET ASSETS:

Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Refuse Parking

$ 23,036,392 $ 14,034,810  $ 15,700,703  $ 2,660,323
6,600 - 3,262 181,397

296,503 582 77,953 36,561
23,339,495 14,035,392 15,781,918 2,878,281
8,374,220 4,853,188 6,533,605 1,515,772
10,098,182 7,252,338 6,216,412 875,553
2,098,957 4,281,363 1,790,214 520,497
20,571,359 16,386,889 14,540,231 2,911,822
2,768,136 (2,351,497) 1,241,687 (33,541)

- 789,528 113 34,942

473,577 483,408 187,431 47,785
(535,346) (921,178) (319,792) (260,290)
(14,362) (16,090) (24,467) (10,882)

(76,131) 335,668 (156,715) (188,445)
2,692,005 (2,015,829) 1,084,972 (221,986)
2,244,283 - - -

4,489 - 28,407 -

(8,137) (151,950) (11,500) (34,000)
2,240,635 (151,950) 16,907 (34,000)
4,932,640 (2,167,779) 1,101,879 (255,986)
92,504,234 100,324,928 16,467,385 12,214,177

$ 97,436,874 % 98,157,149 % 17,569,264 % 11,958,191
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Enterprise funds Governmental
Activities
Internal

Storm Water Golf Course Total Service Funds
$ 887,959 $ 1,624,931 57,945,118 $ 7,999,760
500 800 192,559 -

- 152,674 564,273 8,743

888,459 1,778,405 58,701,950 8,008,503

78,253 818,407 22,173,445 1,398,220

498,978 848,228 25,789,691 4,808,009
747,208 211,230 9,649,469 161,379
1,324,439 1,877,865 57,612,605 6,367,608
(435,980) (99,460) 1,089,345 1,640,895
196,960 614,868 1,636,411 -

27,545 (8,934) 1,210,812 169,483
(216,350) (248,471) (2,501,427) -
(34,434) (7,578) (107,813) -
(26,279) 349,885 237,983 169,483
(462,259) 250,425 1,327,328 1,810,378

- - 2,244,283 -

- - 32,896 -
- (125) (205,712) (68,566)
- (125) 2,071,467 (68,5606)

(462,259) 250,300 3,398,795 1,741,812
16,514,210 (696,437) 237,328,497 4,312,948

$ 16,051,951 $ (446,137) 240,727,292  $ 6,054,760
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City of Santa Cruz

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers and users

Cash received from interfund services provided
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Cash payments for interfund services used

Cash payments to other governments

Cash received from (payments to) others

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers in

Transfers out

Advances from other funds
Advances to other funds
Due to/from other funds

Receipts from other governments

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Capital contributions

Purchase and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt

Interest paid on capital debt

Proceeds from sales of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and

related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest receivables

Investment income received

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Refuse Parking
$ 22,546,732 % 3,508,877 $ 15,986,417 2,655,478
771,405 - - -
(6,479,130) (4,790,089) (2,665,008) (495,461)
(8,282,224) (4,825,272) (6,454,707) (1,514,640)
(3,554,252) (2,421,625) (3,263,512) (346,935)
(152,284) (80,320) (97,012) (9,410)
303,103 582 81,215 217,958
5,153,350 (8,607,847) 3,587,393 506,990
(8,137) (151,950) (11,500) (34,000)
- - - (94,328)
- 14,441 - -
800,000 - - -
20,455 14,706,571 113 34,783
812,318 14,569,062 (11,387) (93,545)
2,248,772 - 28,407 -
(7,326,523) (554,380) (794,705) (151,649)
(287,321) (2,836,188) (32,371) (503,990)
(553,488) (1,005,194) (351,544) (290,121)
(5,918,560) (4,395,762) (1,150,213) (945,760)
81,755 56,191 30,815 9,552
473,577 483,408 187,431 47,785
555,332 539,599 218,246 57,337
602,440 2,105,052 2,644,039 (474,978)
37,355,311 10,218,285 13,134,277 4,178,886
$ 37,957,751 $ 12,323,337 $ 15,778,316 3,703,908
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Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities
Internal
Storm Water Golf Course Total Service Funds
$ 887,245 $ 1,625251 $ 47,210,000 $ 380,875
- - 771,405 7,654,264
(327,542) (351,949) (15,109,179) (4,772,023)
(81,935) (817,092) (21,975,870) (1,347,558)
(76,418) (450,662) (10,113,404) -
- - (339,026) (7,800)
500 153,474 756,832 (117,343)
401,850 159,022 1,200,758 1,790,415
- (125) (205,712) (68,566)
- - (94,328) -
- - 14,441 -
- 51,000 851,000 480,351
135,972 - 14,897,894 -
135,972 50,875 15,463,295 411,785
- - 2,277,179 -
(12,252) - (8,839,509) (76,376)
(137,248) (287,679) (4,084,797) -
(252,172) (258,027) (2,710,546) -
(401,672) (545,706) (13,357,673) (76,376)
5,146 235 183,694 26,163
27,545 (8,934) 1,210,812 169,483
32,691 (8,699) 1,394,506 195,646
168,841 (344,508) 4,700,886 2,321,470
2,327,379 624,779 67,838,917 6,923,011
$ 2,496,220 $ 280,271 $ 72,539,803 $ 9,244,481
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City of Santa Cruz

Combining Statement of Cash Flows, Continued

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Estimated closure/postclosure costs
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid items
Inventories
Deposits
Notes and loans receivable
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deposits payable
Claims and judgments payable
OPEB

Compensated absences payable
Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Refuse Parking
$ 2,768136 $  (2,351497) $ 1,241,687 $ (33,541)
2,098,957 4,281,363 1,790,214 520,497
- - 171,943 -
291,095 2,081,680 286,430 (22,008)
- (12,607,565) - -
(279,911) (146,156) (125,698) (9,487)
- - (113) -
(9,350) (48) (603) 17,163
192,427 106,460 144,635 33,234
91,996 27,916 78,898 1,132
2,385,214 (6,256,350) 2,345,706 540,531
$ 5153350 $  (8,607,847) $ 3,587,393 $ 506,990
42

11.-64



Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities
Internal

Storm Water Golf Course Total Service Funds
$ (435,980) $ (99,460) $ 1,089,345 $ 1,640,895
747,208 211,230 9,649,469 161,379

- - 171,943 -

(714) 320 2,636,803 35,379

- - - 12,442

- (12,607,565) -

93,607 30,408 (437,237) 15,744

- - (113) -
- - 7,162 (126,086)

1411 15,209 493,376 46,392

(3,682) 1,315 197,575 4,270

837,830 258,482 111,413 149,520

$ 401,850 $ 159,022 $ 1,200,758 % 1,790,415

11.-65
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Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Private - Purpose Trust Funds:

Private-purpose trust funds are used to report the trust arrangements under which the principal and
income benefit the Library Joint Powers Authority.

Agency Funds:

Agency funds are used to account for resources held by the City in a custodial capacity. These funds
account for the receipt, temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals,
private organizations, or other governments.
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City of Santa Cruz
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010
Private-
Purpose Agency
Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and investments $ 673,732 $ 703,010
Restricted cash and investments - 52,246
Receivables:

Interest receivable 1,786 1,826

Taxes receivable - 510,699

Accounts receivable - 398,422
Due from other governments - 199

Total assets $ 675,518 $ 1,666,402
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ - $ 533,353
Due to other governments - 511,782
Deposits payable - 337,735
Payable to bondholders - 283,532
Total liabilities - $ 1,666,402
NET ASSETS

Held in trust for library programs $ 675,518

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Santa Cruz

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Private-
Purpose
Trust Funds

ADDITIONS:

Donations $ 146,000

Investment earnings 8,539
Total additions 154,539

DEDUCTIONS:

Library programs 19,455
Total deductions 19,455
Change in net assets 135,084

NET ASSETS:

Beginning of year 540,434

End of year $ 675,518

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Santa Cruz
Index to Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2010
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City of Santa Cruz
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Santa Cruz, California (City) have been prepared in
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental
agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated as a town in 1866 under the laws of the State of California. It became
a City in 1876. The City is a charter city administered under a council/manager form of
government.

The financial statements present the City and its component units (legally separate entities for
which the City is considered to be financially accountable). Component units include those
entities for which the City may have governing authority or is in a relationship of financial
benefit or burden. Component units also include entities that are fiscally dependent upon the
City. The financial activities of these entities are integrally related to those of the City and,
therefore, blended with those of the City. Blending involves combining component unit data
with City data in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Based on the above criteria, the accompanying financial statements include the financial
activities of the following entities as blended component units:

City of Santa Cruz Redevelopment Agency - The City of Santa Cruz Redevelopment Agency
(Agency) was formed in 1956 to improve social, physical and economic conditions of the City by
constructing a series of commercial, residential and public buildings in the downtown area. The
City's Council Members are the Agency's Directors and have full accountability for the Agency's
fiscal matters. Separate financial statements for the Agency can be obtained from the Finance
Department of the City.

Santa Cruz Public Improvement Financing Corporation - The Santa Cruz Public Improvement
Financing Corporation (Corporation) is a non-profit benefit corporation organized and operated
under the laws of the State of California. The primary purpose of the Corporation is to serve as
a financing vehicle for the City. The City Council is responsible for the operations of the
Corporation.

City of Santa Cruz Public Financing Authority - The City of Santa Cruz Public Financing
Authority (Authority) is a Joint Powers Authority formed February 14, 2006, between the
Redevelopment Agency and the City for the purpose of creating a public agency which could
provide financial assistance to the Redevelopment Agency and the City in connection with the
construction of public capital improvements.
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City of Santa Cruz
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and
the means by which spending activities are controlled.

The City’s Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets and a
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. These statements present summaries of
governmental and business-type activities for the City accompanied by a total column.
Fiduciary activities of the City are not included in these statements.

Government - Wide Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets and liabilities,
including capital assets, as well as infrastructure assets, and long-term liabilities, are included
in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Activities presents changes in
net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in
which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is
incurred. Certain indirect costs are included in the program expense reported for individual
functions and activities.

Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories:

> Charges for services
> Operating grants and contributions
> Capital grants and contributions

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to
interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net
Assets have been eliminated except those representing balances between the governmental
activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances and
eliminated in the total primary government column. In the Statement of Activities and
Changes in Net Assets, internal service fund transactions have been eliminated; however,
those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been
eliminated. The following interfund activities have been eliminated:

> Due to/from other funds
> Advances to/from other funds
> Transfers in/out
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City of Santa Cruz
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

For its business-type activities, the City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements currently
in effect, as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins (ARB) of the Committee on Accounting Procedure that do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and
non-major funds aggregated. The City has presented all major funds that meet the applicable
criteria. The City’s major governmental funds include the General Fund, Redevelopment
Agency Fund, and the General Capital Improvement Fund. The General Fund is used to
account for sources and uses of financial resources traditionally associated with governments,
and which are not required to be accounted for in another fund. The Redevelopment Agency
Fund is used to account for all the activities of the City of Santa Cruz Redevelopment Agency.
This includes the accumulation of resources for the payment of interest and principal on debt
issued to finance redevelopment activities, and general redevelopment operations. The
General Capital Improvement Fund is used to account for capital improvements for which
special projects funds have not been established. A portion of the City’s transient occupancy
tax receipts, combined with other funding sources, such as grants, provides funding for capital
projects of general benefit, such as storm drain improvements, or improvements to public
buildings.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources"
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current
assets and current liabilities are included on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances presents increases (revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in
which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current
period. Generally, revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60 days after
fiscal year end. If revenues are not subject to accrual, they are recorded when received in cash.
The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the City,
are property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues and other taxes. Expenditures are
recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred.

Deferred revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the “measurable” and
“available” criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the
government receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are
received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue
recognition criteria are met or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the
deferred revenue is removed from the Balance Sheet and revenue is recognized.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in net assets as
presented in the Fund Financial Statements to the net assets presented in the Government-Wide
Financial Statements.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each
proprietary fund.

A separate column representing internal service funds is also presented in these statements.
However, internal service balances and activities have been combined with the governmental
activities in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. Internal Service Funds may be used
to report any activity that provides goods or services to other funds, departments, or agencies
of the primary government. Examples are Equipment Operations, Telecommunications, and
Risk Management Funds.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) are included on the Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in
total net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in
which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is
incurred. In these funds, receivables have been recorded as revenue and provisions have been
made for uncollectible amounts.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the
primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues.
Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund.
All other expenses are reported as nonoperating expenses.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and a
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets. The City's fiduciary funds consist of private-
purpose trust funds and agency funds. Private-purpose trust funds are used to account for
resources legally held in trust for special purposes, such as the McCaskill Trusts for local
history and the visually impaired; the Finkeldey Trust for musical literature; and the Whalen
Trust for the Felton Library Branch. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal
liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of results of operations. Agency funds are
accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting, and include funds for the Library Joint
Powers Authority, developer deposits, payroll payables, and special assessment debt.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
C. Use of Restricted / Unrestricted Net Assets

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted net assets first.

D. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be amounts in demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. For
purposes of both the Balance Sheet and Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes currency on hand and deposits in the City’s cash and investment pool. These deposits
have the same characteristics for the participating funds as demand deposit accounts, in that
the funds may deposit additional cash at any time and also effectively withdraw cash at any
time without prior notice or penalty. Cash and cash equivalents also include restricted cash
and money market funds held by fiscal agents. The City’s cash and investments are stated at
fair value, which is based on a quoted market price. This includes all investments except the
City’s investment in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF determines
fair value on its investment portfolio based on market quotations for those securities where
market quotations are readily available and based on amortized cost or best estimate for those
securities where market value is not readily available. The City valued its investments in LAIF
at June 30, 2010, by multiplying its account balance by a fair value factor determined by LAIF
(1.001643776). This fair value factor was calculated by dividing the total aggregate fair value
for all LAIF participants by the total aggregate amortized cost.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows of the proprietary fund types, cash and cash
equivalents include all investments, as the City operates an internal cash management pool
which maintains the general characteristics of a demand deposit account.

E. Restricted Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents

Certain restricted cash and investments are held by fiscal agents for the redemption of bonded
debt and for acquisition and construction of capital projects.

E. Prepaid Items
Certain payments applicable to future accounting periods are recorded as prepaid items.
Prepaid items do not reflect current appropriable resources and, thus, an equivalent portion of
fund balance is reserved.

G. Inventories
Inventories consist of material and supplies which are stated at cost using the first-in, first-out

method. Inventories are recognized as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
H. Interfund Transactions

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the long-term portion of
interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements as
“internal balances.”

I. Capital Assets

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets having an estimated useful life in excess of one
year, and an initial, individual cost in excess of the capitalization thresholds described below:

Infrastructure $ 25,000
Buildings and lease improvements ~ $ 10,000
Land improvements $ 10,000
Machinery and equipment $ 5,000
Software (if qualified) $ 5,000

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not
available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
donated. Assets acquired under capital leases are capitalized in accordance with GAAP.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest accrued during capital assets construction, if any, is capitalized for the business-type
activities and proprietary funds as part of the asset cost. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset’s useful life are
not capitalized. Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and lease improvements 15-50 years
Water tanks and water mains 30-50 years
Underground sewer lines 50 years
Other infrastructure 5-100 years
Machinery and equipment 5-20 years
Software ( if qualified) 5 years
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

L

Capital Assets, Continued

Assets are grouped by asset type into one of the following accounts: land; land improvements;
infrastructure (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), buildings (and
improvements); machinery and equipment; lease improvements; software; and construction in
progress.

For all infrastructure systems, the City’s capitalization threshold is $25,000. Estimated
historical costs of infrastructures were developed in one of three ways: 1) historical records; 2)
standard unit costs appropriate for the construction/acquisition date; or 3) present cost
indexed by a reciprocal factor of the price increase from the construction/acquisition date to
the current date. The accumulated depreciation, defined as the total depreciation from the
date of construction/acquisition to the current date on a straight line, unrecovered cost
method was computed using industry-accepted life expectancies for each infrastructure
subsystem. The book value was then computed by deducting the accumulated depreciation
from the estimated historical cost.

Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets are not presented in the governmental fund financial statements. Consequently,
capital assets are shown as a reconciling item in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets.

Interest Payable

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, interest payable on long-term debt is
recognized as the liability is incurred for governmental fund types and proprietary fund types.

In the Fund Financial Statements, only proprietary fund types recognize the interest payable
when the liability is incurred.

Deferred Revenue

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, deferred revenue is recognized for transactions
for which revenue has not yet been earned. Typical transactions recorded as deferred
revenues in the Government-Wide Financial Statements are long-term assessments and long-
term loans receivable.

In the Fund Financial Statements, deferred revenue is recorded when transactions have not yet
met the revenue recognition criteria based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The
City records deferred revenue for transactions for which revenues have not been earned, or for
which funds are not available to meet current financial obligations. Typical transactions for
which deferred revenue is recorded are grants received but not yet earned or available,
interest on interfund advances receivable, long-term assessments, and loans receivable.
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1.
L.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Compensated Absences

The City has accumulated unpaid regular vacation leave (for all departments) which is
accounted for in accordance with GAAP. The maximum accumulation of vacation leave is
limited to the total number of hours accruable during two years. Employees are paid 100% of
their accumulated vacation pay when they terminate their employment for any reason.
Employees are allowed a partial payoff of accumulated sick leave up to a certain maximum
amount.

Bond Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs

For governmental type activities, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
recognized during the current period. Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources
net of the applicable premium or discount. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

For business-type activities, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using a straight-line method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs and costs in
excess of net assets acquired are reported as other assets in the accompanying financial
statements.

Long-Term Debt

Government-Wide Financial Statements - Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental and business-type activities.

Fund Financial Statements - With the exception of compensated absences and advances from other
funds, the governmental fund financial statements do not present long-term liabilities.
Consequently, long-term debt is shown as a reconciling item in the Reconciliation of the
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets.

Net Assets

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, net assets are classified in the following
categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This amount consists of capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Assets - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors,
laws or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Assets — This amount is all net assets that do not meet the definition of
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt” or “restricted net assets”.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

P. Fund Balances - Reservations and Designations

In the Fund Financial Statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balances for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for
use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balances represent tentative management
plans that are subject to change.

Q. Property Taxes

Assessed property values are determined annually by the County Assessor as of March 1, and
become a lien on real property at July 1. Taxes are due November 1 and February 1 and are
delinquent if not paid by December 10 and April 10, respectively. The County bills and collects
property taxes and remits them to the City under the State-authorized method of apportioning
taxes whereby all local agencies, including cities, receive from the county their respective shares
of the amount of ad valorem taxes collected. Property tax revenues are recognized when levied,
provided the measurement and availability criteria have been met.

R. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. In
addition, estimates affect the reported amount of expenses. Actual results could differ from
these estimates and assumptions.

S. Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements

In 2010, the City adopted new accounting standards in order to conform to the following GASB
Statements:

> GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets - the
Statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope
provisions be classified as capital assets. Governments possess many different types of
assets that may be considered intangible assets, including easements, water rights,
patents, trademarks, and computer software. The implementation of this statement
does not have significant impact on the City’s financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

For the year ended June 30, 2010

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of cash, cash equivalents, and investments, including restricted cash
and investments with fiscal agents at June 30, 2010:

Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets

Statement of

Governmental Business-Type Fiduciary
Activities Activities Total Net Assets Total
Unrestricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 44,793,388 $ 69,698,507 114,491,895 $ 1,376,742 $ 115,868,637
Total unrestricted assets 44,793,388 69,698,507 114,491,895 1,376,742 115,868,637
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 3,613,093 2,413,640 6,026,733 52,246 6,078,979

Investments with fiscal agents - 427,656 427,656 - 427,656
Total restricted assets 3,613,093 2,841,296 6,454,389 52,246 6,506,635
Grand Total $ 48,406,481 $ 72,539,803 120,946,284 $ 1,428988 $ 122,375,272

The City pools its available cash for investment purposes.

Investment income from this pool is

allocated to each fund based on its proportionate share of the pool. Cash and investments not
pooled include bond proceeds held by fiscal agents and other amounts required to be segregated
by bond indentures or other regulations. Investment income from cash and investments with
fiscal agents is credited directly to the related fund.

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2010:

Unrestricted assets:
Pooled cash deposits
Outstanding checks

Other deposits and cash held by city

Certificates of deposit
Federal securities

State local agency investment fund (LAIF)

Total unrestricted assets

Restricted assets:
Pooled cash deposits
Other cash deposits

Money market mutual funds held by fiscal agents

State local agency investment fund (LAIF)

Federal securities held by fiscal agents

Total restricted assets

Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments
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(1,050,387)
75,199
696,000
35,368,150
77,688,934

115,868,637

146,020
82,458
2,997,073
2,853,428
427,656

6,506,635
$ 122,375,272



City of Santa Cruz
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2010

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
A. Cash Deposits

At June 30, 2010, the carrying amounts of the City’s cash deposits were $2,344,030, net of
outstanding checks in the amount of $1,050,387. Bank balances before reconciling items were
$3,128,304. The total bank balance was collateralized or insured with securities held by the
pledging financial institutions in the City’s name as discussed below.

The California Government Code requires California financial institutions to secure the City’s
cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged in
this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to
those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for cash deposits is considered to be held in the
City's name.

The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the City's cash deposits.
California law also allows institutions to secure city deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the City’s total cash deposits. The City may waive
collateral requirements for cash deposits, which are fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation.

The City waived the collateral requirements for three of its certificates of deposit, as follows,
with the condition that sufficient collateral be maintained for all amounts in excess of insured
levels: Bay Federal Credit Union - $100,000, Rabobank - $250,000, and Santa Cruz County
Bank - $100,000.

B. Investments

The investments made by the City treasurer are limited to those allowable under State statutes
as incorporated into the City’s Investment Policy, dated June 15, 2010, which is more
conservative than that allowed by State statute.

The scope of the investment policy includes all activities of the City and the following
reporting entities:

City of Santa Cruz
City of Santa Cruz Redevelopment Agency
Santa Cruz Public Improvement Financing Corporation

YV V VYV V

Santa Cruz Public Financing Authority
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2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

B. Investments, Continued

Under provisions of this policy, the City is authorized to invest in the following types of
investments:

>
>
>

Money market accounts deposited with a nationally or state-chartered bank.
Bonds issued by the City. Purchases of this type shall not exceed five years to maturity.

U.S. Treasury bills, notes, bonds, or certificates of indebtedness, or those securities
backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government with maturities not to exceed
five years.

Obligations, participations, or other instruments of, or issued by, a Federal agency or a
United States government-sponsored enterprise with maturities not to exceed five
years.

Bankers” acceptances with a term not to exceed 180 days” maturity or 40% of the City’s
portfolio.

Nonnegotiable and nontransferable certificates of deposit issued by the following types
of financial institutions which have branch office locations within Santa Cruz County:
a nationally or state-chartered bank, state or federal credit union, or a state-licensed
branch of a foreign bank. Purchases may not exceed 30% of the City’s portfolio with no
more than 5% of the portfolio deposited with a single issuer.

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund as long as the total amount of City
and Agency combined funds invested does not exceed the limit set by LAIF.

Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies investing in
authorized securities and obligations (e.g., money market mutual funds). Purchases
shall not exceed 20% of the City’s portfolio with no more than 10% of the portfolio in a
single mutual fund.

Repurchase agreements with primary dealers of the Federal Reserve with specific terms
and conditions. The market value of securities that underlie a repurchase agreement
shall be valued at 102% or greater of the funds borrowed against those securities, and
the value shall be adjusted no less than quarterly. Securities that can be pledged for
collateral consist only of investments permitted within this policy with a maximum
maturity of five years. Purchases shall not exceed 92 days to maturity and 20% of the
portfolio.

Internal financing pool established for the purpose of providing loans to City
departments or funds for significant one-time purchases. Investments in the pool shall
not exceed the lesser of $10 million or 10% of the City’s portfolio.

Bond proceeds held by fiscal agents to be used only for specific capital outlay, payments of
certain long-term debt and maintaining required reserves are invested in accordance with the
requirements and restrictions of the City’s investment policy and as permitted by specific State
statutes, applicable City ordinance or resolution, and bond indenture requirements.
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2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

B. Investments, Continued

The City is a participant in LAIF, which is regulated by California Government Code Section
16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The City’s investments
with LAIF at June 30, 2010, included a portion of the pool funds invested in Structured Notes
and Asset-Backed Securities:

Structured Notes: debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow
characteristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more
indices and/or that have embedded forwards or options.

Asset-Backed Securities: generally mortgage-backed securities that entitle their purchasers to
receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest
repayments from a pool of mortgages (for example, Collateralized Mortgage Obligations) or
credit card receivables.

As of June 30, 2010, the City had $80,542,362 invested in LAIF accounts, which had invested
5.413% of the pool investments in structured notes and asset-backed securities as compared to
14.713% in the previous year. The City’s share of structured notes and asset-backed securities
due to its holdings in LAIF amounted to approximately 3.632% of investments at June 30, 2010.

. Risk Disclosures

Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to
two and one-half (2 2) years or less. The City is in compliance with this provision of the
investment policy.

At June 30, 2010, the City had the following investment maturities:
Investment Maturities in Years

Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years
Year

U.S. Agencies 35,368,150 4,026,890 8,070,150 15,158,600 7,099,380

Certificates of Deposit 696,000 696,000 - - -

Local Agency Investment Fund 77,688,934 77,688,934 - - -

Total Fair Value of Investments Only* 113,753,084 82,411,824 8,070,150 15,158,600 7,099,380

*Does not include net amount of bank balances
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2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
C. Risk Disclosures, Continued

Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations - Investments in callable
bonds are investments that, although having clearly defined maturities, allow for the issuer to
redeem or call such bonds earlier than their respective maturity dates. The investor must then
replace the called bonds with investments that may have lower yield than the original bonds.
As a result, the fair value of the callable bonds is highly sensitive to changes in interest rates.
As of June 30, 2010, the City held $19,551,386 in callable securities, which amounted to
approximately 16.29% of investments at June 30, 2010. The investment policy limits the
purchase of callable U.S. Agency instruments to discreet calls and those that pay at least 100%
of the principal at the redemption date. In addition, purchases of callable U.S. Agency
instruments are not to exceed 30% of the value of the portfolio. The City is in compliance with
these provisions of the investment policy.

Credit Risk - State law limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds to the top
two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The City’s
investments are rated as follows:

Standard

Moody's & Poor's
U.S. Agencies
Federal Farm Credit Bank Aaa AAA
Federal Home Loan Bank Aaa AAA
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Aaa AAA
Federal National Mortgage Association Aaa AAA
U.S. Treasury Money Market Mutual Funds
BlackRock - Treasury Trust Fund Aaa AAAM-G
BlackRock - T-Fund Aaa AAAmM
Federated Government Obligations Fund Aaa AAAmM
Goldman Sachs - Tax-Free Fund Aaa Not Rated
Goldman Sachs - Treasury Instruments Portfolio Aaa AAAM-G
External Pool
State of California - Local Agency Investment Fund Not Rated Not Rated

The City’s investment policy requires that the management company of mutual funds must
have attained the highest ranking or the highest letter and numerical rating provided by not
less than two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The investment in the
Goldman Sachs Tax-Free Money Market Fund is rated by only one nationally recognized
statistical rating organization; however, it is approved by the National Association of Investors
Corporation.
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2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
C. Risk Disclosures, Continued

Concentration of Credit Risk - The City’s investment policy states that not more than 25% of the
portfolio shall be invested in any one entity or any one instrument to protect the City from
concentration of credit risk, with the following exceptions: U.S. Treasury Obligations and the
external investment pool (LAIF). In addition, purchases of mutual funds must not exceed 20%
of the value of the portfolio. Purchases in a single mutual fund may not exceed 10% of the
value of the portfolio. The City is in compliance with these provisions of the investment

policy.

The following chart presents investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities
and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total investments at June 30, 2010:

Percentage of

Investment Type Amount Invested Investments
Federal Home Loan Bank $ 13,641,126 11.36%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 6,034,660 5.03%
Federal National Mortgage Association 14,097,510 11.74%
Total $ 33,773,296 28.13%

The following chart presents the City’s investments in money market mutual funds by issuer
at June 30, 2010:

U.S. Treasury Money Market Percentage of
Mutual Funds Amount Invested Investments
BlackRock - Treasury Trust Fund $ 836,923 0.70%
BlackRock - T-Fund 470,033 0.39%
Federated Government Obligations Fund 4,611 0.00%
Goldman Sachs - Tax-Free Fund 1,023,265 0.85%
Goldman Sachs - Treasury Instruments Portfolio 662,242 0.55%
Total $ 2,997,074 2.49%

Custodial Credit Risk - For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of a deposit financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or
will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that
are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s investment policy does not contain legal or
policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or
investments, other than the provision for deposits stated in Note 2A. $2,720,648 of the City’s
deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits was held in
uncollateralized accounts. Of the City’s total cash and investment balance at June 30, 2010,
$3,424,730 was held by fiscal agents, not in the name of the City, and invested as follows:

$427,656 in federal agency securities and $2,997,074 in money market mutual funds.
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3. NOTES AND LOANS RECEIVABLES

The following is a summary of notes and loans receivables net of allowances for uncollectible
amounts at June 30, 2010:

Notes Loans
Receivables Receivables Total

Governmental Funds:
General Funds 178,357 391,140 569,497
Redevelopment Agency 8,445,431 - 8,445,431
Other Governmental Funds 594,424 2,745,410 3,339,834
Total governmental funds 9,218,212 3,136,550 12,354,762

Proprietaty Funds

Water Fund 401,058 - 401,058
Wastewater 12,607,565 - 12,607,565
Storm Water 159,170 - 159,170
Total Proprietaty Funds 13,167,793 - 13,167,793
Total $ 22,386,006 $ 3,136,550 $ 25,522,555

Notes Receivable in the General Fund of $178,357 (net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts of
$381,007) consists of a no interest note with Neary Lagoon Partners in the amount of $78,800; a no
interest note with the River Street Shelter in the amount of $2,100; a no interest note with First Night
Santa Cruz in the amount of $20,000; a note with the Harvey West Assessment District in the
amount of $106,256 with an interest rate of 6.8%; notes with various Housing In-Lieu program
participants in the amount of $282,208 with an interest rate of 3%; and notes with two participants
in the Accessory Dwelling Unit Loan Program in the amount of $70,000 with an interest rate of
4.5%. Some notes are secured by a deed of trust.

The Redevelopment Agency Fund notes receivable balance of $8,445,431 (net of an allowance
for uncollectible amounts of $336,547) represents loans for low/moderate income housing
projects. There are two types of loan repayment for these notes: due upon sale or transfer
and lump sum payment at maturity. Interest rates range from 0% to 7%. The notes are all
secured by a deed of trust.

Notes receivable in the Housing and Community Development special revenue fund of $594,424
(net of an allowance of $3,444,079) represent disaster relief funds for buildings damaged in the 1989
earthquake. There are two types of loan repayment plans: monthly repayment and deferred to a
future date when monthly repayment will begin. The interest rate on these notes is 3%. The notes
are all secured by a deed of trust.
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3. NOTES AND LOANS RECEIVABLES, Continued

Notes Receivables in the enterprise funds total $13,167,793. $159,170 of the total relates to a levee
construction and improvement project; $401,058 of the total is made up of two notes. Both are due
from Neary Lagoon Partners for water system connection fees pertaining to a low-moderate income
housing project. These notes do not bear interest, and repayment is deferred until 2019; The
remaining $12,607,565 ($1,251,160 due within one year and $11,356,405 due in more than one year)
is owed by the County of Santa Cruz for its share of a State Water Resources Board loan for
wastewater treatment plant upgrades. Payments of interest and principal from the County of
Santa Cruz are due in annual installments of $1,604,172, at an interest rate of 2.8%, with the final
payment due August 1, 2018.

Loans Receivable in the general fund consists of a loan between the City and the Santa Cruz
Library Joint Powers Authority with an outstanding balance of $391,140 as of June 30, 2010. The
City and the Authority entered into a loan agreement in the amount of $467,303 in September, 2008
for the financing of tenant improvements to the City’s Union/Locust building, which the Authority
leases from the City under a long-term lease agreement. The loan will be repaid over a period of ten
years, with an annual interest rate of 5% and the annual debt service payment is $60,518. The first
payment was made in January, 2009 and final payment will be made in January, 2018.

Loans receivable in the other governmental funds consists of loans of $2,745,410 allowance of
$5,550,048) for rehabilitation of low/moderate income housing. The loans are made with Federal
funds from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The City administers
these funds for HUD. There are four types of loan repayment schedules: monthly installments, due
upon sale or transfer, deferred to a future date when monthly repayment will begin, and no
repayment if the property remains in use for low/moderate income housing for a specified time
period. Interest rate ranges from 0% to 7%. The loans are all secured by a deed of trust on the
property being rehabilitated.

Allowance for uncollectible notes and loans - When considerable uncertainty exists as to the
collectibility of a note (as determined by management) due to the terms of the loan or other factors,
it is offset by an allowance for uncollectible.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2010

4. DEPOSITS

The City had deposits in the amount of $1,503,410 at June 30, 2010:

Governmental Activities:

Housing Programs $ 70,304
Workers Compensation 150,000
Liability Insurance 1,253,106
Total Governmental Activities 1,473,410

Business-type Activities:
Parking $ 30,000
Total Business type Activities 30,000

Total $ 1,503,410

A. Governmental Activities

Deposits in the City’s governmental activities total $1,473,410 at June 30, 2010. A deposit in the
amount of $70,000 was established with the Santa Cruz Community Credit Union for the purpose
of maintaining an Accessory Dwelling Unit Loan Program. The deposit has accumulated interest
of $304 for a total deposit at June 30, 2010 of $70,304. In FY 2005, the Workers Compensation
Internal Service Fund established a deposit in the amount of $150,000 with the Sedgwick CMS
which equals approximately 6 weeks of expected claims. As referenced in the Risk Management
and Self Insurance Note, the City is self-insured up to $1,000,000. At June 30, 2010 the City had a
deposit in the amount of $1,253,106 with ACCEL.

B. Business type Activities

In FY 2005 a deposit in the amount $30,000 was established with Katzoff & Riggs relating to a
Commingled Plume Investigation and Remediation settlement between the City’s and Friend,
Friend & Friend, L.P. At June 30, 2010 the City had a deposit in the amount of $30,000 with
Katzoff & Riggs.
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City of Santa Cruz
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2010

5.

INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

A. Government-Wide Financial Statements

Internal Balances

At June 30, 2010, the City had the following internal balances:

Internal Balances

Payable
Governmental
Activities
I Internal Balances Receivable |
Business-Type Activities $ 2.671,109

This balance consists of the net amount of internal balances to fund various projects between
the Redevelopment Agency Funds and the Parking Enterprise Funds and between the
Wastewater Enterprise Funds and the General Capital Improvement Fund; and to fund cash
advances between the General Fund and the Golf Enterprise Funds.

Transfers

The City had the following transfers for the year ending June 30, 2010:

| Transfers In I

Governmental
Activities
| Transfers Out |
Business-Type Activities $ 205,712

Transfers are used to move revenues from various enterprise funds to the General Capital
Improvement Fund for financing a share of various project costs; from the Parking Enterprise
Fund to the General Fund for share of costs for increased downtown parking garage and lot
security; and from various enterprise funds to the General Fund for the share of costs for the
After Hours Call Duty Program.
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5. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS, Continued

B. Fund Financial Statements

The City had the following due to/from other funds as of June 30, 2010:

I Due from Other Funds I
12}
=t
5
= General
St
% Fund Total
o
-E Golf Course Enterprise Fund 851,000 851,000
& | Internal Service Funds 478,543 478543
Total $ 1,329,543 $ 1,329543

The outstanding balances between funds results from short-term loans from the General Fund
to the Golf Course Enterprise Fund and to the Telecom Internal Service Fund cover negative

cash.

Long-Term Advances

The City had the following long-term advances as of June 30, 2010:

I Advances to Other Funds

° Redevelopment Wastewater  Risk Mgmnt
E General Agency Enterprise Internal
5 Fund Fund Fund Service Fund Total
<
2 Redevelopment Agency Fund $ 82899 $ - $ - $ - $ 83289
_E General CIP 2,509,686 - 50,433 5,000,000 7,560,119
§ Non-Major Governmental Funds 286,764 - - - 286,764
=]
g | Parking Enterprise Fund - 320,672 - - 320,672
e
< ] Golf Enterprise Fund 1,549,870 - - - 1,549,870

Total $ 5,179,219 $ 320,672 $ 50,433 $ 5,000,000 $ 10,550,324

Long-term advances were made 1) from the General Fund to the Redevelopment Agency Fund
to finance Redevelopment projects; 2) from the General Fund, Wastewater Enterprise Fund,
and Risk Management Internal Service Fund to the General Capital Improvement Fund to fund
the citywide Street Overlay Project; 3) from the General Fund to the Housing and Community
Development Special Revenue Fund as a deposit for matching grant funds; 4) from the
Redevelopment Agency Fund to the Parking Enterprise Fund to finance two parking capital
improvements projects; and 5) from the General Fund to the Golf Enterprise Fund representing
principal and accrued interest for a long-term cash advance.
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City of Santa Cruz

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

For the year ended June 30, 2010

5. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS, Continued

B. Fund Financial Statements, Continued

Transfers In / Out

The City had the following transfers for the year ending June 30, 2010:

I Transfers In I
Non-Major
General Redevelopment General Governmental
Fund Agency Capital Imp. Funds Total
General Fund $ - % - $ - $ 428,962 % 428,962
Redevelopment Fund - 3,547,679 - - 3,547,679
General Capital

5 Improvement Fund - - 500 - 500

% Non-Major

& | Governmental Funds 30,000 - 259,872 154,177 444,049

é Enterprise Funds: - - - -

a Water 1,637 - 6,500 - 8,137
Wastewater 17,535 - 134,415 - 151,950
Refuse - - 11,500 - 11,500
Parking 34,000 - - - 34,000
Golf Course 125 - - - 125

Internal Service Funds - - 68,566 - 68,566
Total $ 83297 $ 3,547,679 % 481,353 $ 583,139 $ 4,695,468

In addition to transfers made between Governmental Type activities and Business Type
activities previously identified above, transfers were made 1) to the Lease Revenue Bond Debt
Service Fund from the General Fund for debt service payments; 2) to and from the various
Redevelopment Agency Funds for debt service payments and to fund various redevelopment
projects; 3) to General Capital Improvement Fund from the Sidewalk In-Lieu Capital
Improvement Fund to fund projects; 4) to the General Fund from the Police Asset
Seizure/Youth Crime Prevention Special Revenue Fund to support Teen Services Programs, to
the General Capital Improvement fund from the Gas Tax and Traffic Impact Fee Special
Revenue Funds and to the Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund from the Traffic Impact Fee Special
Revenue Fund to support various projects; and 5) to the General Capital Improvement Fund
from the Liability Internal Service Fund to support various projects.
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS

A. Government-Wide Financial Statements

At June 30, 2010 the City’s capital assets consisted of the following;:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Capital Assets:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 60,380,806 $ 1,819,287 $ 62,200,093
Construction in progress 5,016,231 25,239,349 30,255,580
Subtotal, capital assets, not being depreciated 65,397,037 27,058,636 92,455,673
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 8,240,309 4,344,973 12,585,282
Infrastructure 206,833,712 171,168,085 378,001,797
Buildings 45,067,703 160,568,423 205,636,126
Machinery and equipment 13,250,399 26,074,299 39,324,698
Lease improvements 724,114 70,000 794,114
Software 1,220,476 867,238 2,087,714
Subtotal, capital assets, being depreciated 275,336,713 363,093,018 638,429,731
Total capital assets 340,733,750 390,151,654 730,885,404
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (3,406,417) (1,398,420) (4,804,837)
Infrastructure (126,055,743) (79,138,746) (205,194,489)
Buildings (12,439,440) (66,373,262) (78,812,702)
Machinery and equipment (8,895,392) (17,012,682) (25,908,074)
Lease improvements (574,055) (22,633) (596,688)
Software (1,123,954) (564,368) (1,688,322)
Total accumulated depreciation (152,495,001) (164,510,111) (317,005,112)
Total capital assets, net $ 188,238,749 $ 225,641,543 $ 413,880,292
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City of Santa Cruz

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

For the year ended June 30, 2010

6. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued

A. Government-Wide Financial Statements, Continued

The following is a summary of capital assets for governmental activities:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Subtotal, capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land improvements
Infrastructure

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Lease improvements

Software

Subtotal, capital assets, being depreciated

Total capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements
Infrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Lease improvements

Software

Total accumulated depreciation

Capital assets, being depreciated, net

Total capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2009 Additions Deletions June 30, 2010
$ 60,380,806 $ - $ - $ 60,380,806
4,117,673 1,896,885 (998,327) 5,016,231
64,498,479 1,896,885 (998,327) 65,397,037
8,213,319 26,990 - 8,240,309
206,175,621 668,719 (10,628) 206,833,712
44,957,405 110,298 - 45,067,703
13,327,533 674,728 (751,862) 13,250,399
724,114 - - 724,114
1,220,476 . . 1,220,476
274,618,468 1,480,735 (762,490) 275,336,713
339,116,947 3,377,620 (1,760,817) 340,733,750
(2,865,217) (541,200) - (3,406,417)
(121,285,890) (4,769,853) - (126,055,743)
(11,398,977) (1,040,463) - (12,439,440)
(8,727,539) (896,082) 728,229 (8,895,392)
(509,394) (64,661) - (574,055)
(1,092,722) (31,232) - (1,123,954)
(145,879,739) (7,343,491) 728,229 (152,495,001)
128,738,729 (5,862,756) (34,261) 122,841,712
$ 193,237,208 $ (3,965,871) $ (1,032,588) $ 188,238,749
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City of Santa Cruz
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2010

6. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued
A. Government-Wide Financial Statements, Continued

Depreciation expense of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2010 was $7,343,491
and was distributed as follows.

General Government $ 518,786
Public Safety 749,449
Parks and Recreation 2,072,912
Library - City 26,800
Public Works 3,661,486
Community & Economic Development 152,679
Total depreciation expense- general government 7,182,112
Internal Service Funds 161,379
Total depreciation expense- governmental activities 7,343,491

The following is a summary of capital assets for business-type activities:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2009 Additions Deletions June 30,2010
Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,819,287 $ - 8 - % 1,819,287
Construction in process 21,659,072 7,386,427 (3,806,150) 25,239,349
Subtotal, capital assets, not being deprecia 23,478,359 7,386,427 (3,806,150) 27,058,636
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 3,713,741 631,232 - 4,344,973
Infrastructure 168,671,035 2,917,050 (420,000) 171,168,085
Buildings 160,386,023 182,400 - 160,568,423
Machinery and equipment 25,669,480 1,290,317 (885,498) 26,074,299
Lease improvements 70,000 - - 70,000
Software 571,257 295,981 - 867,238
Subtotal, capital assets, being depreciated 359,081,536 5,316,980 (1,305,498) 363,093,018
Total capital assets 382,559,895 12,703,407 (5,111,648) 390,151,654
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (1,204,698) (193,722) - (1,398,420)
Infrastructure (76,068,160) (3,490,586) 420,000 (79,138,746)
Buildings (62,895,197) (3,478,065) - (66,373,262)
Machinery and equipment (15,368,608) (2,471,824) 827,750 (17,012,682)
Lease improvements (19,833) (2,800) - (22,633)
Software (551,896) (12,472) - (564,368)
Total accumulated depreciation (156,108,392) (9,649,469) 1,247,750 (164,510,111)
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 202,973,144 (4,332,489) (57,748) 198,582,907
Total capital assets, net $ 226,451,503 $ 3,053,938 $ (3,863,898) $225,641,543
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City of Santa Cruz
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2010

6. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued
A. Government-Wide Financial Statements, Continued

Business-type activities depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2010 is as follows:

Water $ 2,098,957
Wastewater 4,281,363
Refuse 1,790,214
Parking 520,497
Storm Water 747,208
Golf Course 211,230

Total depreciation expense $ 9,649,469

B. Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements do not present general government capital assets, but they are
shown in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide
Statement of Net Assets.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT

A. Governmental Activities

Long-term debt for governmental activities consisted of the following amounts at June 30, 2010:

Annual Principal Original Issue Balance at
Description/Purpose Maturity Interest Rates Installments Amount June 30, 2010
Compensated Absences
Accumulated, unpaid vacation leave n/a n/a n/a n/a $3,389,687
Claims and Judgments
Liability and workers compensation claims
paid by Risk Management internal service
fund n/a n/a n/a n/a $10,061,824
2001 Certificates of Participation
Issued for Civic Center acquisition,
construction and improvement 4/1/02-4/1/31 4.6%-5.0% $75,000-$270,000 $4,415,000 $3,630,000
2010 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Refinanced 1999 GO Bonds issued for the
acquisition and construction of municipal
improvements 9/1/10-9/1/29 2.0%-4.375% $180,000-$605,000 $6,995,000 $6,995,000
Unamortized Premium 29,849
Deferred Amount on Refunding (87,646)
Net Balance $6,937,203
2007 Lease Revenue Bonds
Issued for land acquisition and
improvements for public library and water
department purposes 6/30/09-6/30/37 4.0%-5.0% $125,000-$445,000 $6,880,000 $6,625,000
Unamortized Premium 1,688
Net Balance $6,626,688
Note Payable
For lawn bowling park renovation 1/24/07-1/24/11 0% $20,000 $100,000 $20,000
2004 Tax Allocation Bonds
Refinanced Redevelopment Agency
earthquake recovery and reconstruction
bonds 10/1/05-10/1/31  2.5%-4.625% $120,000-$320,000 $5,245,000 $4,620,000
Unamortized Premium 13,871
Deferred Amount on Refunding (21,671)
Net Balance $4,612,200
Capital Lease Obligations
To acquire land for a homeless services
center 1/1/03-1/1/21 4.644% $26,027-$57,754 $765,000 $511,525
Other Long-Term Liabilities
Redevelopment Agency owner participation
agreements for the Chestnut Street
Assessment District 9/2/99-9/2/11 5.6% $25,504-$57,385 $531,339 $110,519
$35,899,646
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

A. Governmental Activities, Continued

The following table summarizes long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Compensated absences
Claims and judgments
Certificates of participation
General obligation bonds:
1999 bonds
2009 refunding bonds:
Bond issuance premiums
Deferred amounts on refunding
Total general obligation bonds
Leaserevenue bonds:
Bond issuance premiums
Total lease revenue bonds
Tax allocation bonds:
Bond issuance premiums
Deferred amounts on refunding
Total tax allocation bonds
Notes payable
Capital lease obligations
Other long-term liabilities

Subtotal

Total

Amount Amount
Balance Accreted Balance Due Within  Due in More
July 1,2009 Interest Additions Retirements  June 30, 2010 OneYear Than One Year
$ 3,079818 $ - $ 2332917 $ (2,023,048) $ 338,687 $ 225,792 $ 1,129,8%
10,061,824 - - - 10,061,824 2,779,942 7,281,882
3,791577 - - (161,577) 3,630,000 105,000 3,525,000
6,875,030 16,645 - (6,891,675) - - -
- - 6,995,000 - 6,995,000 235,000 6,760,000
- - 30,757 (908) 29,849 1,558 28,291
- - (90,313) 2,667 (87,646) (4,573) (83,073)
6,875,030 16,645 6,935,444 (6,889,916) 6,937,203 231,985 6,705,218
6,755,000 - - (130,000) 6,625,000 135,000 6,490,000
- - 1,849 (161) 1,688 63 1,625
6,755,000 - 1,849 (130,161) 6,626,688 135,063 6,491,625
4,750,000 - - (130,000) 4,620,000 135,000 4,485,000
15371 - - (1,500) 13,871 1,500 12,371
(28339) - - 6,668 (21,671) (6,668) (15,003)
4,737,032 - - (124,832) 4,612,200 129,832 4,482,368
293,055 - - (273,055) 20,000 20,000 -
668306 - - (156,781) 511,525 36,681 474,844
161,527 - - (51,008) 110,519 53,134 57,385
23,281,527 16,645 6,937,293 (7,787,330) 22,448,135 711,695 21,736,440
$ 36423169 $ 16645 $ 9270210 $ (9,810378) $ 35899646 $ 5751429 $ 30,148,217
77

11.-99



City of Santa Cruz
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2010

7. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

A. Governmental Activities, Continued

As of June 30, 2010, the future debt service requirements to maturity for outstanding debt

were:
For Year Certificates of Participation General Obligation Bonds Lease Revenue Bonds Notes
Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 105000 $ 177,835 $ 235,000 $ 264,601 $ 135000 $ 293,763 $ 20,000 $ -
2012 110,000 173,005 180,000 260,451 140,000 288,363 - -
2013 115,000 167,945 190,000 256,276 145,000 282,763 - -
2014 120,000 162,655 205,000 251,339 150,000 276,963 - -
2015 125,000 157,135 220,000 245,476 155,000 270,963 - -
2016-2020 715,000 692,700 1,365,000 1,100,593 885,000 1,255,615 - -
2021-2025 910,000 498,250 1,930,000 779,210 1,075,000 1,063,196 - -
2026-2030 1,160,000 247,250 2,670,000 302,625 1,310,000 820,475 - -
2031-2035 270,000 13,500 - - 1,760,000 490,900 - -
2036-2040 - - - - 870,000 65,750 - -
$ 3,630,000 $ 2,290,275 $ 6,995,000 $ 3,460,571 $ 6625000 $ 5,108,751 $ 20,000 $ -
Unamortized
Premiums - - 29,849 - 1,688 - - -

Deferred Amounts

on Refunding - - (87,646) - - - - _

Totals $ 3,630,000 $ 2,290,275 $ 6,937,203 $ 3,460,571 $ 6,626,688 $ 5,108,751 $ 20,000 $ -

For Year Tax Allocation Bonds Capital Lease Obligations Other Liabilities Totals
Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 135000 $ 192,866 $ 36,681 $ 23,755 $ 53,134 $ 4,702 $ 719815 $ 957,522
2012 140,000 188,566 38,384 22,052 57,385 1,607 665,769 934,044
2013 145,000 183,844 40,167 20,269 - - 635,167 911,097
2014 150,000 178,773 42,032 18,404 - - 667,032 888,134
2015 155,000 173,241 43,984 16,452 - - 698,984 863,267
2016-2020 870,000 769,475 252,524 49,655 - - 4,087,524 3,868,038
2021-2025 1,065,000 570,259 57,753 2,682 - - 5,037,753 2,913,597
2026-2030 1,335,000 303,413 - - - - 6,475,000 1,673,763
2031-2035 625,000 29,253 - - - - 2,655,000 533,653
2036-2040 - - - - - - 870,000 65,750

$ 4,620,000 $ 2,589,690 $ 511,525 $ 153,269 $ 110519 $ 6,309 $ 22,512,044 $ 13,608,865

Unamortized

Premiums 13,871 - - - - - 45,408 -

Deferred Amounts

on Refunding (21,671) - - - - - (109,317) -

Totals $ 4,612,200 $ 2,589,690 $ 511,525 $ 153,269 $ 110519 $ 6,309 $ 22,448,135 $ 13,608,865
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For the year ended June 30, 2010

7. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

A. Governmental Activities, Continued

Pledoed Revenues

Certain long-term debt issues require a pledge of revenues to secure future debt service
obligations as described below.

The 2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds are secured by and will be paid with annual ad
valorem tax levies on all property subject to taxation within the City. Debt service for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010, consisted of $67,547 in interest and no principal. Revenue pledged
for the payment of current year debt service was $430,912 resulting in a debt service to revenue
source ratio of 15.7%. Remaining debt service payments through final maturity of the Bonds in
September 2029 are estimated to be $6,995,000 in principal and $3,460,571 in interest for a total
debt service obligation of $10,455,571. Estimated total revenue pledged for the payment of total
debt service is estimated to be $10,455,571, resulting in a total debt service to revenue source
ratio of 100.0%. Over the life of the obligation, the General Obligation Bond Assessment taxes
are expected to cover 100.0% of annual debt service payments. Any excess collections after the
retirement of the bonds shall be transferred by the City to the General Fund to be used in a
manner consistent with requirements of applicable state and federal tax laws.

The 2007 Lease Revenue Bonds are secured by and payable from a pledge of revenues,
consisting primarily of lease payments and amounts on deposit from time to time in the funds
and accounts established under the Indenture of Trust. Lease payments from the Water
enterprise fund and the Library Joint Powers Authority to the City’s General fund will be
adjusted annually to cover 100.0% of the City’s total annual obligation. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010, debt service consisted of $130,000 in principal and $298,963 in interest for a total
debt service payment of $428,963. Revenue pledged for the payment of current year debt
service was $428,963 resulting in a current debt service to revenue source ratio of 100.0%.
Remaining debt service payments through final maturity of the Bonds in June 2037 are
estimated to be $6,625,000 in principal and $5,108,751 in interest for a total debt service
obligation of $11,733,751. The estimated total revenue pledged for the payment of total debt
service is estimated to be $11,733,751, resulting in a total debt service to revenue source ratio of
100.0%.

For the 2004 Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Bonds, principal and interest are payable
solely from tax revenues and from amounts in certain accounts held by the trustee under and
pursuant to the indenture. Debt service for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, consisted of
$130,000 in principal and $196,516 in interest for a total of $326,516. Revenue pledged for the
payment of current year debt service was $5,624,952 resulting in a debt service to revenue
source ratio of 5.8%. Remaining debt service payments through final maturity of the Bonds in
October 2031 are estimated to be $4,620,000 in principal and $2,589,690 in interest for a total
debt service obligation of $7,209,690. The estimated total revenue pledged for the payment of
total debt service is estimated to be $123,748,944, resulting in a total debt service to pledged
revenue source ratio of 5.8%.
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City of Santa Cruz

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

For the year ended June 30, 2010

7. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

B. Business-Type Activities

Long-term debt for business activities consisted of the following amounts at June 30, 2010:

Principal Original Issue Balance at
Description/Purpose Maturity Interest Rates Installments Amount June 30, 2010
Compensated Absences
Accumulated, unpaid vacation leave n/a n/a n/a n/a $1,251,794
Landfill Closure Costs
Percentage of estimated costs n/a n/a n/a n/a $4,465,029
2001 Refuse Certificates of Participation
Issued for refuse property acquisition and
improvements 10/1/02-10/1/21  3.5%-4.875% $45,000-$720,000 $7,500,000 $3,335,000
2004 Golf Certificates of Participation
Issued for golf course improvements 5/1/06-5/1/29 4.0%-5.375% $90,000-$260,000 $3,700,000 $3,220,000
Certificates of Participation Subtotal $6,555,000
2005 Wastewater Revenue Bonds
Issued to refinance 1994 Series B Sewer
Revenue Bonds 11/1/06-11/1/23 3.0%-4.5% $200,000-$350,000 $4,715,000 $3,890,000
Unamortized Premium 388
Deferred Amount on Refunding (82,673)
Net Balance $3,807,715
2005 Storm Water Revenue Bonds
Issued to refinance 1999 Certificates of
Participation 10/1/06-10/1/29 3.0%-4.375% $160,000-$385,000 $6,100,000 $5,410,000
Unamortized Premium 12,660
Deferred Amount on Refunding (433,522)
Net Balance $4,989,138
2006 Water Revenue Bonds
Issued to finance construction of a new
transmission main 3/1/07-3/1/36 4.0%-4.625% $220,000-$725,000 $12,450,000 $11,460,000
Unamortized Premium 15,366
Net Balance $11,475,366
2010 Parking Lease Revenue Bonds
Issued to refinance 1998 Certificates of
Participation 5/1/11-5/1/28 0.65%-4.45% $240,000-$400,000 $5,430,000 $5,430,000
Unamortized Premium 13,983
Deferred Amount on Refunding (209,688)
Net Balance $5,234,295
Revenue Bonds Subtotal $25,506,514
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

B. Business-Type Activities, Continued

Table continued from previous page

Principal Original Issue Balance at
Description/Purpose Maturity Interest Rates Installments Amount June 30, 2010
Water Note Payable to State
For construction of a water main line 3/31/00-9/30/15 2.973% $29,536-$247,162 $1,658,469 $470,500
Wastewater Note Payable to State
For construction of improvements at
wastewater treatment plant 8/1/99-8/1/18 2.80% $1,972,753-$3,316,017 $51,702,473 $26,791,076
Refuse Note Payable to State
For construction of solid waste facilities to
comply with State standards 2001-2016 0% $33,333 $500,000 $200,000
2009 Refuse Refunding Loan
Issued to refinance 1999 Certificates of
Participation 10/1/10-10/1/23 4.87% $77,300-$144,400 $2,903,000 $2,903,000
Deferred Amount on Refunding (208,379)
Net Balance $2,694,621
Notes Payable Subtotal $30,156,197
Capital Lease Obligations
To acquire two golf course fairway mowers 3 /15/06-12/15/10 3.9% $3,600-$4,700 $83,640 $9,391
To acquire six refuse loader vehicles 12/2/06-6/2/11 4.16% $110,532-$133,031 $1,214,728 $263,351
To acquire three refuse trucks, a street
sweeper, and a sewer/storm drain vactor ~ 6/22/07-12/22/11 3.88% $97,549-$115,964 $1,065,208 $341,314
To acquire a waste bulldozer 11/30/07-5/30/12 3.98% $46,411-$55,417 $507,959 $215,264
To acquire golf course mowers 4/27/09-1/27/14 6.11% $4,596-$6,130 $106,559 $81,621
To acquire four refuse trucks and a landfill
compactor 5/20/10-11/20/14 4.10% $142,535-$171,096 $1,564,295 $1,421,760
Lease Obligations Subtotal $2,332,701
Total $70,267,235
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

B. Business-Type Activities, Continued

The following table summarizes long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Amount Amount
Balance Balance Due Within ~ Due in More
July 1, 2009 Additions Retirements June 30, 2010 One Year than One Year
Compensated absences $ 1,054219 $ 940292 $ (742,717) $ 1,251,794 $ 834,528 $ 417,266
Landfill closure costs 4,293,086 171,943 - 4,465,029 - 4,465,029
Certificates of participation 16,078,423 - (9,523,423) 6,555,000 325,000 6,230,000
Revenue bonds payable: 21,395,000 5,430,000 (635,000) 26,190,000 910,000 25,280,000
Bond issuance premiums 29,680 14,050 (1,333) 42,397 2,048 40,349
Deferred amounts on refunding (545,075) (210,663) 29,855 (725,883) (40,584) (685,299)
Total revenue bonds payable 20,879,605 5,233,387 (606,478) 25,506,514 871,464 24,635,050
Notes payable: 30,158,849 2,903,000 (2,697,273) 30,364,576 2,928,514 27,436,062
Deferred amounts on refunding - (221,485) 13,106 (208,379) (15,727) (192,652)
Total notes payable 30,158,849 2,681,515 (2,684,167) 30,156,197 2,912,787 27,243,410
Lease obligations 1,685,427 1,564,295 (917,021) 2,332,701 917,484 1,415,217
Subtotal 68,802,304 9,479,197 (13,731,089) 64,550,412 5,026,735 59,523,677
Total $ 74,149,609  $ 10,591,432  $ (14,473,806) $ 70,267,235 $ 5,861,263 $ 64,405,972

As of June 30, 2010, the future debt service requirements to maturity for outstanding debt

were:
For Year Certificates of Participation Revenue Bonds Notes
Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 325000 $ 311,176 $ 910,000 $ 1,047,446 $ 2928514 $ 9